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The Indian Economic Canvas: A Story of Resilience and Growth

India continues to be a compelling story of economic resilience and growth on the global stage. Despite persistent global headwinds and 
geopolitical uncertainties, our nation's fundamental strengths – a large and young demographic, increasing urbanization, a burgeoning 
middle class, and strong government impetus on infrastructure development – provide a solid foundation for sustained expansion. 
Projections from leading �nancial institutions consistently place India as one of the fastest-growing major economies, with GDP growth 
expected to remain robust in the coming years (e.g., IMF projecting 6.2% in 2025 and 6.3% in 2026). This strong macro-economic environ-
ment naturally translates into signi�cant opportunities for our sector, which is intrinsically linked to real estate, construction, and consumer 
spending.

Our core businesses in plywood, laminates, and MDF are at the forefront of India's evolving interior and construction landscape. Each 
segment presents unique opportunities and requires distinct strategic approaches:

•       Plywood: The bedrock of our business, plywood continues to be a staple in construction and furniture. While the market sees competition, 
the demand for quality, durable, and sustainably sourced plywood remains strong. We are focused on enhancing our product o�erings 
with value-added features such as �re-resistance and moisture-resistance, and strengthening our organized market presence against 
unorganized players. The government's focus on a�ordable housing and infrastructure further fuels demand in this traditional yet 
evolving segment.

•       Laminates: The laminates industry is riding a wave of innovation and aesthetic appeal. Consumers are increasingly seeking versatile, 
cost-e�ective, and visually appealing surfacing solutions. The trend towards minimalist luxury, nature-inspired designs, and high-gloss 
�nishes, coupled with technological advancements like digital printing for custom designs, is expanding the market signi�cantly. Our 
commitment to sustainable and eco-friendly production, including low-emission and anti-bacterial laminates, positions us strongly to 
capture this growing demand for responsible and functional design.

•      MDF (Medium-Density Fibreboard): MDF is truly a growth engine for the future. Its versatility, uniform density, and ease of processing 
make it ideal for modular furniture, interior decoration, and various construction applications. The 'Make in India' initiative and 
increasing mechanization in furniture manufacturing are driving the adoption of MDF. We are witnessing a clear shift towards 
engineered wood solutions, and our strategic investments in advanced MDF production capabilities, including moisture-resistant and 
�re-resistant variants, are designed to capture the exponential growth projected in this segment. The increasing preference for 
ready-made and low-maintenance furniture further ampli�es MDF's market potential.

Our Strategic Imperatives for Sustainable Growth

To capitalize on these favourable industry dynamics, our strategic priorities remain clear:

1.   Innovation and Product Excellence: We will continue to invest heavily in research and development to bring innovative, sustainable, 
and high-performance products to market that meet the evolving needs of architects, designers, and consumers.

2.   Operational E�ciency and Scale: Enhancing our manufacturing capabilities, optimizing our supply chain, and leveraging technology 
for greater e�ciency will be paramount to maintaining our competitive edge and achieving economies of scale.

3.   Market Expansion and Penetration: We will continue to strengthen our pan-India distribution network, explore new regional markets, 
and reinforce our brand presence to deepen our market penetration.

4.    Sustainability and Responsible Practices: As a responsible corporate citizen, our commitment to environmental stewardship will 
remain at the core of our operations. We will champion eco-friendly manufacturing processes and source materials responsibly.

5.    Talent Development and Digital Transformation: Investing in our people and embracing digital transformation across all facets of our 
business will be critical for long-term success and agility in a rapidly changing world.

A Vote of Con�dence

The current economic indicators, coupled with the inherent growth drivers within the Indian building materials and interior solutions sector, 
�ll us with immense con�dence. We believe our strategic focus on innovation, operational excellence, and sustainability positions us 
strongly for continued success.

I extend my sincere gratitude to our dedicated management team and employees, whose hard work and commitment are the bedrock of 
our achievements. My deepest appreciation also goes to you, our esteemed shareholders, for your continued trust and belief in our vision. 
Your support is invaluable as we navigate the exciting opportunities ahead and work towards creating enduring value.

We look forward to sharing our progress with you in the years to come.

Sincerely,

Deen Dayal Daga

Chairman

Dear
Shareholders,
As Chairman, it gives me great pleasure to address you at this crucial juncture, 
re�ecting on our journey and outlining our strategic vision for the future. We oper-
ate within a dynamic and promising landscape, particularly given India's robust 
economic trajectory and the evolving demands within the plywood, laminate, and 
MDF industries.
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Managing 
Director
Message

Dear Shareholders,

It is with immense pride and profound gratitude that I address you today, re�ecting on a truly remarkable year for our company. We stand 
at a signi�cant juncture, not only having navigated a dynamic economic landscape but also celebrating the momentous achievement of 
surpassing the ₹500 crore turnover mark – a testament to our collective vision, unwavering dedication, and strategic foresight.

The Indian economy continues to be a beacon of growth on the global stage. Despite lingering geopolitical uncertainties and in�ationary 
pressures that have impacted various sectors, India's inherent resilience, driven by robust domestic consumption, government-led 
infrastructure development, and a burgeoning middle class, provides a fertile ground for sustained economic expansion. We have 
meticulously monitored these macroeconomic indicators, aligning our strategies to capitalize on the opportunities presented by this 
vibrant environment.

Our core industries – plywood, laminates, and MDF – are experiencing an exciting phase of evolution, mirroring India's broader economic 
narrative. The demand for organized, high-quality, and aesthetically superior surfacing solutions is at an all-time high. Factors such as rapid 
urbanization, increasing disposable incomes, a growing preference for ready-to-move-in homes, and the booming real estate and construc-
tion sectors are fuelling unprecedented growth in these segments.

Our success in achieving a ₹500 crore turnover is not merely a �nancial milestone; it is a validation of our strategic investments, operational 
e�ciencies, and customer-centric approach. This achievement has been fuelled by:

•      Expanded Production Capacities: We have prudently invested in green�eld manufacturing unit, enhancing our capacity across all 
product lines to meet the escalating demand.

•      Product Innovation and Diversi�cation: Our relentless focus on research and development has led to the introduction of innovative 
products that meet evolving market demands and consumer preferences, strengthening our competitive edge.

•       Robust Distribution Network: We have further expanded and strengthened our pan-India distribution network, ensuring wider reach 
and timely delivery of our products to every corner of the country.

•        Brand Building and Market Penetration: Strategic marketing initiatives and consistent brand building e�orts have enhanced our brand  
recall and deepened our market penetration.

•        Talent and Team Excellence: Above all, this achievement is a testament to the dedication, hard work, and unwavering commitment of 
our entire team – from the factory �oor to the corporate o�ce. Their passion and expertise are the true engines of our growth.

Looking ahead, we are optimistic and resolute. While we acknowledge the persistent global economic challenges, we are con�dent in 
India's growth story and the sustained demand within our industries. We will continue to invest in technological advancements, foster 
innovation, explore new market segments, and uphold our commitment to sustainability and environmental stewardship. Our focus will 
remain on enhancing shareholder value through pro�table growth, operational excellence, and responsible corporate governance.

I extend my heartfelt gratitude to you, our esteemed shareholders, for your continued trust, con�dence, and unwavering support. Your 
belief in our vision empowers us to reach new heights. I also express my sincere appreciation to our customers, suppliers, partners, and 
employees for their invaluable contributions to our journey.

Together, we look forward to another year of growth, innovation, and shared success.

With warm regards,

Rajiv Daga

Managing Director & CEO

Managing 
Director
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Global Economy

The global economy in mid-2025 presents a complex picture, characterized by slowing growth, persistent uncertainties, and 
diverging regional performances. While a global recession is generally not anticipated, the pace of expansion is expected to 
remain below pre-pandemic averages, with significant downside risks.

Global GDP growth is projected to slow down in 2025 compared to 2024, with forecasts generally hovering around 2.3% to 3.0%. 
This represents a significant downgrade from earlier projections.

https://www.oecd.org/en/about/news/press-releases/2025/06/global-economic-outlook-shifts-as-trade-policy-uncertainty-
weakens-growth.html

While some EMDEs, like India, are projected to maintain strong growth, many face a challenging outlook due to rising trade 
tensions and global uncertainty. Growth forecasts have been downgraded across most EMDE regions, particularly those reliant on 
global trade. Low-income countries continue to face challenges from debt burdens, limited fiscal space, and climate risks.

This is identified as the top risk to global growth, with changes in trade policy and relationships (including tariffs) being a major 
concern for businesses and economies worldwide. Escalating trade disputes could further dampen economic prospects and fuel 
inflation.

Ongoing conflicts and geopolitical tensions remain a significant disruptive force, impacting supply chains, commodity prices, and 
overall confidence.

Global headline inflation has fallen significantly from its peak in late 2022 (when it was close to 9%). In May 2025, OECD headline 
inflation stood at 4.0%, marking its lowest level since June 2021. Projections suggest a continued, albeit slow, decline. The expected 
global average inflation rate for 2025 is around 4.0%, potentially easing slightly to 3.9% in 2026 and 3.8% by 2028. This indicates 
that inflation is expected to remain “high” by historical standards for the medium term.

In summary, the global economy in 2025 is navigating a period of tempered growth, marked by significant headwinds from 
trade tensions and geopolitical risks. While disinflation continues in many regions, central banks face a delicate balancing act. 
Policymakers are challenged to address structural issues, reduce debt, and foster an environment conducive to sustainable and 
inclusive growth amidst ongoing uncertainties.

https://www.crisis24.com/articles/tariffs-and-escalating-trade-disputes

https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO/Issues/2025/01/17/world-economic-outlook-update-january-2025

Indian Economy

India is firmly established as a rising global economic powerhouse, demonstrating remarkable resilience and consistent growth amidst 
a challenging global landscape. In a significant development, the nation has ascended to become the world’s fourth-largest economy 
in 2025.

The country is projected to remain the fastest-growing major economy globally for both FY2024-25 and FY2025-26, with GDP growth 
rates consistently around 6.5-6.6%. This trajectory stands in stark contrast to lower global growth forecasts, with the International 
Monetary Fund (IMF) projecting global growth at 2.8-3.0% for 2025-26, underscoring India’s exceptional outperformance.

Major opportunities for India stem from the “China Plus One” strategy, which is driving increased manufacturing foreign 
direct investment (FDI) , and its advanced digital public infrastructure (India Stack), fostering financial inclusion and economic 
formalization. Targeted government initiatives are also boosting entrepreneurship and social welfare. The long-term vision of 
Viksit Bharat 2047 aims for sustained 8% annual growth over the next two decades.

India’s economy continues its trajectory of robust expansion, solidifying its position as a rising global economic powerhouse. For 
the fiscal year 2024-25, the projected Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth rate stands at a strong 6.6%, a forecast consistently 
echoed by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). 

A significant milestone in India’s economic ascent is its achievement of becoming the world’s fourth-largest economy in 2025, 
surpassing Japan, with a nominal GDP estimated at approximately $4.19 trillion. The IMF further anticipates that India will overtake 
Germany by 2027, securing the third position globally. This upward trajectory underscores India’s increasing economic influence 
on the world stage. The country’s nominal GDP is projected to nearly triple within a decade, from ₹106.57 lakh crore in 2014-15 to 
₹331.03 lakh crore in 2024-25, reflecting substantial and sustained economic expansion.

https://www.pib.gov.in/PressNoteDetails.aspx?NoteId=154660
https://cleartax.in/s/world-gdp-ranking-list
https://www.jagranjosh.com/general-knowledge/worlds-largest-economies-1694256013-1
https://www.pib.gov.in/PressNoteDetails.aspx?NoteId=154840&ModuleId=3

https://www.pib.gov.in/PressNoteDetails.aspx?NoteId=154660
https://invest.up.gov.in/wp-content/uploads/2025/01/India_010125.pdf

The consistent projection of India as the fastest-growing major economy, significantly outpacing global growth forecasts, suggests 
a notable decoupling of India’s domestic economic momentum from broader global slowdowns. Multiple sources, including the 
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RBI, IMF, UN, and CII, consistently project India’s GDP growth at 6.2-6.8% for FY2024-25 and FY2025-26.

Rank Country Name GDP (USD Trillion) GDP Per Capita (USD) Source

1 United States $30.51 $89.11 thousand IMF   

2 China $19.23 $13.69 thousand IMF   

3 Germany $4.74 $55.91 thousand IMF   

4 India $4.19 $2.88 - $2.93 thousand IMF   

5 Japan $4.19 $33.96 thousand IMF   

The Indian real estate sector is poised for a robust year in 2025, driven by these policy shifts, potential interest rate cuts by the RBI 
(a 50 bps repo rate cut was noted in June 2025), and technological innovation.

1. Growth Projections: India’s real estate market is projected to grow from $332.85 billion in 2025 to $985.80 billion by 2030, 
with a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 24.25%.

2. Residential Market: While home prices in major cities are projected to rise by 6.5% in 2025 (potentially outpacing inflation), 
the increased disposable income and various housing incentives are expected to sustain demand. The demand for larger, 
low-density housing (villas, townhouses) with privacy and green spaces is also on the rise.

3. Commercial Real Estate: The commercial real estate market, particularly office spaces, is experiencing significant growth 
due to economic expansion and rising foreign investments. Tier 2 cities are emerging as attractive locations for businesses 
and Global Capacity Centres (GCCs).

4. Institutional Investments: Institutional investments into India’s real estate sector saw a significant surge in Q2 2025, primarily 
led by foreign investors targeting commercial assets. While annual inflows were lower, the quarterly growth reflects renewed 
investor confidence supported by strong macroeconomic fundamentals.

5. Key Drivers: Beyond government schemes like PMAY, demand for larger homes, the rise in nuclear and dual-income families, 
interest in smart and sustainable housing, and continued infrastructure development are key drivers.

6. Buyer Behavior: Digital research (over 85% of buyers start online), preference for RERA-registered projects, and bankable 
brands with a clean delivery record are shaping buyer behavior.

7. Challenges: Despite the positive outlook, challenges remain, including the potential for an affordability crisis due to stagnant 
wage growth and rising home prices, leading to increased demand for rental housing and co-living spaces.

Government Initiatives

The Indian government has implemented a comprehensive array of strategic initiatives aimed at fostering economic growth while 
ensuring broad-based social inclusion. The “Make in India” campaign stands out as a flagship program designed to boost domestic 
manufacturing, encourage innovation, enhance skill development, and improve the overall ease of doing business across various sectors.

SWAMIH Fund 2.0: A significant allocation of ₹15,000 crore has been made to the Special Window for Affordable and Mid-Income 
Housing (SWAMIH) Fund 2.0. This fund, established as a blended finance facility with contributions from the government, banks, and 
private investors, aims to ensure the expeditious completion of 1 lakh stalled affordable and mid-income housing projects. This initiative 
is crucial for restoring buyer confidence and improving liquidity in the sector.

The government scheme, PMAY, has seen a significant increase in its budgetary allocation. For PMAY-Grameen (PMAY-G), the allocation 
for FY 2025-26 is ₹54,832 crore, marking a substantial increase from the Revised Estimate (RE) of ₹32,426.33 crore in FY 2024-25. This 
reflects a commitment to accelerate housing construction in rural areas. While a specific consolidated figure for PMAY-Urban 2.0 was not 
immediately available, the overall ‘Centrally Sponsored Scheme’ outlay, under which PMAY-Urban falls, has seen an increase, indicating 
continued support.

https://www.pmindia.gov.in/en/major-initiatives/

Global Plywood Market 

The global plywood market is experiencing robust growth, driven primarily by increasing construction activities, demand for 
furniture, and growing infrastructure projects worldwide. The industry is also seeing a significant shift towards more sustainable 
and engineered wood products, fueled by technological innovations and a rising consumer preference for eco-friendly materials.

https://straitsresearch.com/report/plywood-market 

Market Size and Forecast

The global plywood market was valued at approximately USD 59.01 billion in 2024 and is projected to grow from USD 62.67 
billion in 2025 to USD 104.53 billion by 2033, demonstrating a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 6.60% over the 
forecast period. Other reports indicate slightly different figures but confirm the strong growth trajectory, with projections reaching 
around USD 100.2 billion by 2032 (CAGR 6.1%) or USD 115.06 billion by 2034 (CAGR 6.2%).

Indian Furniture Market

The Indian furniture market is experiencing a significant transformation, evolving from a largely unorganized and fragmented 
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sector into a more structured and competitive landscape. Driven by a confluence of demographic shifts, economic growth, and 
technological advancements, India is rapidly emerging as a key player in the global furniture industry.
https://dataverseeinc.in/the-future-of-indian-furniture-manufacturing-and-export-in-2024/

Market Size and Growth Projections

The Indian furniture market is currently valued at approximately USD 29.97 billion in 2025 and is projected to reach USD 43.24 
billion by 2030, exhibiting a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 7.60% during this period (Mordor Intelligence). Other 
reports indicate even more optimistic projections, with some forecasting the market to reach USD 64.1 billion by 2032 with an 
11.1% CAGR (Persistence Market Research), or USD 89.46 billion by 2030 with a 7.8% CAGR (Grand View Research). This makes 
India the world’s fourth-largest furniture market and the second-largest in the Asia-Pacific region, after China.
https://www.worldfurnitureonline.com/news/india-greatness-and-complexity/

Key Market Drivers

1. Rapid Urbanization and Nuclear Families: A significant driver is the fast-paced urbanization across India, with an increasing 
percentage of the population moving to urban centers in pursuit of better opportunities. This leads to a rising demand for 
new housing units and consequently, furniture to furnish these spaces. The growing trend of nuclear families also fuels 
demand for modular, space-saving, and modern furniture.

2. Rising Disposable Incomes and Changing Lifestyles: As India’s middle class expands and disposable incomes increase, 
consumers are more willing to invest in higher-quality, branded, and aesthetically pleasing furniture. Furniture is increasingly 
viewed as a lifestyle statement and an integral part of home decor, rather than just a functional item.

3. Government Initiatives and Housing Push: Government programs like the Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY), which 
aims to provide affordable housing, directly stimulate the demand for residential furniture. Additionally, initiatives to boost 
the real estate industry and improve urban infrastructure contribute to overall market growth.

4. E-commerce and Digital Adoption: The proliferation of e-commerce platforms has revolutionized furniture retail in India. 
Online channels offer a wider variety of products, competitive pricing, and the convenience of home delivery, reaching 
consumers even in Tier-3 and Tier-4 cities where organized retail is less prevalent. Technologies like Augmented Reality (AR) 
are enhancing the online shopping experience, allowing customers to visualize furniture in their own spaces.

5. Growth in Commercial and Hospitality Sectors: India’s booming commercial construction activities, driven by sectors 
like IT, co-working spaces, and hospitality (record influx of new hotel rooms), are creating substantial demand for office, 
ergonomic, and specialized commercial furniture.

6. Sustainability and Eco-Friendly Preferences: There is a growing consumer awareness and preference for sustainable and 
eco-friendly furniture. A significant percentage of millennials are willing to pay a premium for certified sustainable furniture 
made from renewable or recycled materials like bamboo, rattan, and reclaimed wood. This trend is pushing manufacturers to 
adopt greener production processes and circular economy models.

Market Segmentation and Trends

•	 By Application:

o Home Furniture: Leads the market, accounting for approximately 62% of the share in 2024. Demand is high for living, 
dining, and bedroom suites, with a growing emphasis on comfort and modularity.

 https://www.mordorintelligence.com/industry-reports/india-home-furniture-market

o Office Furniture: The fastest-growing segment, projected to grow at a 7.8% CAGR between 2025 and 2030, driven by 
the expansion of corporate spaces and the surge in work-from-home and hybrid work models creating demand for 
home office setups.

•	 By Material:

o Wood Furniture: Remains the stronghold, holding about 61-62% of the market share in 2024. Its popularity is rooted in 
cultural affinity for solid woods like teak and sheesham, durability, aesthetic appeal, and adaptability to various styles. 
There’s a rising trend for engineered wood and veneer-over-engineered cores due to cost-effectiveness and forest 
stewardship.

 https://theleafcrafts.com/blogs/news/benefits-of-solid-wood-furniture-in-india

 https://www.mordorintelligence.com/industry-reports/india-furniture-market

•	 By Price Range: The mid-range tier currently accounts for about 45% of the market, while the premium tier is advancing 
fastest at an 8% CAGR to 2030, reflecting increasing purchasing power.

https://www.mordorintelligence.com/industry-reports/india-furniture-market

•	 By Geography: South India dominated with a 30% share in 2024, while East India is poised for the fastest growth with an 
8.6% CAGR through 2030. North India is also a significant market, driven by organized retail expansion and student migration.

 https://www.imarcgroup.com/india-furniture-market
 https://www.mordorintelligence.com/industry-reports/india-furniture-market#:~:text=the%20forecast%20window.-,%E2%80%A2,an%208.6%25%20

CAGR%20through%202030.
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•	 Customization and Design: There’s a strong trend towards customized and personalized furniture, allowing consumers to 
choose specific colors, materials, and sizes to fit their aesthetic preferences and living spaces. The blending of traditional and 
contemporary styles is also gaining traction.

“Make in India” Initiative and Exports

The “Make in India” initiative has significantly bolstered the domestic furniture manufacturing sector. While India’s share in 
global furniture exports is relatively small (around 1.5% in 2023, with exports totaling over USD 2 billion), it has experienced 
unprecedented growth in the past decade.

https://dataverseeinc.in/the-future-of-indian-furniture-manufacturing-and-export-in-2024/

•	 Export Growth: Indian furniture exports are projected to grow at a CAGR of 11.9% from 2024 to 2033, potentially reaching 
USD 12.09 billion in 2033. Some ambitious targets suggest India aims to achieve a furniture export target of USD 1 trillion 
by 2030.

•	 Competitive Advantages: India benefits from competitive labor costs, access to quality raw materials (teak, mango wood, 
rosewood), and a rich heritage of skilled craftsmanship.

•	 Government Support: Schemes like RoDTEP (Remission of Duties and Taxes on Exported Products) and Production-Linked 
Incentive (PLI) schemes reduce costs for exporters. The government is also developing “Export Enclaves” with world-class 
infrastructure and supporting export-related shared infrastructure projects in designated export centers.

•	 Key Export Destinations: The United States remains the largest market for Indian wooden and handcrafted items. Germany, 
the UK, UAE, Saudi Arabia, and Australia are also significant destinations.

•	 Types of Exports: Solid wood furniture, handcrafted and painted furniture, upholstered sofas and chairs, dining sets, 
bedroom sets, and office/modular furniture are commonly exported.

Overall, the Indian furniture market is on a strong growth trajectory, driven by internal demand and increasing global recognition 
of its craftsmanship and manufacturing capabilities. Government support, technological adoption, and a focus on sustainability 
are expected to further solidify India’s position as a significant force in the global furniture industry

Indian Plywood Market

The Indian plywood market is a vital component of the nation’s construction and interior design sectors, experiencing robust 
growth propelled by rapid urbanization, an expanding real estate sector, and rising disposable incomes. Valued at approximately 
USD 1.82 billion in 2024 and INR 235.1 billion in FY 2024-25, the market is projected to reach USD 3.44 billion by 2034, exhibiting a 
Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 6.6% from 2025 to 2034. 1 The broader plywood and laminates market is also on a strong 
upward trajectory, expected to grow from USD 6.1 billion in 2024 to USD 9.13 billion by 2030, at a CAGR of 6.8%. 2 

https://www.marketresearchfuture.com/reports/india-plywood-market-21646
https://plywood.royaletouche.com/blogs/plywood-industry-in-india

India’s trade dynamics in plywood highlight a significant aspect of its market. In 2023, India imported plywood valued at USD 190 
million, accounting for an import volume of 761,447 cubic meters, positioning it as the 24th largest global plywood importer. 

1 Conversely, India’s plywood exports amounted to USD 71.6 million, with a volume of 65,493 cubic meters, making it the 33rd 
largest exporter globally. 

https://www.openpr.com/news/4040753/india-s-plywood-market-records-6-71-growth-in-fy24-as

https://www.globalwood.org/news/2025/news_20250604a.htm

Indian MDF Market

The use of Medium Density Fibreboard (MDF) is increasingly finding market acceptance over plywood and India is no exception. 
Its global market size is estimated at 105.16 million CBM (USD 50.2 billion) in 2021. It is expected to witness a CAGR of 9.6% in the 
period of 2021-2026. In India, the MDF market size is estimated to be 2.8 million CBM (i.e., Rs. 3000 crores) in 2021. It is expected to 
grow at CAGR of 15-20% to Rs. 6000 crores by 2026.

The Indian Furniture Industry (especially the residential and home furnishing segments) continues to be dominated by plywood. 
Globally, the MDF to plywood consumption ratio is 80:20, but in India, the ratio is skewed in favour of the plywood at 20:80. This 
number suggests that there is enough room for the growth of MDF in the country in the future.

According to Industry experts, it is estimated that the MDF : Plywood ratio in India will improve to 50:50 by 2030. This presents a 
strong growth potential for the MDF industry in India. It is expected to gain market share of low & medium grade plywood (which 
constitute 85% of the plywood market in India)

The outlook for the Indian MDF market is exceptionally positive, with robust growth projected across multiple horizons. The market 
is forecasted to grow at a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 15-20%, reaching Rs. 6000 crores by 2026. 
https://niveshaay.wordpress.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/mdf-industry-analysis-1.pdf

Indian Laminate Market

The India Laminates Market is estimated at USD 2.20 billion in 2024, with a forecast to grow to USD 3.10 billion by 2033 at a CAGR 
of 3.80%. 2 Within this, the decorative laminates segment stands out as a key growth engine, valued at USD 1.74 billion in 2022 and 
anticipated to reach USD 2.68 billion by 2029 with a higher CAGR of 7.46%. 
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The Indian laminate market presents a complex yet promising landscape, characterized by varying growth rates across its segments. 
The overarching India Plywood and Laminates Market was valued at USD 6.1 billion in 2024 and is projected to achieve USD 9.13 
billion by 2030, growing at a robust CAGR of 6.8%. 1 This combined market reflects the strong interconnectedness of these building 
materials within the construction and interior design sectors.

Focusing specifically on laminates, the broader India Laminates Market reached USD 2.20 billion in 2024 and is anticipated to 
expand to USD 3.10 billion by 2033, with a CAGR of 3.80%. 

The India Wood and Laminate Flooring Market, a smaller but distinct niche, was valued at USD 76.9 million in 2021, growing to USD 
80.1 million in 2022, and is expected to reach USD 113.1 million by 2030, with a CAGR of 4.4% from 2022 to 2030. 

https://www.imarcgroup.com/india-laminates-market
https://www.blueweaveconsulting.com/report/india-decorative-laminates-market
https://www.techsciresearch.com/report/india-plywood-and-laminates-market/21515.html
https://www.imarcgroup.com/india-laminates-market
https://www.grandviewresearch.com/industry-analysis/india-wood-laminate-flooring-market

Opportunities

India’s robust economic performance, with a GDP growth rate of 7% in 2024 following an 8.2% growth in 2023, strengthens the 
fundamentals for the entire wood panel industry. The broader plywood and laminates market alone is projected to grow from USD 
6.1 billion in 2024 to USD 9.13 billion by 2030, at a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 6.8%.

https://www.openpr.com/news/4040753/india-s-plywood-market-records-6-71-growth-in-fy24-as
https://www.techsciresearch.com/report/india-plywood-and-laminates-market/21515.html

Key Opportunities Across Plywood, Laminates, and MDF:

1. Rapid Urbanization and Real Estate Boom: India’s swift urbanization and extensive infrastructure projects are fundamental 
drivers. The real estate sector is projected to expand to US$ 1 trillion by 2030, contributing 13% to the country’s GDP by 2025. 
This includes a projected 15-18 million sq. ft. of data center development by 2025 and a 37.8% surge in luxury housing sales 
between January and September 2024. A projected threefold increase in housing demand by 2036 and ongoing smart city 
development further create fertile ground for sustained demand for all these materials. 

https://www.marketresearchfuture.com/reports/india-plywood-market-21646
https://www.openpr.com/news/4040753/india-s-plywood-market-records-6-71-growth-in-fy24-as

2. Rising Disposable Incomes and Evolving Consumer Preferences: An expanding middle-class population, expected to reach 
715 million by FY2031, is driving a growing appetite for premium and environmentally conscious wood solutions. Consumers 
are increasingly opting for higher-quality interior finishes, modular furniture, and customized designs, moving away from 
lower-quality options. This fuels demand for premium-grade plywood, decorative plywood (identified as the fastest-growing 
segment in plywood and laminates), and advanced wood finishes.   

https://www.openpr.com/news/4040753/india-s-plywood-market-records-6-71-growth-in-fy24-as
https://plywood.royaletouche.com/blogs/plywood-industry-in-india

https://www.techsciresearch.com/report/india-plywood-and-laminates-market/21515.html

3. Growth in Engineered Wood Products (MDF and Particle Board): While plywood currently dominates the Indian wood 
panel space, engineered wood products (including MDF and particle board) account for only 20% of India’s wood panel market, 
a stark contrast to global trends. This highlights significant growth opportunities in this segment, with MDF alone potentially 
accounting for up to 50% of the Indian furniture market by 2030. This shift in consumer behavior creates new opportunities for 
manufacturers to innovate and expand capacity in engineered alternatives.   

4. Technological Advancements and Product Diversification: Continuous innovation in design and materials, including 
advanced printing technologies for realistic wood grain patterns in laminates and enhanced durability in plywood, is driving 
market expansion. Manufacturers are investing in cutting-edge solutions like moisture-proof and fire-resistant plywood, and 
there’s increasing demand for calibrated plywood and pre-laminated boards for factory-finished modular furniture and CNC-
driven designs. 

5. Sustainability and Eco-Friendly Practices: There is a significant and growing demand for sustainable and eco-friendly 
products, driven by rising environmental consciousness and green building standards. This includes a preference for FSC®-
certified boards, GreenPro-labelled products, and formaldehyde-free or low-VOC adhesives. This trend positions companies 
investing in sustainable sourcing and certification to gain market share, especially in premium and institutional projects.   

6. Prefabricated and Modular Construction: The increasing adoption of prefabricated and modular construction methods, 
valued for their efficiency, cost-effectiveness, and reduced construction time, drives demand for versatile and lightweight 
materials like plywood and laminates.   

7. Export Potential: While India is a net importer of plywood, there is stable overseas demand, particularly from South Asian and 
Middle Eastern regions, and identified export potential to GCC and African markets for Indian suppliers.   

Challenges:

Rising raw material costs, particularly timber, along with fluctuations in energy prices and variable import and customs duties 
on fixture products, may suppress margins and hinder industry growth. Additionally, the global economic slowdown and high 
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inflation are impacting consumer sentiment, potentially leading to reduced household spending on non-essential items and 
affecting both the export market and overall industry growth.

The furniture market is in a state of constant evolution due to rapidly changing consumer preferences. This dynamic environment 
requires the industry to continuously adapt and innovate in order to meet the ever-evolving demands of customers.

A significant portion of the Indian wood panel industry, including plywood, operates in the unregulated and unorganized 
sector, holding nearly 70% of the market share. This fragmentation often leads to inconsistencies in product quality, a lack of 
standardization, and challenges in scaling operations for smaller manufacturers. This structure also makes it difficult to enforce 
regulatory compliance uniformly across the industry.

The industry faces substantial environmental compliance and statutory burdens, particularly for smaller players. Import restrictions 
and evolving trade policies can also impact raw material costs and availability. Concerns about pollution from manufacturing units, 
including inadequate pollution control systems, discharge of untreated industrial wastewater, improper disposal of wood ash, 
and health risks from formaldehyde and wood dust, necessitate robust environmental management practices. Mandatory BIS 
certification for various plywood types adds another layer of compliance requirements.

Moreover, stringent regulations and standards related to environmental concerns and emissions pose challenges for the 
MDF market. The furniture industry is also subject to continuous evolution driven by rapidly changing consumer preferences, 
necessitating constant adaptation and innovation to meet evolving customer demands.

Outlook

The Company’s outlook remains same as stated earlier, that is to enhance the capacity utilization of the existing installed capacity 
across various product lines. Your company looks to increase the capacity utilization thus improve the bottom line.

The Company operates manufacturing facilities in Rudrapur & Sitarganj at Udham Singh Nagar district (Uttarakhand). The facility 
in Sitarganj newly setup MDF plant. The Company places a strong emphasis on innovation and sustainability, proudly producing 
Archidply Plywood, Laminate & MDF using 100% renewable agroforestry wood.

The company capitalized the post-pandemic demand recovery, driven by increasing disposable incomes among consumers, 
preference for better living and working standards (residential and commercial), lower price-sensitivity, increased interiors-pride 
and a shift in the market preference from the unorganized to organized sector.

Financial Performance 

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 2025 2024
Revenue from Operations 46,428.17 43575.11
EBITDA 2,335.14 2439.91
Profit before tax 1,060.99 1256.01
Tax 273.13 526.48
Profit after tax 787.86 729.53

Segment Reporting

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Plywood & Allied 
Products

Laminate & Allied 
Products

Medium Density Fibre 
Board TOTAL

As at 
31.03.2025

As at 
31.03.2024

As at 
31.03.2025

As at 
31.03.2024

As at 
31.03.2025

As at 
31.03.2024

As at 
31.03.2025

As at 
31.03.2024

 External Sales 31,708.31 26,598.99 13,226.33 14,134.14 1,473.42 2,809.73 46,408.06 43,542.86 

 Other Sales                         -                            -                            -                           -          

 Royalty Income                   15.47                   32.25                          -                           -                         -                         -                      15.47 32.25 

 Other Operating 
Income - - - - - -                      4.64                      -   

 Total Revenue 31,723.78 26,631.24 13,226.33 14,134.14 1,473.42 2,809.73 46,428.17 43,575.11 
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  RESULTS                

Segment Results             4,185.02              3,664.40              2,905.59             3,899.57                77.32              218.56             7,167.93              7,782.53 

Interest - - - - - -                  809.66                   742.56 

Other Unallocable 
Income - - - - - -                  127.55                   297.74 

Other Unallocable 
Expenditure - - - - - -              5,424.84 6,081.71 

Provision for 
Taxation - - - - - -                  273.13                   526.48 

Net Profit after 
tax - - - - - -                 787.86                  729.53 

OTHER 
INFORMATION - - - - - - - -

Assets                

Segment Assets 11,837.12 10,204.64              5,849.71             6,360.29              525.42           1,016.67 18,212.26 17,581.61 

Unallocable Assets - - - - - -              9,186.57 6,661.54 

Total Assets: - - - - - - 27,398.82 24,243.15 

Liabilities                

Segment Liablities             4,921.80              3,687.86              2,053.01             1,959.65              228.71              389.56              7,203.51 6,037.06 

Unallocable 
Liablities - - - - - - 20,195.32 18,206.09 

Total Liabilities : - - - - - - 27,398.82 24,243.15 

Capital 
Expenditure 
during the year

                  23.41                   18.30                   54.44                   37.15                       -                         -                      77.85                     55.46 

Capital 
Expenditure 
during the year 
Unallocable

- - - - - -                  331.77                   353.30 

Depreciation and 
Amortization                   68.63                   72.66                 166.77                181.44                       -                         -                    235.41                   254.10 

Depreciation and 
Amortization 
(Unallocable)

- - - - - -                  229.08                   187.25 

Key Financial Ratios

Serial No. Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 Deviation Reason
a) Debt Service Coverage Ratio 2.29 2.68 -17.06%   - 
b) Interest service Coverage Ratio 2.31 2.69 -14.16%  - 
c) Debt Equity Ratio 0.69 0.63 9.95%   - 
d) Total Debts to Total Assets 0.30 0.29 3.92%   - 
e) Creditors Turnover Ratio 7.31 7.43 -1.57%  
f ) Debtors Turnover Ratio 4.60 4.59 0.23%   - 
g) Inventory Turnover Ratio 12.11 11.25 7.60%   - 
h) Operating Margin (%) 3.80% 3.98% -4.51%   - 
i) Net Profit Margin (%) 1.70% 1.67% 1.36%   - 
j) Return on Equity Ratio 6.82% 6.77% 0.73%   - 
k) Return on Capital Employed 9.26% 10.98% -15.62%   - 

1. Risks and Concerns

 At the core of the company’s risk-mitigating initiatives, there is a comprehensive and integrated risk management framework, 
which comprises stringent norms and regulations along with a prudent control mechanism. The risk management approach 
conforms to the company’s strategic direction, which is in line with shareholders’ desired total returns, the company’s credit 
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ratings and its desired risk appetite.

 Slowdown in Demand, Market Dynamics, Competition risk, Resources availability, customer attrition risk, unpredictable 
economy, volatile business environment, credit risk and cheaper product availability are the various identifiable risks along 
with uncontrollable external factors. However, your company can respond and cautiously manage these risks by resorting to 
a conservative business policy and diligent business practices.

2. Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

 The guidelines are set by the Board of Directors who are responsible for the internal control system. They verify its adequacy, 
effectiveness and application thereafter. The Company’s internal control system is designed to ensure management efficiency, 
measurability and verifiability, reliability of accounting and management information, compliance with all applicable laws 
and regulations, and the protection of the Company’s assets. This is to timely identify and manage the Company’s operational, 
compliance-related, economic and financial risks.

 The Company’s internal control systems play an important role and acts as a supplement to the external control systems. Your 
company has appointed an internal auditor to streamline the system and has adequate internal control systems to maintain 
accuracy in accounting and financial transactions and comply with rules and regulations. 

 The internal control systems of the Company are monitored and evaluated by internal auditor and their finding & observations’ 
are reviewed by the Audit Committee.

3. Human Capital

 The Company’s Industrial relations at all the levels remained cordial throughout the year. The Company periodically conducts 

skill enhancement training for its human capital.

4. Cautionary Note

 Important factors such as economic developments within the country, demand and supply conditions of the industry, input 
prices, changes in Government regulations, tax laws and other factors such as litigation and industrial relations, influence the 
Company’s operations. This may lead to the Company’s projections and approximate estimates to dispose them as “forward 
looking statements”.

 Though, these qualitative aspects are usually set in the framework meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. The 
actual results may sometimes materially differ from those expressed or implied.

 The Company remains committed to responding to changing consumer sentiments within the dynamic retail landscape. 
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Directors’ Report
TO THE MEMBERS OF
ARCHIDPLY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Your Directors ‘are pleased to present the Thirtieth Annual Report together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year 
ended 31st March 2025.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 The financial results of the Company during the year under review are summarized as under: 

                                                                                   (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
Standalone Consolidated

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
Revenue from Operations 46,428.17 43,575.11 55,591.29 43,567.16
Other Income      107.44      265.49      154.32      265.15
Total Income 46,535.61 43,840.60 55,745.61 43,832.31
Profit Before Financial expenses & 
Depreciation 2,335.14 2,439.91 2,342.20 2,423.51

Less: Depreciation & Amortization 
Expenses 464.49 441.35 1,338.90 446.75

Less:      Finance Costs 809.66 742.56 1,774.11 745.03
Profit before tax 1,060.99  1,256.01  (770.81) 1,231.73
Current Tax 317.00 403.00 317.00 403.00
Taxes for earlier year 20.73 43.35 20.73 43.35
Deferred Tax (64.60) 80.12 (372.75) 75.53
Profit after tax 787.86 729.53 (735.80) 709.84
Other Comprehensive Income (25.91) 61.87 (25.91) 61.87
Total Comprehensive Income 761.95 791.40 (761.70) 771.71

2.  REVIEW OF OPERATIONS & PERFORMANCE:

 The highlights of the Company’s performance are as 
under:

 STANDALONE 

 The Company’s total Income during the year under review 
was Rs. 46,428.17 lakh as compared to Rs. 43,575.11 lakh in 
previous year. The Profit after Tax for the year is Rs. 787.86 
lakh as compared to Rs. 729.53 lakh in previous year.

 Net worth increased to Rs. 11,933.66 lakh at the end of the 
year 2025 from Rs. 11,171.72 lakh at the   end of previous 
year 2024. 

 CONSOLIDATED

 The Company’s Total Income during the year under review 
are Rs. 55,591.29 lakh. The Profit after Tax for the year is Rs. 
(735.80) lakh.

 EFFECTS OF GLOBAL SUPPLY CHAIN AND LOGISTICS 
DISRUPTION

 Global supply chain and logistics disruption, container 
capacity constraints and geo-political tensions resulted 
in an increase in the freight costs and delivery times and 
higher commodity prices (e.g. Raw material). 

 Despite such a situation, the Company’s plant operations 
continued to run smoothly, while ensuring adherence to 
necessary safety measures. 

3. RESERVES 

 During the Financial year 2024-25, the Company has 
proposed no amount transfer to reserves.

4. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

 During the financial year, there has been no change in the 
business of the company or in the nature of business carried 
by the Company during the financial year under review.

5. DIVIDEND:

 Keeping in view to further improving the capacity 
utilization and consolidate its existing facilities, the Board 
has considered prudent to conserve and retain the profit 
for further improvement. The Board regrets its inability to 
recommend any dividend.

6. SHARE CAPITAL

 The paid up equity capital as on March 31, 2025 was ₹ 
19,86,50,000. The Company has not issued shares with 
differential voting rights nor granted stock options nor 
sweat equity during the year.

7. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, ASSOCIATES & JOINT 
VENTURE

 As on March 31, 2025, the Company has one (1) wholly-
owned subsidiary company viz. Archidpanel Industries 
Private Limited (AIPL)”.

 Development/Performance and Financial Position of 
the Subsidiary is presented below:

 Archidpanel Industries Private Limited (AIPL) 
(CIN:U20299UR2022PTC013589), a wholly owned 
subsidiary company was incorporated on February 12, 
2022.
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 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing salient 
features of financial statement of subsidiary in Form AOC-
1 is attached herewith as Annexure A. 

 The separate audited financial statements in respect of 
the subsidiary company are open for inspection and are 
also available on the website of your Company at www.
archidply.com. 

 Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 34 (3) read 
with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the details 
of Loans/Advances made to, and investments made in the 
subsidiary have been furnished in notes forming part of 
the accounts.

 M/s Archidpanel Industries Private Limited is considered 
as the material subsidiary of the Company in terms of the 
provisions of Regulation 16 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The 
Secretarial Audit Report of Archidpanel Industries Private 
Limited in Form MR-3 for the financial year ended March 
31, 2025, is part of the annual report.

 In terms of the Regulation 46(2)(h) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, the policy for determining material subsidiaries is 
placed on the website of the Company at www.archidply.
com.

 Further, the Company does not have any joint venture or 
associate company during the year or at any time after the 
closure of the year and till the date of the report.

8. FINANCE

 Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances other than 
cash and cash equivalent as at March 31, 2025 was Rs. 
18.48 lakh and Rs. 51.89 Lakh respectively. The company 
continues to focus on judicious management of its working 
capital, receivables, inventories and other working capital 
parameters under strict monitoring.

9. DEPOSITS

 During the financial year under review, the company did 
not accept any deposit covered under chapter V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Section 73 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 2014.

10. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 
INVESTMENTS

 Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees 
given and securities provided along with the purpose 
are given in the Notes to the Financial Statement of the 
company forming part of this Annual Report.

11. MATERIAL CHANGE AND COMMITMENT

 There have been no other material changes and 
commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company between the close of the year till the date of this 
report. 

 As such there is no significant and material order by the 
regulator/court/tribunal/ impacting the going concern 
status and the Company operation in future.

12. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR 
ADEQUACY

 Internal Financial Controls are an integrated part of the risk 
management process, addressing financial and financial 
reporting risks. The internal financial controls have been 
embedded in the business processes and continuous 
monitoring of the internal financial control systems by 
the internal auditors during the course of their audits. We 
believe that these systems provide reasonable assurance 
that our internal financial controls are designed effectively 
and are operating as intended. To maintain its objectivity 
and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to 
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Managing 
Director of the Board.

13. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS 
WITH RELATED PARTIES 

 During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, all the 
contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into 
by the Company with the related parties were in the 
ordinary course of business and on ‘arm’s length’ basis 
and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013, read with Regulation 23 of SEBI 
(LODR), 2015. 

 In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Listing Regulations, 2015, your Company has a 
Policy on Related-Party Transactions placed on the website 
of the Company at www.archidply.com. All related-party 
transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for 
review and approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit 
Committee and the Board is obtained for the transactions 
which are of a foreseen and repetitive nature. A statement 
giving details of all related-party transactions is placed 
before the Audit Committee for their noting/approval every 
quarter. There were no materially significant transactions 
with related parties (i.e. transactions exceeding 10% of 
the annual consolidated turnover) during the year as 
per the last audited financial statements. Accordingly, 
the disclosure of transactions entered into with related 
parties pursuant to the provisions of Section 188(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts), Rules 2014 in Form AOC-2 is not applicable.

 All related-party transactions are mentioned in the notes to 
the accounts. The Directors draw attention of the members 
to the Notes to the financial statements which sets out the 
disclosure for related-party transactions.

14. CREDIT RATING DURING YEAR 2025 

 CRISIL had reaffirmed the rating of BBB- / Stable for 
the bank loan facilities of Rs 100.50 Crore of Archidply 
Industries Ltd. on 05 December, 2024.

15. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

 The details of the CSR Committee are provided in the 
Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this 
Integrated Annual Report. The CSR policy is available on 
the website of your Company at www.archidply.com. 
The annual report on our CSR activities is appended as 
Annexure B to the Board’s report. 

 Your Company has spent 2% of the average net profits 
of the Company, during the three years immediately 
preceding financial year. 
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 The Chief Financial Officer of your Company has certified 
that CSR spends of your Company for FY 2024-25 have 
been utilized for the purpose and in the manner approved 
by the Board.

16. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO:

 The particulars relating to conservation of energy, 
technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo, as required to be disclosed under the Act, are 
provided in Annexure C to this Report.

17. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

 During the year under review, your Company enjoyed a 
cordial relationship with workers and employees at all 
levels.

18. DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSON:

A) Appointment of Independent Director: 

During the year, the Board of Director’s, on the 
recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (‘NRC’), in its meeting held on April 26, 2025 
approved and recommended to the shareholders for 
their approval, the appointment of Mrs. Anchal Mittal 
(DIN: 00721036) as Women Independent Director of the 
Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for 
a period of five (5) consecutive years w.e.f. April 26, 2025. 
The Company received the approval of the members of 
the Company on June 01, 2025, by way of Postal Ballot, 
for the appointment of Mrs. Anchal Mittal as a Women 
Independent Director of the Company.

B) Director liable to Retire by Rotation 

 Pursuant to Section 152 and other applicable provisions 
of the Act, read with the Articles of Association of the 
Company, one-third of the Directors, as are liable to retire 
by rotation, shall retire every year and, if eligible, may offer 
themselves for reappointment at every AGM. Accordingly, 
one of the Directors, other than an Independent Director, 
would be liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM.

 Mr. Deen Dayal Daga (DIN: 00497806), Executive Chairman 
& Whole Time Director of the company, will retire by 
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being 
eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

 Brief resume of the Directors proposed to be appointed/
reappointed, the nature of their expertise in specific 
functional areas and the names of the companies in 
which they hold the directorship and Chairmanship / 
Membership of Board Committees etc. are provided in the 
Notice to Members and report on Corporate Governance 
forming part of this Annual Report.

During the year, Mrs. Shanti V Mallar had completed Her second 
term of 5 (five) consecutive years at the close of business hours 
on March 10, 2025 and hence, ceased to be an Independent 
Director of the Archidply Industries Limited. The Board places 
on record its sincere appreciation for the valuable contribution 
by him.

None of the Directors of your Company is disqualified as per 
provisions of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
Directors of the Company have made the necessary disclosures 
as required under various provisions of the Companies Act.

All independent directors have given declarations that they 
meet the criteria of independence as laid down under section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the requirement 
of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015.

There have been no changes to the Key Managerial Personnel 
since last annual general meeting.  

19. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT:

 Our corporate governance report for financial year 2024-25 
forms part of this Annual Report. The requisite certificate 
from the Secretarial Auditor of the Company confirming 
compliance with the conditions of corporate governance 
as stipulated under SEBI LODR is annexed to the corporate 
governance report.

20. BOARD EVALUATION 

 The Company has laid down a process for evaluation of 
the Board and Committees of Board as also evaluation of 
the performance of each of the Directors. The evaluation is 
conducted and monitored by the Chairperson, Nomination 
& Remuneration Committee (NRC) in consultation with 
the members of the committee. Each of the Directors are 
given a self-assessment Questionnaire, covering degree 
of fulfillment of their responsibilities, Board structure and 
composition, Responsibilities of Committee, effectiveness 
of the Board process, information and functioning, Board 
culture and dynamics, quality of relationship between the 
Board and Management etc. 

 The evaluation process inter alia considers attendance of 
Directors at Board and committee meetings, acquaintance 
with business, communicating inter se board members, 
effective participation, domain knowledge, compliance 
with code of conduct, vision and strategy, benchmarks 
established by global peers, etc., which is in compliance 
with applicable laws, regulations and guidelines. 

 The Board carried out annual performance evaluation of 
the Board, Board Committees and Individual Directors 
and Chairperson. The Chairman of the respective Board 
Committees shared the report on evaluation with the 
respective Committee members. The performance of each 
Committee was evaluated by the Board, based on report 
on evaluation received from respective Board Committees.

 The reports on performance evaluation of the Individual 
Directors were reviewed by the Chairman of the Board.

21. MEETINGS

 The board met four times during the financial year 2024-
25. For details of meetings of the Board, please refer to 
the Corporate Governance Report which is a part of this 
Annual Report. 

22. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

 Based on the framework of internal financial controls 
established and maintained by the Company, work 
performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial 
auditors and reviews performed by Management in 
concurrence with the Audit Committee, the Board is of the 
opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were 
adequate and effective during the financial year 2024-25

 In Compliance with section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013, the Board of Directors to the best of their knowledge 
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and hereby confirm the following:

(a)   In the preparation of the annual accounts, the 
applicable accounting standards had been followed 
along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures;

(b)  The directors had selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
company at the end of the financial year and of the 
profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c)  The directors had taken proper and sufficient 
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a 
going concern basis;

(e)  The directors had laid down internal financial controls 
to be followed by the Company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and operating 
effectively.

(f )  The directors have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems are adequate and operating 
effectively.

23. FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME 

 The details of the familiarisation programme undertaken 
have been provided in the Corporate Governance Report 
and also available on the website of the Company i.e. 
www. archidply.com

24. CODE OF CONDUCT:

 The Code lays down the standard procedure of business 
conduct which is expected to be followed by the directors 
and the designated employees in their business dealings 
and in particular on matters relating to integrity in the 
work place, in business practices and in dealing with 
stakeholders. The Code gives guidance through examples 
on the expected behavior from an employee in a given 
situation and the reporting structure.

 All the Board Members and the Senior Management 
personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code. 

25. VIGIL MECHANISM

 Your Company has established a “Vigil Mechanism” for 
its employees and directors, enabling them to report 
any concerns of unethical behavior, suspected fraud or 
violation of the Company’s ‘Code of Conduct’. To this effect, 
the Board has adopted a ‘Whistle Blower Policy’, which is 
overseen by the Audit Committee. The policy provides 
safeguards against victimisation of the Whistle Blower. 
Employees and other stakeholders have direct access 
to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee for lodging 
concerns if any, for review. The Whistle Blower Policy of 
your Company is posted on the website of the Company 
www.archidply.com 

26. AUDITORS

1. STATUTORY AUDITORS

 The Report given by M/s. GRV & PK, Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Regn. No. 008099S), Statutory Auditors on the 
financial statement of the Company for the year 2024-25 
is part of Annual Report. There has been no qualification, 
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer in their Report.

 During the year under review, there were no material or 
serious instances of fraud falling within the purview of 
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
made thereunder, by officers or employees reported by the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company during the course of 
the audit conducted and therefore no details are required 
to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(ca) of the Act.

2. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors 
of the Company had appointed M/s. Rajneesh Sharma & Co, 
Practicing Company Secretary to undertake the Secretarial 
Audit of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. The 
Secretarial Audit Report is annexed as Annexure D.

 There has been Notie received from the NSE & BSE 
imposing the fine on the Company and there have been 
the following remarks given by the Secretarial Auditors in 
their report and the management explanation as below :

Compliance 
Requirements Deviations Observations / remarks by the 

Secretarial Auditors Management Response

Regulation 17(1) 
of SEBI (LODR) 
R e g u l a t i o n s 
,2015

1)One third/Half 
of the board is not 
Independent
2) No Woman Director 
on the Board
3) No Woman 
Independent Director 
on the Board
14) Number of the board 
member is less than six

There has been delay in appointment 
of non-executive independent  
women director. The Company 
has appointed the Independent 
non -executive women Director 
Ms. Anchal Mittal With effect from 
26.04.2025. The Company has 
rectified the deviation. 
The fine of Rs. 105000(excluding of 
GST) each payable to BSE and NSE.

Ms. Shanti Mallar has completed her tenure 
on 10.03.2025 and in the next board meeting 
held on 26.042025,the new women director 
Ms.Anchal Mittal has been appointed and 
the compliance has been done. 
The Company has filed its response in 
connection with the said notices to BSE 
and NSE and seek a waiver of fines as per 
the process prescribed by BSE and NSE.
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Reg. 18(1) of 
SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations 
,2015 : 
Composition 
of Audit 
Committee

Chairperson of the 
Audit committee is not 
independent director

The Company has reconstituted 
the committees in their Board 
meeting held on 29th January, 
2025 and has complied with it.

The fine of Rs. 42000 (excluding 
of GST) each payable to BSE 
and NSE.

The Company has appointed Mr. 
Rohit Pareek, independent Director as 
Chairman.

The Company has filed its response in 
connection with the said notices to BSE 
and NSE and seek a waiver of fines as per 
the process prescribed by BSE and NSE.

Reg. 19 of 
SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations 
,2015: 
Composition of 
Nomination
and
Remuneration 
Committee

Number of members is 
less than three

The Company has reconstituted 
the committees in their Board 
meeting held on 29th January, 
2025 and has complied with it

The fine of Rs. 42000 (excluding 
of GST) each payable to BSE 
and NSE

The Company has appointed Mr. Shyam 
Daga, Non-executive  Director as 
Member 

The Company has complied with it.

The Company has filed its response in 
connection with the said notices to BSE 
and NSE and seek a waiver of fines as per 
the process prescribed by BSE and NSE.

The Company has filed its response in 
connection with the said notices to BSE 
and NSE and seek a waiver of fines as per 
the process prescribed by BSE and NSE.

 M/s. Rajneesh Sharma & Co, Practicing Company Secretary, 
had undertaken the Secretarial audit of the Company’s 
material subsidiary, Archidpanel Industries Private 
Limited, for the financial year 2024-25. The Secretarial 
Audit report confirms that the material subsidiary has 
complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
Rules, Regulations and Guidelines as applicable, and that 
there were no deviations or noncompliance. As required 
under Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the 
report of the Secretarial Audit is annexed to this report. 
The observations of Secretarial Auditors mentioned in the 
Secretarial Audit Report of said material subsidiary are self-
explanatory.

 Further, pursuant to amended Regulation 24A of SEBI 
Listing Regulations, and subject to your approval being 
sought as the ensuing AGM CS Rajneesh Sharma, 
Practicing Company Secretary (C. P. No. 24210); (Peer 
reviewed certificate no. 5544/2024) has been appointed 
as a Secretarial Auditor to undertake the Secretarial Audit 
of your Company for the first term of five consecutive 
financial years from FY 2025-26 till FY 2029.30. CS Rajneesh 
Sharma, Practicing Company Secretary has confirmed 
that he is not disqualified to be appointed as a Secretarial 
Auditor and is eligible to hold office as Secretarial Auditor 
of your Company.

3. INTERNAL AUDITOR

 The Board appointed M/s Girdhari Sharma & Company, 
Chartered Accountants as an Internal Auditor of the 
Company to carry out internal audit of branches, offices 
and manufacturing units of the Company. Internal 
auditors periodically report on the design deficiency and 
operational inefficiency, if any, apart from recommending 
further improvement measures, to accomplish the 
Company’ objectives more efficiently. The observations 
and agreed action plans are presented quarterly, to 
the Audit Committee that reviews the adequacy of the 
controls implemented by the Management.

 The Audit Committee quarterly reviews the Internal Audit 
reports.

27. CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF 
DIRECTORS 

 A certificate from M/s Rajneesh Sharma & Co. (Membership 
No. 5549, COP No. 24210), Practicing Company Secretary 
to the effect that none of the Directors of the Company 
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed 
or continuing as Directors of the Company by the Board/
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority 
is attached at the end of this report

28. SHARE REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT (R&T)

 M/s. KFin Technologies Limited (Formerly Kfin Technologies 
Private Limited) is the R&T Agent of the Company. Their 
contact details are mentioned in the Report on Corporate 
Governance.

29. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

 The Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2025 
is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed 
at www.archidply.com . 

30. BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

 Your Company has an elaborate Risk Management 
Framework, which is designed to enable risks to be 
identified, assessed and mitigated appropriately. On the 
basis of risk assessment criteria, the Company has been 
entrusted with the responsibility to assist the Board in: 

(a) Overseeing and approving the Company’s Risk 
Management Framework; and

(b)  Overseeing that all the risks that the organisation faces 
such as financial, credit, market, liquidity, security, 
property, IT, legal, regulatory, reputational and other 
risks have been identified and assessed and there is an 
adequate risk management infrastructure is in place, 
capable of addressing those risks.

31. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

 Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for the 
year under review, as stipulated under the Securities 
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and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 
Regulations”) is presented in a separate section forming 
part of the Annual Report.

32. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

 Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details 
as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 
Particulars of employees remuneration, as required under 
section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
forms a part of this report as Annexure E. Considering first 
proviso to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Annual Report, excluding the said information, was sent to 
the members of the Company and others entitled thereto. 
The said information is available for inspection at the 
registered office of the Company during working hours 
up to the date of ensuing annual general meeting. Any 
member interested in obtaining such information may 
write to the Company Secretary in this regard.

33. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY, PREVENTION OF SEXUAL 
HARRASMENT AND COMPLIANCE OF THE PROVISIONS 
RELATING TO THE MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT 1961

 The Company has always provided a congenial atmosphere 
for work to all employees that is free from discrimination 
of any kind. It has provided equal opportunities of 
employment to all without regard to the nationality, 
religion, caste, colour, language, marital status and sex. 

 The Company has also framed policy on ‘Prevention of 
Sexual Harassment’ at the workplace. We follow a gender-
neutral approach in handling complaints of sexual 
harassment and we are compliant with the law of the 
land wherever we operate. Following complaint related to 
sexual harassment during the calendar year are as follows:

(a)  number of complaints of sexual harassment received 
in the year - Nil 

(b)  number of complaints disposed off during the year - 
Nil

(c)  number of cases pending for more than ninety days – 
Nil

 This is to certify and declare that the Company has complied 
with all the applicable provisions of the Maternity Benefit 
Act, 1961 and the rules made thereunder.

34. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

 Currently, the board has four Committees: the Audit 
Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and the 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The majority of the 
members of these committees are Independent and non-
executives.

 A detailed note on the composition of the board and 
other committees is provided in the corporate governance 
report section of this Annual Report.

35. CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION

 Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, the CEO and CFO 

certification is attached with the Annual Report. The 
Managing Director & CEO and the Chief Financial Officer 
also provide quarterly certification on financial results 
while placing the financial results before the Board in 
terms of the SEBI LODR Regulations.

36. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS AND 
INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

 The Board of Directors affirms that during the Financial Year 
2024-25, the Company has complied with the applicable 
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India i.e. SS-1 and SS-2 relating to ‘Meetings 
of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’ respectively 
and approved by the Central Government under Section 
118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. In the preparation of 
the Financial Statements, the Company has also applied 
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

37. LISTING FEES

 The Equity shares of the Company are listed with Bombay 
Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE) & National Stock Exchange 
of India Limited (NSE). The annual listing fee for the year 
2025-26 was paid within the scheduled time to BSE & NSE.

38. TRANSFER OF SHARES 

 As notified under Regulation 40(1) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, except in case of transmission or transposition of 
securities, requests for effecting transfer of securities shall 
not be processed unless the securities are held in the 
dematerialised form with a depository.

39. COST RECORDS

 Considering the goods manufactured and services 
rendered by the Company, the Central Government has 
not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and hence, there was no Cost Auditor appointed by the 
Company during the year under review.

40. GENERAL

 Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is 
required in respect of the following matters as there were 
no transactions on these items during the year under 
review:

1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to 
dividend, voting or otherwise as per Section 43(a)(ii) 
of the Companies Act, 2013;

2. The Company does not have any scheme of provision 
of money for the purchase of its own shares by 
employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees;

3. Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time 
Directors of the Company receive any remuneration 
or commission from any of its subsidiaries;

4. No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the 
Audit Committee or the Board;

5. Issue of Shares including Sweat Equity Shares to the 
employees of the Company under any scheme as 
per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Companies 
Act,2013;
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6. No instances of non-exercising of voting rights in 
respect of shares purchased directly by employees 
under a scheme pursuant to Section 67(3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

7. Disclosure of reason for difference between valuation 
done at the time of taking loan from bank and at the 
time of one time settlement. There was no instance 
of onetime settlement with any Bank or Financial 
Institution.
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Annexure - A

FORM NO. AOC.1
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

1.  Name of the subsidiary: Archidpanel Industries Private Limited

2.  Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s reporting period - NA

3.  Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries - NA

4.  Share capital – Rs. 2138.20 Lakh

5.  Reserves & surplus – Rs. 3050.22 Lakh

6.  Total assets – Rs. 18708.80 Lakh

7.  Total Liabilities – Rs. 13520.38 Lakh

8.  Investments - Nil

9.  Turnover – 9483.42 Lakh

10. Profit/(Loss) before taxation – Rs. (1831.80) Lakh

11. Provision for taxation - Nil

12. Profit/(Loss) after taxation – Rs. (1523.65) Lakh

13. Proposed Dividend - Nil

14. % of shareholding - 100

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1.  Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - NA

2.  Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year - NA
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures - NA

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Name 1

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date -

-

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end -

No. -

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture -

Extend of Holding % -

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Name 1

3. Description of how there is significant influence -

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated -

5. Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet -

6. Profit / Loss for the year

i. Considered in Consolidation -

i. Not Considered in Consolidation -

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. NA
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. NA

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified.

                                                               
                                                                                                                                    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Deen Dayal Daga Rajiv Daga Atul Krishna Pandey

Chairman Managing Director & CEO Company Secretary

Place: Delhi
Date: 26.07.2025
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Annexure - B

THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL
 RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken:

ARCHIDPLY CSR VISION.

Our CSR activities will be designed to serve society, local and schools in the locations where we operate. The CSR initiatives focus on 
holistic development of host communities and create social, environmental and economic value to the society.

OVERVIEW OF ACTIVITIES:

In line with the CSR policy and in accordance of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company is planning to take
initiatives during the year which have positive impact.

Archidply has been making enduring impact through its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) programs that promote social and
economic inclusion. Archidply ‘credibly capable’ positioning has been translated in our CSR initiatives on education and community 
development. 

During the year, the company has spent Rs. 27.14 Lakh towards corporate social responsibility (CSR) under Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereon by way of contribution to schools for their development.

Details about the CSR policy is available on our website, http://www.archidply.com/.

2. COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE:

  Name of The Member Designation

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee held 

during the year

Number of
meetings of

CSR Committee
attended during

the year

Mr.Deen Dayal Daga Chairman 1 1
Mr.Rajiv Daga Member 1 1
Mrs. Shanti V. Mallar* Member 1 1
Mr. Rohit Pareek* Member 1 0
Mr.Pritam Singh Member 1 1

*Mrs. Shanti V Mallar had completed his term of 5 (five) consecutive years at the close of business hours on March 10, 2025
and hence, ceased to be an Independent Director of the Archidply Industries Limited.

*Mr. Rohit Pareek was appointed as a member in csr committee at the meeting of board directors held on January 29, 2025

3. PROVIDE THE WEB-LINK WHERE COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE, CSR POLICY AND CSR PROJECTS APPROVED BY THE 
BOARD ARE DISCLOSED ON THE WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

3.1. Composition of the CSR committee shared above and is available on the Company’s website at https://www.archidply.com/
investor-relations/.

3.2. CSR policy - https://www.archidply.com/investor-relations/

3.3 CSR projects - https://www.archidply.com/investor-relations/

4. PROVIDE THE DETAILS OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT OF CSR PROJECTS CARRIED OUT IN PURSUANCE OF SUB-RULE (3) OF 
RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY) RULES, 2014, IF APPLICABLE (ATTACH THE 
REPORT).

Not Applicable

5. DETAILS OF THE AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR SET OFF IN PURSUANCE OF SUB-RULE (3) OF RULE 7 OF THE COMPANIES
(CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY) RULES, 2014 AND AMOUNT REQUIRED FOR SET OFF FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR, IF ANY

(Rupees in Lakh)

S. No. Financial Year Amount available for set off from preceding 
financial years

Amount required to be set off for the 
financial year, if any

1. 2024-25 NIL NA

TOTAL NIL NA
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6. AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY AS PER SECTION 135(5) OF THE ACT

Average net profit: Rs. 1356.88 Lakh.

7. a. Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) of the Act

The company is required to spend Rs. 27.14 Lakh.

 (b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial  years : NIL 

 (c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any : 0.64 Lakh 

 (d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs.26.50 Lakh

8. a. CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: NIL

 Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year

Amount Unspent

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR 
Account as per Section 135(6) of the Act

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to Section 135(5) of 

the Act

Amount Date of transfer Name of the 
Fund Amount Date of transfer

16.10 lakh NIL NA -NIL NIL -

b. Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

Sr. 
No. 

Name 
of the 

Project 

Item from 
the list of 
activities 

in 
Schedule 
VII to the 

Act

Local 
area 
(Yes/
No)

Location 
of the 

project

Project 
duration

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project

Amount 
spent 
in the 

current 
financial 

year

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account for 

the project as 
per Section 

135(6) of the 
Act

Mode of 
Implementation 

- Direct (Yes/
No)

Mode of 
Implementation 

- Through 
Implementing 

Agency

Not Applicable

 c. Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(Rupees in Lakh)

Sr. 
No. 

Name 
of the 
Project 

Item from the 
list of activities 
in Schedule VII 
to the Act

Local 
area 
(Yes/
No)

Location of the 
project

Amount 
spent 
for the 
project

Mode of 
Implementation 
- Direct (Yes/No)

Mode of Implementation - 
Through Implementing Agency

State District Name
CSR 
Registration 
No

1 Not 
Applicable

Promoting 
Healthcare, 
Education, 
Environmental 
Sustainability 
Rural 
Development 
etc

No Delhi Delhi 12.00 No
Swachh 
Paryavaran 
Trust

CSR00039571

2 Not 
Applicable

Promoting 
Healthcare, 
Education, 
Environmental 
Sustainability 
Rural 
Development 
etc

No Delhi Delhi 15.00 No

Mata 
Krishnawanti 
Memorial 
Educational 
Society

CSR00006897

Total 27.00

d. Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL

e. Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NIL 

f. Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : 27.00 Lakh 

g. Excess amount for set off, if any 
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S. No. Particulars Amount

1 Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) of the Act 27.14

Amount Available for set off from FY 2023-24 0.64

2. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 26.50

3. Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0.50

4. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial 
years, if any Nil

5. Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 0.50

9. a. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sr. 
No.

Preceding 
Financial 

Year

Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR 
Account under 

Section 135 (6) of 
the Act

Amount spent 
in the reporting 

Financial Year

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 

Section 135(6) of the Act, if any

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 

financial 
years

Name of 
the Fund Amount Date of 

transfer

NIL

b. Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

Sr. No. Project ID
Name 
of the 

Project

Financial Year 
in which the 
project was 

commenced

Project 
duration

Total 
amount 

allocated 
for the 
project

Amount 
spent on 

the project 
in the 

reporting 
Financial 

Year

Cumulative 
amount 
spent at 

the end of 
reporting 

Financial Year

Status of 
the project - 
Completed / 

Ongoing

NIL

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired
through CSR spent in the financial year (asset wise details) 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) : None 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset : NIL 

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address, 
etc. : Not Applicable 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset) 
: Not Applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per Section 135(5) 
of the Act: Not Applicable

Rajiv Daga Deen Dayal Daga
Managing Director & CEO Chairperson, CSR Committee

DIN No :  01412917 DIN No :  00497806

Place: Delhi
Date: 26.07.2025



Corporate Overview | Statutory Reports | Financial Statements

27

Annexure - C

UNDER THE RULE 8 OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULE, 2014.
A. Conservation of Energy

Prevention of the wasteful use of natural resources, particularly concerning the emission of greenhouse gases, consumption 
of water and energy, and the management of waste and hazardous materials have been the key enablers in our journey of 
environmental sustainability.

Through continuously improving its manufacturing process and efficiency at its all plants and offices, the Company
continues in its endeavor to improve energy conservation and utilization.

Our emissions and waste generated are well within limits prescribed by the State Pollution Control Board.

B. Research and Development (R & D)

• Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the Company.

The Company is equipped with research and development facilities in its own unit where the professional and
experienced staff of the company regularly keep testing in the way of product improvement and process optimization 
with a view to reduce cost & increase efficiency. 

The company has its own developed adhesive resign plant & glue formation process which help in low formaldehyde 
emissions. 

• Benefit derived as a result of the above R & D:

The Company has derived the benefit of reduction in the cost of production & development of eco-friendly processes 
result in less quantity of effluent and emission.

• Future Plan of action:

R&D will focus on products leading to further cost reduction and reduced load on environment.

• Expenditure on R & D

No capital expenditure is done towards the R&D. The Company continuously incurs expenses for improving the
processes, product quality, etc. they cannot be specifically identified as research & development expenses. Thus, the
same has not been shown separately.

TECHNOLOGY,ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION.

• Efforts in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation.

The Company has continued its endeavor to absorb the best of technologies for its product range from various
sources, such as know-how from its associate Companies, their own data bank, published literature etc. It also actively 
participates in relevant standards bodies and forums. This helps increase the knowledge base within the Company,
and enhances the ability of the Company

Your Company continues to track trends and latest developments in various technology areas. Your Company also
undertakes continuous quality improvement programs to help increase efficiencies and productivity.

• Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts.

Benefits derived from these efforts include process rationalization, product quality improvement, and environmental
friendly.

• Imported technology

There is no imported technology during the year.

C. Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo

Earnings: Rs. 985.70 Lakh 

Outgo: On account of Raw materials, Stores, Capital Goods, Foreign Travelling and Sales Promotions Rs.1096.68 Lakh. 

For and on behalf of the Board of 
           Archidply Industries Limited

  Deen Dayal Daga
(Chairman)

Place: Delhi
Date: 26.07.2025
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Annexure - D

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED: 31.03.2025.

To,

The Members, 
ARCHIDPLY INDUSTRIES LIMITED,
Plot No 7, Sector-9, Integrated Industrial Estate, Sidcul, Pant Nagar,
Rudrapur Udham Singh Nagar Uttarakhand - 263153  
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by ARCHIDPLY INDUSTRIES LIMITED (CIN:L85110UR1995PLC008627) (hereinafter called the company) 
for the year ended March 31, 2025. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us with a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the company and also the information provided by the Company, to the extent the information provided by the Company, 
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during  the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the company has, during the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 (the audit period) generally complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder except as mentioned hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

Compliance 
Requirements

Deviations Observations by the Secretarial 
Auditor

Remarks

Regulation 17(1) 
of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations ,2015

1)One third/Half of the 
board is not Independent
2) No Woman Director on 
the Board
3) No Woman Independent 
Director on the Board
4) Number of the board 
member is less than six

There has been delay in appointment of non-
executive independent  women director. The 
Company has appointed the Independent 
non -executive women Director Ms. Anchal 
Mittal With effect from 26.04.2025. The 
Company has rectified the deviation. 
The fine of Rs. 105000(excluding of GST) 
each payable to BSE and NSE.

The Company has filed 
its response in this 
connection with the said 
notices to BSE and NSE 
and seeking a waiver of 
fines as per the process 
prescribed by BSE and 
NSE.

Reg. 18(1) of 
SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations ,2015 
: Composition of 
Audit Committee

Chairperson of the 
Audit committee is not 
independent director

The Company has reconstituted the 
committees in their Board meeting held 
on 29th January, 2025 and has complied 
with it. 

The fine of Rs. 42000 (excluding of GST) 
each payable to BSE and NSE.

The Company has 
appointed Mr. Rohit 
Pareek, independent 
Director as Chairman.
The Company has 
complied with it.
The Company has filed 
its response in this 
connection with the said 
notices to BSE and NSE and 
seeking a waiver of fines as 
per the process prescribed 
by BSE and NSE.

Reg. 19 of 
SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations ,2015: 
Composition of 
Nomination
and
Remuneration 
Committee

Number of members is 
less than three

The Company has reconstituted the 
committees in their Board meeting held 
on 29th January, 2025 and has complied 
with it.

The fine of Rs. 42000 (excluding of GST) 
each payable to BSE and NSE

The Company has 
appointed Mr. Shyam 
Daga, Non-executive  
Director as Member.
The Company has 
complied with it.
The Company has filed 
its response in this 
connection with the said 
notices to BSE and NSE and 
seeking a waiver of fines as 
per the process prescribed 
by BSE and NSE.
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I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records maintained by the Company during 
the audit period according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings: There were no FEMA provisions applicable
during the Audit period.

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not Applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period);

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Act and dealing with client;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period); and

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period)

vi. Other than fiscal, labour and environmental laws, which are generally applicable to all manufacturing companies the
following laws / acts are also inter alia, applicable to the Company:

a. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

b. Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution), Act, 1974

c. The Legal Metrology Act, 2009

d. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution), Act, 1981

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors
and General Meeting.

b. SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 2015 for the year ended 31st March 2025 with Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above except deviations as stated above with respect to SEBI (LODR). 2015.

I have not examined compliance by the Company with:

a. Applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, since the same have been subject to review by statutory
financial audit and other designated professionals.

I further report that :

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with a proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors except as stated above. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 
took place, if any during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
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agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous, 
and no dissenting views have been recorded.

There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period:

a. The company during the financial year spent Rs. 27.00 lakhs as a CSR Expenditure. 

a. There was no other event / action having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred 
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc.

b. The Members of the Company, have on June 01, 2025, vide Ordinary Resolution passed through Postal Ballot by means 
of remote e- voting approved the appointment of Mrs. Anchal Mittal (DIN: 00721306) as an Independent Director of
the Company to hold office for a term of five consecutive years i.e., from 26th April, 2025 up to 25th April, 2030..

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.

For RAJNEESH SHARMA & CO, 
COMPANY SECRETARIES

(RAJNEESH SHARMA) 
Proprietor 
FCS: 5549; CP No: 24210
UDIN: F005549G000867685
PR No. 5544/2024

Place: Udaipur 
Date: 26th July , 2025
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ANNEXURE – A

(To the Secretarial Audit Report)

To
The Members,
Archidply Industries Limited
Plot No 7, Sector-9, Integrated Industrial Estate, Sidcul, Pant Nagar,
Rudrapur Udham Singh Nagar Uttarakhand - 263153 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate, to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness 
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on a test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected
in the secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed, provide are as on able basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
happening of events etc.

5. Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the 
Management. My examination is limited to the verification of procedures on a test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness 
with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For RAJNEESH SHARMA & CO, 
COMPANY SECRETARIES

 (RAJNEESH SHARMA) 
Proprietor 
FCS: 5549; CP No: 24210
UDIN: F005549G000867685
PR No. 5544/2024

Place: Udaipur 
Date: 26th July , 2025
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Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED: 31.03.2025

To,

The Members, 
ARCHIDPANEL INDUSTRIES PRIVATE LIMITED,
Plot No 7, Sector-9, Integrated Industrial Estate, Sidcul, Pant Nagar,
Rudrapur Udham Singh Nagar Uttarakhand - 263153 
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by ARCHIDPANEL INDUSTRIES PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN: U20299UR2022PTC013589) (hereinafter called the company) for 
the year ended March 31, 2025. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct 
of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended 
on 31st March, 2025 complied with the applicable statutory provisions and adhered to good corporate practices and also that the 
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company during the 
audit period according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; (not applicable to the Company during 
the period under review)

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings: There were no FEMA provisions applicable during 
the Audit period.

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) (not 
applicable as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company):- 

(a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

(c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; 

(e)  The Securities Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; 

(f )  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the 
Companies Act and dealing with client; 

(g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; 

(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

vi. Other than fiscal, labour and environmental laws which are generally applicable to all manufacturing companies the following laws 
/ acts are also inter alia, applicable to the Company:

a. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

b. Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution), Act, 1974

c. The Legal Metrology Act, 2009

d. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution), Act, 1981

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General 
Meeting.
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b. SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 2015 for the year ended 31st March 2025 with Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, 
etc. mentioned above.

I have not examined compliance by the Company with:

a. Applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit
and other designated professionals.

I further report that :

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place, if any during the period under review 
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven 
days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous and no 
dissenting views have been recorded.

There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and 
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period:

The following specific events / actions having major bearing on the Company’s affairs had taken place:

a. The company during the financial year allotted 49,82,000 Equity Shares  of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 40/- per shares,
aggregating to Rs. 24,91,00,000/-, on Rights basis to Archidply Industries Limited, Holding Company

b. There was no other event / action having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 
regulations, guidelines etc.

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report

For RAJNEESH SHARMA & CO, 
COMPANY SECRETARIES

(RAJNEESH SHARMA) 
Proprietor 
FCS: 5549; CP No: 24210
UDIN: F005549G000867731
PR No. 5544/2024

Place: Udaipur 
Date: 26th July , 2025
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ANNEXURE – A

(To the Secretarial Audit Report)

To
The Members,
Archidpanel Industries Private Limited
Plot No 7, Sector-9, Integrated Industrial Estate, Sidcul, Pant Nagar, 
Rudrapur Udham Singh Nagar Uttarakhand - 263153 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate, to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness 
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
the secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed, provide are as on able basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.

5. Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the 
Management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness 
with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For RAJNEESH SHARMA & CO, 
COMPANY SECRETARIES

 (RAJNEESH SHARMA) 
Proprietor 
FCS: 5549; CP No: 24210
UDIN: F005549G000867731
PR No. 5544/2024

Place: Udaipur 
Date: 26th July , 2025
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Annexure - E TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Particulars Pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules made thereunder:

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the
Financial year:

Executive Directors Ratio to Median Remuneration

Mr. Deen Dayal Daga 7.78

Mr. Rajiv Daga 13.37

(ii) Percentage increase in the remuneration of the Directors, Managing Director & CEO, CFO and Company Secretary in the
Financial Year:

Directors, Managing Director& CFO, Joint Managing Director & CEO and 
Company Secretary

% increase in the remuneration 
in the Financial year

Mr. Deen Dayal Daga, Chairman 00.00%

Mr. Rajiv Daga, Managing Director & CEO 10.00 %

Mr. Anil Sureka, CFO 10.00 %

Mr. Atul Krishna Pandey, Company Secretary 40.00%

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 10%

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company: 397

(v) Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
Financial Year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and 
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: Average remuneration of 
employees (non-managerial) increased by 10 % (including the promotional increase) in FY25 and for managerial employees 
average remuneration increased by 9.65% in FY25.

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company: It is affirmed that the remuneration
paid is as per the Remuneration Policy, applicable for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees, adopted
by the Company.

(vii) Details of employee Employed throughout the financial year was in receipt of remuneration for that year which in the
aggregate, was not less than One Crore and Two lakh rupees: NIL.

(viii) Details of employees Employed for a part of the financial year who were in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year 
at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than Eight Lakhs and Fifty Thousand rupees per month: NIL.

(ix) Details of employees employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year
which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing 
director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less 

than two percent of the equity shares of the company: NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Deen Dayal Daga      

(Chairman)

Place: Delhi
Date: 26.07.2025
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REPORT ON 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
[Pursuant to Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
“Listing Regulations”]

The detailed report on Corporate Governance for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, as per regulation 34(3) read with 
Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is set out below:

Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance

Archidply believe that good Corporate Governance emerges from the application of best management practices and 
compliance with the laws coupled with the highest standard of integrity, accountability and ethics in all business matter. Our 
corporate structure, business and disclosure practices have been aligned to our Corporate Governance Philosophy. Transparency, 
accountability, fairness and stakeholders are integral to our functioning

Board of Directors:  

The Board of Director comprises of member from diversified fields and having varied skills, vast experience and knowledge. 
The Board consists of six members including two Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Directors and three Non-Executive 
Independent Directors. Composition of the Board of your Company is in conformity with Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulation 2015. 

The Board being aware of its fiduciary responsibility recognizes its responsibilities towards all stakeholder to uphold highest 
standard in all matter concerning the Company. It has empowered responsible person to implement its board policies, 
guidelines and has set up adequate review process. The Board provides strategic guidance on the affair of the Company. The 
Independent Director provides independent and objective judgment on matters placed before them.

Board Composition & Categories.

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The Board 
of Directors comprises 6 Directors out of which 4 Directors are Non-executive Directors as on 31.03.2025. The Company has an 
Executive Chairman and not less than half of the total strength of the Board comprises of Independent Directors. The Company 
has three Independent Directors. None of the Directors on the Company’s Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and 
Chairman of more than 5 Committees across all the Companies in which they were Director as on 31.03.2025. All the Directors 
have made necessary disclosures regarding committee positions occupied by them in other Companies. 

During the year under review, none of the Independent Directors on the Board of the Company had resigned.

There is no pecuniary relationship or transaction of the Non-executive Directors with the Company.

During the year, 4 (four) Board Meetings were held on 20.05.2024, 13.08.2024, 12.11.2024, and 29.01.2025. There has not been a 
time gap in excess of four months between any two meetings of the Board of Directors.

The requisite information as enumerated as per the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 
is made available to the Board of Directors for discussion and consideration at Board Meetings. The composition of the Board, 
attendance at Board Meetings (BM) held during the financial year (FY) under review and at last Annual General Meeting (AGM) 
and number of Directorships and Memberships/ Chairmanships in other Public Companies are given below:

Name of the 
Director

(Designation)

(Designation) &
Category

FY 2024-25
Attendance at

No. Of 
Other 

Director- 
ships
Held*

No. of Committee 
Positions held

This 
Company

Other 
CompanyBM Last 

AGM

Mr. Deendayal Daga Executive Chairman – 
Promoter Director 4 YES 5 1 Nil

Mr. Rajiv Daga Managing Director & CEO – 
Promoter Director 4 YES 4 3 1

Mr. Shyam Daga Non- Executive Director 
- Promoter Director 1 - 3 Nil 2

Mrs. Shanti V. Mallar** Non-Executive Independent 
Director 4 YES Nil 4 Nil

Mr. Pritam Singh Non-Executive Independent 
Director 4 YES 1 4 Nil

Mrs. Anchal Mittal*** Non-Executive Independent 
Director - - 1 - -

Mr. Rohit Pareek*** Non-Executive Independent 
Director 4 yes 3 4 Nil
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* No of other Directorships held includes private limited and public limited company.
** Mrs. Shanti V. Mallar has completed his tenure as an Independent Director of the Company as on March 10, 2025
*** Ms. Anchal Mittal Appointed as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f 26.04.2025
In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, one-third Directors of the 
Company, liable to retire by rotation retires at every Annual General Meeting. In the ensuing Annual General Meeting Mr. Deen
Dayal Daga (Whole Time Director - Promoter Director) is liable to retire by rotation. Information as required under SEBI (LODR)
Regulation 2015 on director’s appointed/reappointed at this Annual General Meeting is annexed to the Notice of the Annual
General Meeting.

The number of other listed entity’s Board(s) or Board Committees in which the Directors are member/ chairperson and name of 
other Listed Companies along with Category of Directorship as on March 31, 2025 are as follows:

Name of the Director
(Designation)

No. of outside
directorship held

Name of other Listed
Companies and 

Category of
Directorship

No. of outside committees*
(in public limited companies)

Member Chairman
Public Private

Mr. Deen Dayal Daga
(Executive Chairman) 1 3 Nil 0 0

Mr. Rajiv Daga
(Managing Director & CEO) 2 2

Archidply Decor 
Limited : Non-

Executive Director
1 0

Mr. Mr. Shyam Daga
(Non- Executive Director ) 2 3

Archidply Decor 
Limited : Executive 

Chairman & Managing 
Director

2 0

Mrs. Shanthi Vardraj Mallar 
(Independent Director) 0      0 Nil 0 0

Mr. Pritam Singh
(Independent Director) 0 1 Nil 0 0

Mr. Rohit Pareek
(Independent Director) 1 2 0 0 0

* Membership/Chairmanship of Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee has only been considered.

The number of Directorships, Committee Membership(s) / Chairmanship(s) of all Directors is within respective limits prescribed 
under the Act and Listing Regulations.

Performance evaluation of Board & Directors: 

The Board is responsible for undertaking a formal annual evaluation of its own performance, that of its Committees and of 
Individual Directors as per Section 134 of Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with a view to review their functioning and effectiveness and also for identifying possible 
paths for improvement. During the year, the Board in concurrence with Nomination and Remuneration Committee carried out 
a performance evaluation of itself, its Committees, and each of the Executive/ Non-Executive/ Independent Directors through 
questionnaire. 

The Independent Directors were evaluated on various performance indicators including aspects relating to:

• Integrity and maintenance of confidentiality.
• Commitment and participation at the Board & Committee
• Effective deployment of knowledge and expertise
• Exercise of objective independent judgement in the best interest of Company
• Interpersonal relationships with other directors and management

 The board and committee were evaluated on the following parameters:

• Size, structure and expertise of the Board.
• Review of strategies, risk assessment, robust policies and procedures by Board.
• Oversight of the financial reporting process & monitoring company’s internal control system, quality of agenda, conduct of

meeting, procedures and process followed for effective discharge of functions.
• Effective discharge of functions and duties by Committee as per terms of reference, appropriateness and timeliness of the

updates given on regulatory developments.
• Board’s engagement with Senior Management team.
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• The Chairperson had an individual discussion with each director based on the peer analysis.

Meeting of Independent Directors:

A separate meeting of Independent Directors for the Financial Year 2024-25 as per SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015 was held on 29th 
January 2025, wherein the Independent Directors reviewed the performance of the Executive Directors and evaluation of Board 
and other matters. All the Independent Directors were present at the meeting.

Details of Familiarisation programme to Independent Directors: 

Regulation 25(7) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Schedule IV of the Companies 
Act, 2013 mandates the Company to familiarise the Independent Directors with the Company by conducting training 
programmes. During the year, the Board members were regularly apprised with the overview of the Company and its operations 
by the Senior Management team. The Board was also regularly appraised of all regulatory and policy changes.

The familiarisation policy including details of familiarisation programmes attended by Independent Directors during the year 
ended March 31, 2025 is posted on the website of the Company i.e. www.archidply.com.

Confirmation that in the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Independent Directors of the Company fulfils the conditions 
specified in the SEBI Listing Regulations and are independent of the management of the Company:

Based on the declaration of independency pursuant to Section 149(6) of the Act, and Listing Regulations, received from each of 
the Independent Directors of the Company, it is confirmed by the Board of Directors that Mrs. Shanti Mallar Varadaraj, Mr. Pritam 
Singh,Ms. Anchal Mittal and Mr. Rohit Pareek, Independent Directors of the Company fulfils the conditions specified in SEBI Listing 
Regulations and are independent of the management.

Board Membership Criteria and list of core skills/expertise/competencies identified in the context of the business:

In terms of requirement of Listing Regulations, the Board has identified the following skills/expertise/competencies of the 
Directors as given below:

Skills and its description
Deen 
Dayal 
Daga

Rajiv 
Daga

Shyam 
Daga

Anchal 
Mittal

Shanti 
Mallar 
Varadaraj

Pritam 
Singh 

Rohit 
Pareek

Experience of crafting Business 
Strategies
Experience in developing 
long-term strategies to grow 
consumer/dealer business,
consistently, profitably, 
competitively and in a 
sustainable manner in diverse
business environments and 
changing economic conditions

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Finance and Accounting 
Experience:

Leadership experience in 
handling financial management 
of a organization along with an 
understanding of accounting 
and financial statements

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes

Leadership experience of 
running  enterprise:

Experience in leading well-
governed organisations, with an 
understanding of organisational 
systems and processes complex 
business and regulatory 
environment, strategic 
planning and risk management, 
understanding of emerging 
local and global trends and 
management of accountability 
and performance

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
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HR/ people
Orientation:
 Understanding of HR Policies
) Managing HR activities, talent
development and strengthening 
the people function

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Understanding of Consumer and 
Customer Insights in diverse
environments and conditions –
Experience of having managed 
organisations with consumer/
dealers
interface in diverse business 
environments and economic 
conditions which helps in 
leveraging consumer/dealers 
insights for business benefits.

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Disclosures of relationships between Directors inter-se:

Name of the Director
(Designation) Category

Relationship with Directors

Mr. Deen Dayal Daga
(Executive Chairman) Promoter Father of Mr. Rajiv Daga & Mr. Shyam Daga

Mr. Rajiv Daga
(Managing Director & CEO) Promoter Mr. Shyam Daga ( Brother)

Mr. Deen Dayal Daga (Father)
Mr. Shyam Daga
(Non - Executive Director) Promoter Mr. Rajiv Daga ( Brother)

Mr. Deen Dayal Daga (Father)
Mrs. Anchal Mittal (Director) Independent None

Mrs. Shanti V. Mallar (Director) Independent None
Mr. Pritam Singh 
(Director) Independent None

Mr. Rohit Pareek
(Director) Independent None

CONFIRMATION AS REGARDS INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Board confirms that based on the written affirmations from each Independent Director, all Independent Directors fulfil the 
conditions specified for independence as stipulated in the Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations, as amended, read with 
Section 149(6) of the Act along with rules framed thereunder and are independent of the Management.

Further, none of the Directors are related to each other.

Composition of Board Committee

The Board has constituted various Committees to support the Board in discharging its responsibilities. There are four Committees 
constituted by the Board 

• Audit Committee

• Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

• Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

• Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

The Company’s guidelines relating to Board meetings are applicable to Committee meetings as far as practicable.

Each Committee has the authority to engage outside experts, advisors and counsels to the extent it considers appropriate to assist 
in its functions. Senior officers/ functional heads of Company are invited to present various details called for by the Committee 
in its meeting. Minutes of proceedings of Committee meetings are circulated to the Directors and placed before Board meetings 
for noting. The recommendations of the Committees are submitted to the Board for approval.

Audit Committee

Terms of Reference:

(i) Brief description of terms of reference:

The powers, role and terms of reference of the audit Committee are in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies 
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Act 2013, and regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) 2015. 

The primary objective of the Committee is to monitor and provide an effective supervision of the Management’s financial 
reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures with the highest levels of transparency, integrity and quality of 
financial reporting. The Committee oversees the work carried out in the financial reporting process by the Management, the 
internal auditors and the independent auditors and notes the processes and safeguards employed by each of them.

The Committee also reviews the functioning of whistle blower & Vigil mechanism, adequacy and effectiveness of internal audit 
function, risk management and control systems and results of operation.

(ii) Business Risk Evaluation and Management

The overview of the risk management policy is also done by the Audit Committee.

Business Risk Evaluation and Management is an ongoing process within the Organization. The Company has a robust risk 
management framework to identify, monitor and minimize risks as also identify business opportunities.

The objectives and scope of the Audit Committee regarding the Risk Management broadly comprise of;

1. Oversight of risk management performed by the executive management;

2. Reviewing the BRM policy and framework in line with local legal requirements and SEBI guidelines;

3. Reviewing risks and evaluate treatment including initiating mitigation actions and ownership as per a pre-defined cycle;

4. Defining framework for identification, assessment, monitoring, and mitigation and reporting of risks.

5. Within its overall scope as aforesaid, the Committee shall review risks trends, exposure, and potential impact analysis and
mitigation plan.

(iii) WHISTLE-BLOWER POLICY

The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism for reporting illegal or 
unethical behaviour. The Company has a Vigil Mechanism and Whistle-blower policy under which the employees are free to 
report violations of applicable laws and regulations and the Code of Conduct. The reportable matters may be disclosed to the 
Ethics and Compliance Task Force which operates under the supervision of the Audit Committee. Employees may also report to 
the Chairman of the Audit Committee. During the year under review, no employee was denied access to the Audit Committee.

(iv) PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING

With a view to regulate trading in securities by the directors and designated employees, the Company has adopted a Code of 
Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading.

Audit Committee is also responsible for giving the guidance & directions under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015

• Meeting, Composition, designation, Category and Attendance thereof:

The Committee met 4 times during the FY 2024-25 on 20.05.2024, 13.08.2024, 12.11.2024, and 29.01.2025. The attendance and 
Composition of meetings is as under:

S. No Name of Director Designation Category No. of meetings 
attended

1 Mr. Rohit Pareek Chairman Non Executive, 
Independent 4

2 Mr. Rajiv Daga Member Executive, Promoter 4

3. Mrs. Shanti V. Mallar* Member Non Executive, 
Independent 4

4. Mr. Pritam Singh Member Non Executive, 
Independent 4

5. Mr. Kamal Karnani Statutory Auditor Statutory Auditor 4

6. Mr. Atul Krishna Pandey Secretary to the 
Committee Company Secretary 4

*Mrs. Shanti V. Mallar has completed his tenure as an Independent Director of the Company as on March 10, 2025. Ms. Anchal Mittal Appointed as an member 

w.e.f 26.04.2025

Nomination & Remuneration Committee: 
(
i) Brief description of terms of reference:

The terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee are in line with the provisions of section 178 of the 
Companies Act and Regulation 19 SEBI (LODR) 2015.

The purpose of the Committee is to oversee the nomination process for top-level management positions and review executive 
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remuneration structure. The Committee identifies, screens and reviews individuals qualified to serve as executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent directors consistent with criteria approved by the Board and recommends, for approval by 
the Board, nominees for election at the AGM.

• Meeting, Composition, designation, Category and Attendance thereof:

During the year 2024-25, 1 meetings of Committee was held on 29.01.2025. Mrs. Shanti V. Mallar has completed her tenure 

as member of the committee as on March 10, 2025. The Composition and other details of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee of the Company are as follows:

S. No Name of Director Designation Category No. of meetings 
attended

1 Mr. Pritam Singh Chairman Non Executive, 
Independent Director 1

2 Mr. Rohit Pareek Member Non Executive, 
Independent Director 1

3 Mrs. Shanti V. Mallar Member Non Executive, 
Independent Director 1

4
        Mr. Shyam Daga

w.e.f 29.01.2025
       Member Non Executive,

Director
1

• Details of Remuneration paid to Directors:

Payment to Non-Executive Directors

Non-executive Directors are paid the sitting fees for attending the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings: 

(In Rs.)

Name of Directors Sitting fees 

Mr. M.S. Aftab 35000

Mrs. Shanti V. Mallar 140000

Mr. Pritam Singh 140000

Mr. Rohit Pareek 140000

Pecuniary relations or transactions of the Non-Executive Directors.

There were no pecuniary relationship or transactions of non-executive directors vis- a-vis the Company. 

Payment to Executive Directors

All elements of remuneration package i.e. salary, benefits, bonuses, etc. paid to Executive Directors are  (Per Year)

Name of Director Basic Salary HRA Total

Mr. Deen Dayal Daga 2400000 1440000 3840000

Mr. Rajiv Daga 4537500 2722500 7260000

i. No commission is payable to the Executive Directors.

ii. No sitting fee is paid to Executive Directors for attending the meeting of Board of Directors of the Company or committees
thereof.

iii. There is no separate provision for payment of severance fees.

The details of shares held by the Executive and Non-Executive Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2025 are as follows:

Name of the Director
(Designation) Category Shares Held

Mr. Deen Dayal Daga
(Executive Chairman) Promoter 771620

Mr. Rajiv Daga
(Managing Director & CEO) Promoter 651342

Mr. Mr. Shyam Daga
(Non-Executive Director) Promoter 573685

Mrs. Mrs. Shanti Mallar Varadaraj 
(Director) Independent None
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Mr. Pritam Singh 
(Director) Independent None

Mr. Rohit Pareek 
(Director) Independent None

POLICY FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has adopted a Charter which, inter alia, deals with the manner of selection of 
Board of Directors and CEO & Managing Director and their remuneration. This Policy is accordingly derived from the said Charter.

CRITERIA OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Considering the requirement of skill sets on the Board, eminent people having an independent standing in their respective field/
profession, and who can effectively contribute to the Company’s business and policy decisions are considered by the Human 
Resources, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, for appointment, as Independent Director on the Board. The Committee, 
inter alia, considers qualification, positive attributes, area of expertise and number of Directorships and Memberships held in 
various committees of other companies by such persons in accordance with the Company’s Policy for Selection of Directors and 
determining Directors’ independence. The Board considers the Committee’s recommendation, and takes appropriate decision. 
Every Independent Director, at the first meeting of the Board in which he participates as a Director and thereafter at the first 
meeting of the Board in every financial year, gives a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence as provided under law.

REMUNERATION

The Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees, reimbursement of expenses 
for participation in the Board meetings.

A Non-Executive Director shall be entitled to receive sitting fees for each meeting of the Board attended by him, of such 
sum as may be approved by the Board of Directors within the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

REMUNERATION OF CHAIRPERSON

The N&RC recommends the remuneration of the Executive Chairperson to the Board which considered and approved by the 
Board subject to Shareholders’ and regulatory approvals. The N&RC, while recommending the remuneration of the Chairperson 
considers the following factors:

(a) Function, Role and Responsibilities of the Chairperson,

(b) Comparison with the peer Companies,

(c) Industry benchmarking,

(d) Regulatory guidelines as applicable, etc

The remuneration payable to the Chairperson is subject to prior approval of the Board. Therefore, the remuneration or any 
revision in remuneration of the Chairperson is payable only after receipt of the approval from Board and Shareholder approval.

CEO & Managing Director - Criteria for selection / appointment

For the purpose of selection of the CEO & MD, the N&R Committee shall identify persons of integrity who possess relevant 
expertise, experience and leadership qualities required for the position and shall take into consideration recommendation, 
if any, received from any member of the Board.

The Committee will also ensure that the incumbent fulfills such other criteria with regard to age and other qualifications as 
laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable laws.

Remuneration for the CEO & Managing Director

At   the   time   of   appointment   or re-appointment, the CEO & Managing Director shall be paid such remuneration as may 
be mutually agreed between the Company (which includes the N&R Committee and the Board of Directors) and the CEO & 
Managing Director within the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

The remuneration shall be subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in General Meeting.

The remuneration of the CEO & Managing Director comprises only of fixed   component. The fixed component comprises 
salary, allowances, perquisites, amenities and retrial benefits.

Remuneration Policy for the Senior Management Employees.

In determining the remuneration of the Senior Management Employees (i.e. KMPs and Executive Committee Members) the N&R 
Committee shall ensure the relation- ship of remuneration and performance benchmark is clear.
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The Managing Director will carry out the individual performance review based on the standard appraisal matrix and shall take 
into account the appraisal score card and other factors mentioned herein-above, whilst recommending the annual increment 
and performance incentive to the N&R Committee for its review and approval.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct ('the Code') applicable to the Directors and employees. The Code is 
applicable to Non-Executive Directors including Independent Directors to such extent as may be applicable to them depending 
on their roles and responsibilities. The Code gives guidance and support needed for ethical conduct of business and compliance 
of law. The Code reflects the values of the Company viz. Customer Value, Ownership Mind-set, Respect, Integrity, One Team and 
Excellence.

A copy of the Code has been put up on the Company’s website and can be accessed at http://www.archidply.com/
InvestorRelations/Downloads.aspx. The Code has been circulated to Directors and Management Personnel, and its compliance 
is affirmed by them annually.

A declaration signed by the Company’s Managing Director & CEO is published in this Report

COMPLIANCE

The Company Secretary, while preparing the agenda, notes on agenda and minutes of the meeting(s), is responsible for and is 
required to ensure adherence to all applicable laws and regulations, including the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued 
thereunder, as applicable and Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India.

MD & CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company give Quarterly and annual certification on financial 
reporting and internal controls to the Board in terms of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations. The Managing Director and 
the Chief Financial Officer also give quarterly certification on financial results while placing the financial results before the Board 
in terms of Regulation 33(2) of the Listing Regulations. The annual certificate given by the Managing Director and the Chief 
Financial Officer is published in this Report.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS

Archidply has not issued any Employee Stock Option during F.Y 2024-25.

Stakeholder Relationship Committee: 

(i) Brief description of terms of reference:

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are in line with the provisions of section 178 of the Companies 
Act 2013 and Regulation 20 SEBI (LODR) 2015.

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is primarily responsible for redressal of shareholders’ / investors’ / security holders’ 
grievances including complaints related to transfer of shares, non-receipt of declared dividends, annual reports etc. The 
Committee’s terms of reference also include allotment of equity shares to option grantees under the prevailing ESOP Scheme of 
the Company.

• Meeting, Composition, designation, Category and Attendance thereof: 

The Committee met four times during the FY 2024-25 on 20.05.2024, 13.08.2024, 12.11.2024, and 29.01.2025. The attendance 
and Composition of meetings is as under:

S. No Name of Director Designation Category No. of meetings 
attended

1 Mr. Rohit Parrek Chairman Non Executive, 
Independent 4

2 Mr. Pritam Singh Member Non Executive, 
Independent 4

3 Mr. Rajiv Daga Member Managing Director 4

4. Mrs. Shanti V. Mallar* Member Non Executive, 
Independent 4

The shares of the Company are being compulsorily traded in dematerialized form. Shares in physical form, received for transfer/
dematerialization, were transferred/dematerialized within a period of 21 days from the date of lodgement of valid share transfer 
deed along with share certificate. These requests are processed through the Company’s Registrar and share transfer Agent i.e. 
Kfin Technologies Limited.

The Company has taken various steps to ensure that the shareholders- related matters are given due priority and the 
matters/issues raised are resolved at the earliest.
*Mrs. Shanti V. Mallar has completed his tenure as an Independent Director of the Company as on March 10, 2025. Ms. Anchal Mittal 
Appointed as an member w.e.f 26.04.2025
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During the year 2024-25 - No Complaints was received.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY (CSR) COMMITTEE:

(i) Brief description of terms of reference:

The terms of reference of the Committee are in line with the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Committee’s prime responsibility is to assist the Board in discharging its social responsibilities by way of formulating, 
monitoring and implementing a framework in line with the corporate social responsibility policy of the Company. The details of 
the CSR policy & other details available on the website of the Company www.archidply.com

The terms of reference of the Committee are:

 a. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, which shall indicate the activities to be 
undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013;

 b. To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities; and

 c. To monitor from time to time the CSR Policy of the Company.

• Meeting, Composition, designation, Category and Attendance thereof:

The committee met 1 time during the financial year ended March 31, 2025 on 20.05.2024.

S. No Name of Director Designation Category No. of meetings 
attended

1. Mr. Deen Dayal Daga Chairman Executive, Promoter 1

2. Mr. Rajiv Daga Member Executive, Promoter 1

3. Mr. Pritam Singh Member Non Executive, Independent 1

4. Mrs. Shanti V. Mallar upto 10.03.25 Member Non Executive, Independent 1

General Body Meetings i. Details of the location and time of the last three AGM’s (Annual General meeting) held:

Year Location Date Time
No of Special 
Resolution (s) 

passed

2024 Plot no. 7, Sector-9, IIE SIDCUL Pantnagar, Rudrapur, 
Udham Singh Nagar, Uttrakhand -263153 25-09-2024 12:30 AM 0

2023 Plot no. 7, Sector-9, IIE SIDCUL Pantnagar, Rudrapur, 
Udham Singh Nagar, Uttrakhand -263153 28-09-2023 11:30 AM 1

2022 Plot no. 7, Sector-9, IIE SIDCUL Pantnagar, Rudrapur, 
Udham Singh Nagar, Uttrakhand -263153 30-09-2022 11:30 AM 1

 The following Special Resolution was taken up in the last three Annual General Meetings.

 Revision of remuneration of Mr. Rajiv Daga (DIN:01412917).

 Change in designation of Mr. Shyam Daga (DIN: 0056180) from Executive Director to Non-Executive Director, effective from 
1st October, 2022.

 Authorise board to borrow.

 Increase the limits for Loan/Guarantee / Security / Investments

 Loan to directors, Etc

Extra Ordinary General Meeting

During the Financial Year 2024-25, no Extra Ordinary General Meeting was held.

Postal Ballot:

During the FY 2024-25 and as on the date of this Report, the Company passed one special resolutions through e-voting 
conducted by way of Postal Ballot.

5.         Mr. Rohit Pareek w.e.f 29.01.2025    Member                                      Non Executive, Independent                        0
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1. Details of Special resolutions passed on June 01, 2025, as set out in the Postal Ballot Notice dated April 26, 2025, result 
of which was declared on June 02, 2025;

S. No. Special Resolution Passed
Vote casted in favour Vote casted against

Number of 
votes % of Votes Number of 

votes % of Votes

1

To approve the appointment of Mrs. 
Anchal Mittal (DIN: 00721036) as 
non-executive
Independent Women Director of the 
Company

13385400 99.996 535 0.004

Particulars For Postal Ballot Activity by E-Voting process Number 1. as 
referred above

Relevant provisions under which postal 
ballot activity carried out

In compliance with provisions of Sections 108 and 110 and other 
applicable provisions of the Act, read with Rules 20 and 22 of 
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 
(“the Rules”), as amended from time to time, and in accordance 
with the General Circulars issued by the MCA vide Nos.14/2020, 
17/2020, 22/2020, 33/2020, 39/2020, 10/2021 20/2021, 03/2022 and 
11/2022dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, June 15, 2020, September 
28, 2020, December 31, 2020, June 23, 2021 December 8, 2021, May 5, 
2022 and December 28, 2022 respectively, issued by MCA on account 
of the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the Company extended only 
the remote e-voting facility for its Shareholders, to enable them to 
cast their votes electronically instead of submitting the postal ballot 
form.

Agency engaged for providing remote 
e-voting /e-voting facility

The Company availed the services of Kfin Technologies Limited for the 
purpose of providing e-voting facility to all its Shareholders.

Newspaper Advertisement 

Prior to dispatch of notice of postal ballot, the details pertaining to 
forthcoming event i.e. Postal Ballot and requesting the shareholders 
to register their E-mail ID’s with the Company/DP’s , was  published 
in the newspaper ‘Financial Express’ in English (all India editions)  and 
‘Jansatta’ in Hindi (all India edition), Uttaranchal Darpan (Rudrapur 
edition) on April 26, 2025.

Dispatch of Notice

The dispatch of Postal Ballot Notice pursuant to the Act, Secretarial 
Standard-2 and relevant MCA Circulars for passing the resolutions 
as set out in the said Postal Ballot Notice whose names appeared 
in the Register of Members as on April 25, 2025 (“cut-off date”) was 
completed on April 29, 2025. The voting period commenced on 
Saturday, May 03, 2025, at 9.00 a.m. (IST) and ended on Sunday, June 
01, 2025, at 5.00 p.m. (IST).

Result of voting

The results of postal ballot voting (through remote e-voting) along 
with the Scrutinizer’s report was displayed at the registered office 
of the Company and also placed on the website of the Company at 
the link: www.archidply.com and KFin Technologies Limited i.e. www.
kfintech.com. The results was also be posted on the website of BSE 
Limited i.e.  www.bseindia.com and NSE Limited i.e. www.nseindia.
com. 

There is no immediate proposal for passing any special resolution through Postal Ballot.
Disclosures

 None of the transactions with any of the related party was in conflict with the interest of the Company at large. The details
of related party transactions are given in the Notes to Accounts forming part of the Annual Accounts.

 The Company has complied with the requirements of the stock exchange or SEBI on matters related to Capital Market as
applicable.

 The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015.

Means of Communication

The quarterly, half-yearly and yearly financial results of the Company are sent out to the Stock Exchanges immediately after they 
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are approved by the Board. The Company published its un-audited/audited financial results in Uttaranchal Darpan & Jansatta 
(Hindi edition) and Financial Express (English Edition).

The financial results are simultaneously posted on the website of the Company i.e. www.archidply.com

To facilitate prompt correspondence with investors/shareholders relating to their queries and grievances, the Company has a 
dedicated email-id viz, cs@archidply.com. 

Website:

The Company’s website (www.archidply.com) is a comprehensive reference on Company’s vision, mission, products, investor 
relation, and contact details. In compliance with Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, a separate section under “Investor 
Relations” on the Company’s website gives all required information under the Listing Regulations.

General Shareholder Information

1. 30th Annual General Meeting: shall be held on Tuesday, August 26, 2025 at 12:30 p.m. at the registered office of the
company at plot no. 7, sector - 9, Integrated Industrial Estates, SIDCUL, Pant Nagar, dist. Udam Singh Nagar, Rudrapur,
Uttarakhand, 263153.

2. Financial Year

The Company’s financial year was from April 1st 2024 to March 31st 2025.

3. Publication of results for the financial year 2024-25 (tentative and subject to change)

First quarter results: On or before August 14, 2025

Second quarter and half year results: On or before November 14, 2025

Third quarter results: On or before February 14, 2026

Fourth quarter results and results for the year ending

March 31, 2025: On or before May 30, 2026.

4. Date of Book Closure

19th August, 2025 to 26th August 2025 (Both days inclusive)

5. Dividend payment date

No dividend declared for the year under review.

6. Listing on stock exchanges

The Equity shares of the Company are listed at:

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,

Dalal Street, Fort,

Mumbai - 400 001

National Stock Exchange Limited (NSE)

Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G,

Bandra-Kurla Complex,

Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051

The annual listing fees, for the equity shares of the Company, pertaining to the year 2025-26 has been paid to the concerned 
stock exchange on demand.

7. Registrar & Transfer Agents.

The Registrar and share Transfer Agent of the Company is KFin Technologies Limited who can be contacted at the following 
address:

KFin Technologies Limited 

Karvy Selenium, Tower- B, Plot No 31 & 32.,

Financial district, Nanakramguda,

Serilingampally Mandal, Hyderabad, 500032

Tel: +91 04 67161500

Email Id: einward.ris@kfintech.com.



Corporate Overview | Statutory Reports | Financial Statements

47

8. Share Transfer System:

The Company has a Committee of the Board of Directors called Stakeholders Relationship Committee and takes necessary
steps as per its terms of reference duly approved by the Board from time to time. No Share transfer requests were received
during the Financial Year 2024-25

9. Distribution of Shareholdings 

The distribution of shareholding as on as on 31.03.2025 is given as under:

The distribution of shareholding according to category as on 31.03.2025

ARCHIDPLY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Distribution Schedule as on 31/03/2025

Sno Category No. of Cases % of Cases Amount % of Amount

1 1-5000 10344 87.33 10919220.00 5.50

2 5001- 10000 725 6.12 5786970.00 2.91

3 10001- 20000 374 3.16 5574990.00 2.81

4 20001- 30000 132 1.11 3344060.00 1.68

5 30001- 40000 59 0.50 2107140.00 1.06

6 40001- 50000 44 0.37 2037440.00 1.03

7 50001- 100000 82 0.69 6025760.00 3.03

8 100001 & above 85 0.72 162854420.00 81.98

Total: 11845 100.00 198650000.00 100.00

Shareholding Pattern As On 31/03/2025

Sno Description No. of Cases Total Shares % Equity

1 PROMOTER INDIVIDUALS 3 2105605 10.60

2 PROMOTERS 2 655442 3.30

3 PROMOTERS HUFS 1 20000 0.10

4 PROMOTERS BODIES CORPORATE 4 8274626 41.65

5 PROMOTER COMPANIES 1 2827850 14.24

6 RESIDENT INDIVIDUALS 11344 5327862 26.82

7 NON RESIDENT INDIAN NON REPATRIABLE 45 42765 0.22

8 NON RESIDENT INDIANS 72 90182 0.45

9 BODIES CORPORATES 57 195587 0.98

10 H U F 316 325081 1.64

Total: 11845 19865000 100.00

10. Dematerialization of Shares and liquidity.

As on 31.03.2025, of the shareholding were held in dematerialized form as per details mentioned below:

ARCHIDPLY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CONTROL REPORT AS ON 31/03/2025

Sno Description No of Holders Shares % To Equity
1 PHYSICAL 20 70170 0.35

2 NSDL 3980 16098599 81.04

3 CDSL 7845 3696231 18.61

Total: 11845 19865000 100.00
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The demat ISIN of the Company’s equity shares is INE877101016.

11. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments

There were no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or any other Convertible Instruments as on 31.03.2025.

12. Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities:

The Company has foreign exchange exposure towards imports, and exports of the Company Foreign exchange exposure is 
partially hedged through natural hedging & forward contracts on import.

13. Details of non-compliance

Financial Year Particulars

2024-25
NSE & BSE levied fine for composition of Board, committee for the quarter ended 31st 
March, 2025. The Company had already filed the waiver of penlaty request letter with the 
stock exchange. 

2023-24 Nil

2022-23 Nil

14. Plant locations

Rudrapur Plot No. 7, Sector 9, Integrated Industrial Estate, SIDCUL, Pant Nagar, Udham 
Singh Nagar, Uttarakhand - 263153

15. Address for correspondence

Registered Office:

ARCHIDPLY INDUSTRIES LTD

Plot No. 7, Sector-9, Integrated Industrial Estate, SIDCUL, Pantnagar, Udham Singh Nagar, Uttarakhand -263153 

PH: 05944-250270, FAX: 05944-250269 

E-mail: info@archidply.com; cs@archidply.com   Website: www.archidply.com

16. List of all credit ratings obtained by the Company:

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company does not have any debt instruments or any Fixed Deposit Programme or
any scheme or the proposal of the Company involving mobilization of funds in India or in abroad.

CRISIL had reaffirmed the rating of BBB-/ Stable for the bank loan facilities of Rs 100.5 Cr of Archidply Industries Ltd. on
December 05, 2024.

17. Other Disclosures

(a) The Company does not have materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the
interests of listed entity at large; The necessary disclosures of related party transactions has been made.

(b) There has been no non-compliance by the Company and no penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by stock
exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years;

(c) The Company has establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy, and it is affirmed   that no personnel has been
denied access to the audit committee;

(d) The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements as prescribed in the SEBI Listing Regulations and the
Companies Act, 2013; the Company has not adopted the non- mandatory requirements;

(e) The Company has one material subsidiary;

(f )  The policy on related party transactions is available on the website www.archidply.com

(g) There is no commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities taken by the Company.

(h) The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified under 
Regulation 32 (7A).

(i) a certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of the company have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs or any such statutory authority is annexed to this Report.

(j) During the financial year 2024-25, there was no instances where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any
committee of the board which is mandatorily required.
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(k) Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor and all 
entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part. 

a) Statutory Audit Fee Rs. 7,00,000

b) Tax Audit Fee Rs. 1,00,000

b) Fees for other statutory certifications Rs. 1,00,000

c) GST Audit Fee Rs. 3,70,000

Total Rs. 12,70,000

(l) During the year in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:
a. number of complaints filed during the financial year : nil
b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: nil
c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year.: nil

Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in 
which directors are interested by name and amount’:

The aforesaid details are provided in the financial statements of the Company forming part of this Integrated Annual Report. 
Please refer to the standalone financial statements.

Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place of incorporation and the name and date of 
appointment of the statutory auditors of such subsidiaries.]

Name
Date of 

Incorporation
Place of Incorporation Statutory Auditor Date of Appointment

Archidpanel 
Industries Limited

February 12, 2022
Rudrapur, Uttarakhand, 

India
GRV & PK Chartered 

Accountant
September 05, 2022

Policy on Material SubsidiaryIn terms of the Regulation 46(2)(h) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the policy for determining material subsidiaries is placed on the website of the Company at www.archidply.
com.

18. The Company has complied with the applicable requirement specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub-
regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

19. Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account:

S. No. Particulars No. of Shareholders Outstanding shares

1 Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares 
in the Suspense Account lying at the beginning of the year 9 3225

2 Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred 
from Suspense Account during the year 0 0

3 Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding 
shares in the Suspense Account lying at the end of the year 9 3225

Senior Management:

There is no change in senior management during the year. The details of senior management are as following:

1. Anil Sureka, CFO 2. Ashok Sharma, President  3. Atul Krishna Pandey, CS

Affirmation regarding Compliance with the Code of Conduct

In terms of the Listing Regulations, I hereby confirm that all the Board members and Senior Management Personnel of the 
Company have affirmed compliance with the respective Codes of Conduct, as applicable to them for the year ended March 
31, 2025.

Date: 26.07.2025 For Archidply Industries Limited  
Place: Delhi           Rajiv Daga

(Managing Director & CEO)
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CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL 
OFFICER ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AS PER REGULATION 33 OF

SEBI (LODR) REGULATION 2015.

The Board of Directors

M/s. Archidply Industries Limited

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Archidply Industries Limited for the financial year 
2024-25 and certify that:

a)  These statements to the best of our knowledge and belief:

I.  Do not contain any materially untrue statements or omit any material facts or contain statements that might be 
misleading:

II.  Present a true and fair view of the Company‘s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, 
applicable laws and regulations.

b)  To the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the Directors and Senior Management 
Personnel during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

c)  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and have evaluated 
the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company for such reporting. We have disclosed to the Auditors 
and the Audit Committee, deficiencies, if any, in the design or operation of such internal controls, of which we are aware 
of and the steps taken and/or proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies.

d)  We have also indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee.

(i)  Significant changes in Internal Controls with respect to financial reporting during the year.

(ii)  Significant changes in accounting policies during the Year and these have been disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements.

e)  To the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no instances of significant fraud involving either the management or 
employees having a significant role in the Company’s internal control systems with respect to financial reporting.

Rajiv Daga        Anil Sureka
(Managing Director & CEO)      (Chief Financial Officer)

Place : Delhi
Date : 26th July, 2025
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Certificate of Non Disqualification of Directors [Pursuant to Regulation 
34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015]

To,
The Members of ARCHIDPLY INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Plot No 7, Sector-9, Integrated Industrial Estate,
Sidcul, Pant Nagar, Rudrapur, Udham Singh Nagar,
Uttarakhand 263153

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of ARCHIDPLY 
INDUSTRIES LIMITED having CIN-L85110UR1995PLC008627, having its registered office at Plot No 7, Sector-9, Integrated Industrial 
Estate, Sidcul, Pant Nagar, Rudrapur Udham Singh Nagar Uttarakhand - 263153 (herein after referred to as ‘the company’) produced 
before us by the company for the purpose of issuing this certificate in accordance with regulation 34(3) read with schedule 5 para 
C sub clause (i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations 2015.

In our opinion and best of our belief, information and according to the verification (Including Director Identification Number(DIN) 
status of the respective directors at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and written representation made by the 
respective directors, we hereby certify that none of the directors on the board of the company as stated below for the financial 
year ending on 31st March 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as the director of the 
company by the securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other statutory authority.

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in 
Company

1 DEEN DAYAL DAGA 00497806 30/05/2015
2 SHYAM DAGA 00561803 30/05/2015
3 RAJIV DAGA 01412917 24/12/2004
4 PRITAM SINGH 01168865 18/06/2021
5 SHANTI MALLAR VARADARAJ* 07114866 11/03/2015
6 ROHIT PAREEK 08132565 25/01/2024
7 ANCHAL MITTAL# 00721306 26/04/2025

* Ms. Shanti Mallar Varadaraj (DIN: 07114866), has completed her second and final term as an Independent Director and 
consequently ceased to be a Director of the Company w.e.f. the close of business hours on March 10, 2025.

# The Members of the Company, have on June 01, 2025, vide Ordinary Resolution passed through Postal Ballot by means of 
remote e- voting approved the appointment of Mrs. Anchal Mittal (DIN: 00721306) as an Independent Director of the Company 
to hold office for a term of five consecutive years i.e., from 26th April, 2025 up to 25th April, 2030.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity as the director of the board is the responsibility of the management of 
the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion based on our verification and representation made by the respective 
directors. This Certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For RAJNEESH SHARMA & CO, 
COMPANY SECRETARIES

(RAJNEESH SHARMA)
Proprietor
FCS: 5549; CP No:24210
UDIN: F005549G000867630
PR No. 5544/2024
Place : Udaipur
Date: 26th July , 2025
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TO THE MEMBERS OF 
ARCHIDPLY INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Plot No 7, Sector-9, Integrated Industrial Estate, Sidcul, Pant Nagar,
Rudrapur Udham Singh Nagar Uttarakhand - 263153 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Archidply Industries Limited(CIN: : 
L85110UR1995PLC008627 ) (hereinafter called the company)  for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, as stipulated in  
under regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

Management’s Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management of the Company, including 
the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents This responsibility includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of the 
Corporate Governance stipulated in SEBI Listing Regulations. 

Our Responsibility

Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the 
compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the 
financial statements of the Company.

We have examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purpose of providing reasonable 
assurance on the compliance with the Corporate Governance requirements by the Company. 

We have conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Corporate Governance Certificate and the 
Guidance Manual on Quality of Audit & Attestation Services issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”).

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the company 
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned SEBI(LODR)Regulation 
2015 for the year ended on March 31,2025,  except in respect of matters specified below for which the fines have been 
imposed by NSE & BSE:

Compliance 
Requirements Deviations Observations by the Secretarial 

Auditors Remarks

Regulation 17(1) 
of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations ,2015

1)One third/Half of the
board is not Independent
2) No Woman Director
on the Board
3) No Woman 
Independent Director on 
the Board
4) Number of the board
member is less than six

There has been delay in 
appointment of non-executive 
independent  women director. 
The Company has appointed 
the Independent non -executive 
women Director Ms. Anchal Mittal 
With effect from 26.04.2025. 
The Company has rectified the 
deviation. 
The fine of Rs. 105000(excluding of 
GST) each payable to BSE and NSE.

The Company has filed its 
response in this connection 
with the said notices to BSE 
and NSE and seeking a waiver 
of fines as per the process 
prescribed by BSE and NSE.

Reg. 18(1) of 
SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations ,2015 
: Composition of 
Audit Committee

Chairperson of the 
Audit committee is not 
independent director

The Company has reconstituted 
the committees in their Board 
meeting held on 29th January, 2025 
and has complied with it. 

The fine of Rs. 42000 (excluding of 
GST) each payable to BSE and NSE.

The Company has appointed 
Mr. Rohit Pareek, independent 
Director as Chairman.

The Company has complied 
with it.

The Company has filed its 
response in this connection with 
the said notices to BSE and NSE 
and seeking a waiver of fines as 
per the process prescribed by BSE 
and NSE.
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Reg. 19 of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations 
,2015: Composition 
of Nomination
and
R e m u n e r a t i o n 
Committee

Number of members is 
less than three

The Company has reconstituted 
the committees in their Board 
meeting held on 29th January, 2025 
and has complied with it.

The fine of Rs. 42000 (excluding of 
GST) each payable to BSE and NSE

The Company has appointed 
Mr. Shyam Daga, Non-
executive  Director as Member.

The Company has complied 
with it.

The Company has filed its 
response in this connection 
with the said notices to BSE 
and NSE and seeking a waiver 
of fines as per the process 
prescribed by BSE and NSE.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Restriction on use

The certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the company solely for the purpose to enable the company 
to comply with the requirement of the Listing Regulations, and it should not be used by any other person or for any other 
purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other 
person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For RAJNEESH SHARMA & CO, 
COMPANY SECRETARIES

(RAJNEESH SHARMA)
Proprietor
FCS: 5549; CP No: 24210
UDIN: F005549G000867663
PR No.5544/2024

Place :Udaipur
Date: 26th July , 2025
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Independent 
Auditor’s Report
To the Members of 

M/S. ARCHIDPLY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of M/s. Archidply Industries Limited (“the Company”) 
which comprises the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (herein after referred to as “Standalone Financial Statement)”.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2025, and its Profit, 
total comprehensive Loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
the Standalone financial statement.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Standalone 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements 
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter 
below, our description of how our audit addresses the matter is provided in that context.

Descriptions of Key Audit Matter How we addressed the matter in our audit

Valuation of Inventories

Refer to note 8 to the financial statements. 

The Company is having Inventory of Rs. 4876.24 Lakh as on 
31st March, 2025. 

Inventories are to be valued as per Ind AS 2. As described in the 
accounting policies in note 1(9) to the financial statements, 
inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. As a result, the management applies judgment in 
determining the appropriate provisions against inventory of 
Stores, Raw Material, Finished goods and Work in progress 
based upon a detailed analysis of old inventory, net realisable 
value below cost based upon future plans for sale of inventory.

To ensure that all inventories owned by the entity are recorded 
and recorded inventories exist as at the year-end and valuation 
has been done correctly

We obtained assurance over the appropriateness of the 
management’s assumptions applied in calculating the value 
of the inventories and related provisions by:

• Completed a walkthrough of the inventory valuation
process and assessed the design and implementation of
the key controls addressing the risk.

• Verifying the effectiveness of key inventory controls
operating over inventories; including sample based
physical verification.

• Verify that the adequate cut off procedure has been
applied to ensure that purchased inventory and sold
inventory are correctly accounted.

• Reviewing the document and other record related
to physical verification of inventories done by the
management during the year.



Archidply Industries Limited Annual Report 2025

56  

• Verify that inventories are valued in accordance with Ind 
AS 2

• Verifying for a sample of individual products that costs 
have been correctly recorded.

• Comparing the net realisable value to the cost price of 
inventories to check for completeness of the associated 
provision.

• Reviewing the historical accuracy of inventory provisioning 
and the level of inventory write-offs during the year.

Our Conclusion:

Based on the audit procedures performed we did not identify 
any material exceptions in the Inventory valuation.

Revenue recognition on sale of goods and impairment 
loss allowance on trade receivables

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which 
is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, rebates, 
scheme allowances, price concessions, incentives and returns, 
if any, (‘variable consideration’) as specified in the contracts 
with the customers.

An estimate of variable consideration payable to the customers 
is recorded as at the year end. Such estimation is done based 
on the terms of contracts, rebates and discounts schemes and 
historical experience.

In accordance with Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments, the 
Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of 
impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. In calculating 
the impairment loss allowance, the Company has considered 
its credit assessment and other  related credit information for 
its customers to estimate the probability of default in future 
and has considered estimates of possible effect from increased 
uncertainties in economic environment. We identified 
estimation of variable consideration and impairment loss 
allowance on trade receivables as a key audit matter because 
the Company’s management exercises significant judgments 
and estimates in calculating the said variable consideration 
and impairment  loss  allowance

Our audit procedures included, amongst others:

• Tested a sample of sales transactions for compliance 
with the Company’s accounting principles to assess 
the completeness, occurrence and accuracy of revenue 
recorded.

• We read and evaluated the Company’s policies for revenue 
recognition and impairment loss allowance and assessed 
its compliance with Ind AS 115 – Revenue From Contracts 
With Customers’ and Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’, 
respectively.

• We assessed the design and tested the operating 
effectiveness of internal controls related to sales including 
variable consideration and impairment loss allowance on 
trade receivables.

• We performed the following tests for a sample of 
transactions relating to variable consideration:

•      Read the terms of contract including rebates and discounts 
schemes as approved by authorized personnel.

•    Evaluated the assumptions used in estimation of variable 
consideration by comparing with the past trends and 
understand the reasons for deviation.

•   Performed retrospective review to identify and evaluate 
variances.

• Tested the design, implementation and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s controls over computation 
of incentives and pay out against the corresponding liability

• We evaluated management’s assessment of the 
assumptions used in the calculation of impairment loss 
allowance on trade receivables, including consideration 
of the current and estimated future uncertain economic 
conditions.

• For sample customers, we tested past collection history, 
customer’s credit assessment and probability of default 
assessment performed by the management.

• We tested the mathematical accuracy and computation of 
the allowances.

• We read and assessed the relevant disclosures made 
within the standalone financial statements.

Our conclusion:

Based on the audit procedures performed we did not identify 
any material exceptions in the recognition of revenue and 
incentives and discount expenses.



Corporate Overview | Statutory Reports | Financial Statements

57

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Board’s Report including Annexure to the Board’s Report, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. The Company’s annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are 
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Board of Director’s for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the 
Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting standards)Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection, application, 
implementation and maintenance of appropriate of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 

The Management and Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the Management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
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the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

 Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements 
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone 
financial statements.

 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

 From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,2013, we give in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2A.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books.

c.  The Standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive Income, 
Standalone Statement of changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

d.  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015, a amended from time to time.

e.  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164 (2) of the Act. 

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our Report expresses an unmodified opinion on 
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g.  The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith in respect of audit trail are 
as stated in the paragraph 2B(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

2B.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:
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i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations which could impact its financial position as 
mentioned in note no.36 to the standalone Financial Statement.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the company.

iv. a.  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other source or kind of funds) 
by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

•  directly or indirectly lender invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever(“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or

•  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b.  The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
received by the company from any person or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, 

• directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 

• provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on audit procedures as we considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has 
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause iv(a) and iv(b) 
contain any material mis-statement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year, hence the provisions of section 123 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks and in accordance with requirements of the 
Implementation Guide on Reporting on Audit Trail under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which have a 
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the respective software.

 Further, where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the year, we did not come across any 
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during the course of our audit.

 Additionally, the audit trial has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for records retention. 

 The back-up of audit trail (edit log) has been maintained on the servers physically located in India for financial year 
ended 31st March, 2025.

2C.  With respect to the matter to be includedin the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company 
to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration 
paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For GRV & PK
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 008099S

(Kamal Kishore)
Partner

Place: Delhi                                                                                                                                                           (Membership Number.205819)
Date: 22.05.2025                                                                                                                                                            UDIN: 25205819BMKUHS5724



Archidply Industries Limited Annual Report 2025

60  

Annexure –A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the standalone 
financial statements of Archidply Industries Limited for the year ended 31 
March 2025

The Annexure 1 referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of 
our report of even date to the members of M/s. Archidply Industries Limited (“the Company”) on the standalone financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, we report that:

(i) (a)  (A)  The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 
Property, Plant & Equipment;

  (B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the company, these Properties, Plant & Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable 
intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company, in case of land which are on 
long term lease from government, the lease agreement are duly executed in favor of company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
company, the company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
company, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a)  On basis of information and explanation given to us, Physical verification of Inventory has been conducted at 
reasonable intervals by the management. Procedure of physical verification of Inventory followed by the management 
is reasonable & adequate in relation to the size of company and nature of its business and no material discrepancies 
were noticed on physical verification of stocks as compared to book records that were 10% or more.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the company, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five hundred Lakhs rupees, in 
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the 
company with such banks compare with the books of account of the company are as below:

Quarter As per bank return As per books of account Difference %age of Differences

Q1 5,326.12 Lakhs 5,326.12 Lakhs - -

Q2 6,336.29 Lakhs 6,336.29 Lakhs - -

Q3 5,533.78 Lakhs 5,533.78 Lakhs - -

Q4 4,875.06 Lakhs 4,876.24 Lakhs (1.18) Lakhs -0.024%

(iii) The Company has made Investments, provided guarantees, granted loans and advances in nature of unsecured loans to 
companies during the year.

(a)  In respect of loans & advances and Guarantee, Company has given Guarantee to its subsidiary and associates entity 
during the year, as detailed below:

Particulars
Aggregate amount during 

the year
Balance outstanding at 
the Balance sheet date

Investment in shares of Subsidiary Company 2491.00 Lakhs 6731.00 Lakhs

Corporate Guarantee to Bankers of Subsidiary 2980.00 Lakhs 12010.00 Lakhs

Corporate Guarantee to Bankers of Associate - 2500.00 Lakhs

(b)  In our opinion and on the basis of information and explanation given to us, the investments made and Guarantee 
given during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. 

(c)  During the year no loans have been granted by the Company, therefore the schedule of repayment of principal and 
interest has not been stipulated by the company.
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(d)  As there is no stipulation about repayment of loan by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding 
as at the balance sheet date. 

(e)  No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans 
granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties. 

(f ) During the year no loans have been granted by the Company in the nature of loans without specifying any terms or 
period of repayment during the year. 

(iv) The company has complied with the provisions of section 185 & 186 of the companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, 
investment made & guarantees provided, as applicable.

(v)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted any public 
deposits during the year to which section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the act are applicable.  Accordingly, 
clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to the company.

(vi)  As informed to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 
148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the Company.  Accordingly, clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the order is 
not applicable to the company.

(vii)  (a)  According to the records of the company and information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues, including Goods and Services Tax,  provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, 
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to 
it,  with the appropriate authorities. 

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect 
of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of 
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears /were outstanding as at 31 
March, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c)   According to the information and explanations given to us, details of disputed Sales Tax, Income Tax, Customs Duty, 
Service Tax, Excise duty and Cess which have not been deposited as on 31st March, 2025 on account of any dispute are 
given below: 

Name of Statute Nature of the dues
Disputed amount 

pending
 (Amount in Lakhs)

Period to 
which the 

amount relates 
(Financial Years)

Forum where dispute is 
pending.

Central Excise Act Excise duty Rs.81.02 lakhs 2000-2003 CESTAT
Income Tax Act Income Tax Rs.80.33 lakhs 2019-2020 CIT Appellate – 1

Goods and Service Tax GST Rs.543.03 lakhs 2021-2022 The Suprintendent of 
Central Taxes, Bangalore  

(viii)  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

(ix)  (a)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted 
in repayment of any loan or other borrowings or any interest due thereon to any lender. 

(b)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been a 
declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

(c)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans taken were 
applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained by the company during the year.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no funds raised on short 
term basis which have been utilised for long term purposes.

(e)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not taken 
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or 
joint ventures. 

(f )  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised loans 
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(x)  (a)  The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
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instruments) during the year. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

 (b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause (x)(b)of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable 
to the company.

(xi)  (a)  No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

 (b)  During the year no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the 
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 
Central Government. 

 (c)  As auditor, we did not receive any whistle- blower complaint during the year. 

(xii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a Nidhi Company.  
Accordingly, clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to the company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where 
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 
applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(xiv)  (a)  Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the 
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

 (b)  We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
company, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 
him. Accordingly, clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to the company.

(xvi)   (a)  The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, clause (xvi)(a) and (b)of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable  to the company.

(b)  The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve 
Bank of India.

(c)  As per the information and explanations received, the group does not have any CIC as part of the group.

(xvii)  The company has not incurred cash loss in current financial year as well in immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the company during the year.

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and management plans, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as 
and when they fall due.

(xx)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there is no unspent amount under the 
provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, relating to Corporate Social Responsibility. Therefore, the provisions 
of Clause (xx) (a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company. 

For GRV & PK
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 008099S

(Kamal Kishore)
Partner

Place: Delhi                                                                                                                                                           (Membership Number.205819)
Date: 22.05.2025                                                                                                                                                            UDIN: 25205819BMKUHS572
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the 
Members of Archidply Industries Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. Archidply Industries Limited (“the Company”) as of 
31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion

In our Opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For GRV & PK
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 008099S

(Kamal Kishore)
Partner

Place: Delhi                                                                                                                                                           (Membership Number.205819)
Date: 22.05.2025                                                                                                                                                            UDIN: 25205819BMKUHS572
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025  (Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Notes  As at 31.03.2025  As at 31.03.2024
A. ASSETS
1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property , Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use Assets)  2  4,061.65  4,137.03 
(b) Capital Work-in Progress  2  -    40.03 
(c) Goodwill  2  30.78  61.74 
(d) Other Intangible Assets  2  26.18  8.88 
(e) Investment Property  -    -   
(f ) Financial Assets

    i.   Investments  3  6,731.00  4,240.00 
    ii. Loans  4  -    -   
    iii. Others  5  183.32  163.44 

(g) Deferred tax Asset (Net)  6  135.63  62.32 
(h) Other non current assets  7  41.34  78.23 
  Total   Non current assets  11,209.91  8,791.67 
2. CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories  8  4,876.24  5,194.52 
(b) Financial Assets

    i. Trade Receivables  9  10,399.80  9,778.69 
    ii. Cash and cash equivalent  10  18.48  17.69 
    iii. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent  11  51.89  52.35 

(c) Current Income Tax Assets(net)  12  -    15.33 
(d) Other current assets  13  842.50  392.90 
 Total Current Assets  16,188.91  15,451.48 

                                TOTAL ASSETS  27,398.82  24,243.15 
B.EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1. EQUITY:
(a) Equity Share Capital  14  1,986.50  1,986.50 
(b) Other Equity  15  9,947.16  9,185.22 
 Total Shareholders Fund  11,933.66  11,171.72 
2. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities

     i. Borrowings  16  5.90  13.97 
     ii. Lease Liabilities  17  173.94  121.25 

(b) Provisions  18  585.96  495.36 
(c) Other Non Current Liabilities  19  106.19  131.22 
 Total Non-Current liabilities  871.98  761.79 
3. CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities

     i. Borrowings  20  8,255.76  7,020.40 
     ii. Lease Liabilities  21  108.62  74.37 
    iii. Trade Payables  22 

Total Outstanding dues of Micro and small Enterprises  3,694.57  1,493.04 
Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro and small Enterprises  1,288.33  2,627.59 

    iv. Other financial liabilities  23  365.38  265.81 
(b) Short term Provisions  24  697.74  660.47 
(c) Other Current Liabilities  25  151.05  167.95 
(d) Current Income Tax Liabilities(Net)  26  31.74  -   
Total Current liabilities  14,593.18  12,309.64 

                 TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES  27,398.82  24,243.15 
Notes from 01 to 50 form the integral part of Standalone Financial statements   

For and On behalf of the board of directors,

Deen Dayal Daga Rajiv Daga AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
Chairman Managing Director For GRV & PK
DIN: 00497806     DIN:01412917 Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 008099S
Anil Sureka Atul Krishna Pandey
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Kamal Kishore
  M.No.:A47815 (Partner)
  Membership No. 205819
Place: Delhi  UDIN: 25205819BMKUHS5724  
Date : 22.05.2025
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Statement of Profit & Loss for the period March 31, 2025 (Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Notes
 Figures at the 
end of Current 

Reporting Period 

 Figures at the 
end of Previous 

Reporting Period 

INCOME :

Revenue From Operations  27  46,428.17  43,575.11 

Other Income  28  107.44  265.49 

TOTAL INCOME  46,535.61  43,840.60 

EXPENSES :

Cost of Goods consumed  29  12,959.04  12,905.62 

Purchase of Stock In Trade  30  20,562.50  17,443.32 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-process and 
stock-in-trade

 31  (54.47)  (93.07)

Employee Benefit Expenses  32  3,413.60  3,068.00 

Finance Cost  33  809.66  742.56 

Depreciation & Ammortisation Expense  2  464.49  441.35 

Other Expenses  34  7,319.80  8,076.83 

TOTAL EXPENSES  45,474.63  42,584.59 

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION  1,060.99  1,256.01 

Tax Expenses:

Current Tax  317.00  403.00 

Deferred Tax  6  (64.60)  80.12 

Taxes of earlier year  20.73  43.35 

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION FOR THE YEAR  787.86  729.53 

Other Comprehensive Income

A i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Defined benefit plan acturial gains/(losses)  (34.62)  82.67 

ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  8.71  (20.81)

B i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(Dimunision)/Increase in the value of Investment  -    -

ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  -

Other Comprehensive Income net of tax  (25.91)  61.87 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax  761.95  791.40 

Earning Per Share ( D )

Basic & diluted  3.97  3.67 

Notes from 01 to 50 form the integral part of Standalone Financial statements   

For and On behalf of the board of directors,

Deen Dayal Daga Rajiv Daga AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
Chairman Managing Director For GRV & PK
DIN: 00497806     DIN:01412917 Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 008099S
Anil Sureka Atul Krishna Pandey
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Kamal Kishore
  M.No.:A47815 (Partner)
  Membership No. 205819
Place: Delhi  UDIN: 25205819BMKUHS5724  
Date : 22.05.2025
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Statement of Cash Flow for the period March 31, 2025 (Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025
For the year ended  

March 31, 2024

A. Cash flows arising from operating activities

Net Profit/(Loss) Before Tax  1,060.99  1,256.01 

Add: Depreciation  464.49  441.35 

Interest Paid  809.66  742.56 

Loss on Sale of Assets  1.58  0.51 

Less: Other comprehensive (Income)/loss  34.62  (82.67)

 2,302.09  2,523.10 

Less: Profit on sale of Assets  8.77  0.72 

Profit on Reclassification of lease Assets  4.00  -   

Profit on sale of Investment  -    -   

Depreciation withdrawn Deferred Government grant  25.03  28.12 

Interest Received  10.16  62.16 

 2,254.14  2,432.10 

Operating profit before working capital changes

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory  318.29  (123.33)

(Increase)/Decrease in Debtors  (621.11)  (574.53)

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances  25.87  50.37 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets  (449.59)  218.47 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  862.27  101.21 

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions  127.87  (112.23)

Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities  82.67  (180.71)

Cash flow from Operations  2,600.39  1,811.35 

Payment of Income Tax  290.66  520.40 

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities  2,309.72  1,290.95 

B. Cash flows arising from Investment activities

Inflows:

FD matured  -    7.63 

Sale of Fixed Assest  17.03  11.84 

Sale of Investment  -    -   

Loans given received back  -    518.20 

Interest Received  10.16  62.16 

Outflows:

Investment in Fixed Assets  140.76  147.32 

Loans given  -    -   

FD Made with bank  12.73  -   

Purchase of Investment  2,491.00  1,650.00 

 (2,617.30)  (1,197.50)
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Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025
For the year ended  

March 31, 2024

C. Cash flows arising from finance activities

Inflows:

Proceeds from Secured Loan  442.27  341.73 

Proceeds from Unsecured Loan  1,500.00  550.00 

Subsidy Received  -    -   

Outflows:

Repayment of Secured Loan  7.40  -   

Repayment of unsecured Loan  707.59  200.00 

Principal payment of lease liabilities  109.25  56.35 

Interest paid on lease liabilities  29.75  18.48 

Interest paid  779.90  308.37  724.08  (107.18)

Cash flow from all activities-(A+B+C)  0.79  (13.72)

Add: Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of the year  17.69  31.41 

Cash & cash equivalents at year end of the year  18.48  17.69 

Statement of Cash Flow (Contd..) for the period March 31, 2025 (Amount in Lakhs)

Notes from 01 to 50 form the integral part of Standalone Financial statements   

For and On behalf of the board of directors,

Deen Dayal Daga Rajiv Daga AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
Chairman Managing Director For GRV & PK
DIN: 00497806     DIN:01412917 Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 008099S
Anil Sureka Atul Krishna Pandey
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Kamal Kishore
  M.No.:A47815 (Partner)
  Membership No. 205819
Place: Delhi  UDIN: 25205819BMKUHS5724  
Date : 22.05.2025
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Statement of Changes in Equity
A.  EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL      (Amount in lakhs)

 Balance as at 
April 1, 2024 

 Changes in Equity 
share capital due to 
prior period errors 

 Restated Balance as 
at April 1, 2024 

 Changes in Equity 
Share Capital during 

the year 

 Balance as at 
March 31, 2025 

 1,986.50  -    1,986.50  -    1,986.50 

 Balance as at 
April 1, 2023 

 Changes in Equity 
share capital due to 
prior period errors 

 Restated Balance as 
at April 1, 2023 

 Changes in Equity 
Share Capital during 

the year 

 Balance as at 
March 31, 2024 

 1,986.50  -    1,986.50  -    1,986.50 

B.  OTHER EQUITY (Amount in lakhs)

Particulars

 (As at March 31, 2025)

 Share 
Premium 

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 

 Capital 
Subsidy 

 Capital 
Redemption 

reserve 

 Total 
Other 
Equity

Opening Balance  880.16  8,057.88  (2.83)  30.00  220.00  9,185.22 

Add: Profit for the Period  787.86  787.86 

Add: Other Comprehensive 
Income/(Loss)

 (25.91)  (25.91)

Total Comprehensive Income for 
the period

 880.16  8,845.74  (28.74)  30.00  220.00  9,947.16 

Closing Balance  880.16  8,845.74  (28.74)  30.00  220.00  9,947.16 

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

(As at March 31, 2024)

Share 
Premium

Retained 
Earnings

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Capital 
Subsidy

Capital 
Redemption 

reserve

Total 
Other 
Equity

Opening Balance  880.16  7,328.35  (64.69)  30.00  220.00  8,393.82 

Add: Profit for the Period  729.53  -    -    729.53 

Add: Other Comprehensive 
Income/(Loss)

 61.87  61.87 

Total Comprehensive Income for 
the period

 880.16  8,057.88  (2.83)  30.00  220.00  9,185.22 

Closing Balance  880.16  8,057.88  (2.83)  30.00  220.00  9,185.22 

Notes from 01 to 50 form the integral part of Standalone Financial statements   

For and On behalf of the board of directors,

Deen Dayal Daga Rajiv Daga AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
Chairman Managing Director For GRV & PK
DIN: 00497806     DIN:01412917 Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 008099S
Anil Sureka Atul Krishna Pandey
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Kamal Kishore
  M.No.:A47815 (Partner)
  Membership No. 205819
Place: Delhi  UDIN: 25205819BMKUHS5724  
Date : 22.05.2025
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Note: - 1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Corporate Information:

 Archidply Industries Limited (the ‘Company’) is a public 
limited company domiciled in India incorporated under 
the provisions of the Companies Act. Its shares are 
listed on two recognized stock exchanges in India. The 
registered office of the company is at Plot No. 7, Sector-9, 
Integrated Industrial Estate, SIDCUL, Pant Nagar, Rudrapur 
- 263 153, Uttarakhand, India.

 The reportable segments have been identified on the 
basis of the products of the Company. Company is 
engaged in the business of manufacturing two broad 
product segments and one trading product segment, as 
follows: 

i) Wood Based Products: Plywood & Allied Products.

ii) Paper Based Products: Laminate & Allied Products. 

iii) Wood Based Products: Medium Density Fiber board 
(MDF)

 It has branches and dealers’ network spread all over 
the country. The Company is procuring raw material & 
trading goods locally as well as imports them. Goods are 
sold both in domestic and overseas markets.

 The company’s shares are listed in Bombay Stock 
Exchange Ltd. (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India 
(NSE).

2. Basis of preparation of Financial Statements :      

 The Financial Statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 
2013 (“the Act”), as notified under the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 and other relevant 
provision of the Act, to the extent applicable and 
presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to 
the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), 
as applicable to the Standalone Financial Statement. 

 The financial statements have been prepared under 
historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except 
for the following items which have been measured as 
required by relevant Ind AS:

a)  Financial Instruments classified as fair value through 
other comprehensive income.

b)  The defined benefit (loss)/profit is recognized as 
at the present value of defined benefit obligation 
less fair value of plan assets through other 
comprehensive income.

 Accounting policies have been consistently applied 
except where a newly issued accounting standard is 
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting 
standard requires a change in the accounting policy 
hitherto in use. The Company’s management evaluates 
all recently issued or revised accounting standards on an 
on-going basis.

 For the year ended 31st March, 2025, MCA has not 
notified any new standards or amendments to the 

existing standards applicable to the Company.

 Where changes are made in presentation, the 
comparative figures of the previous years are regrouped 
and re-arranged accordingly.

3. Accounting Estimates And Assumptions:

  The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the results of operations during 
the reporting year end. Although these estimates are 
based upon management’s best knowledge of current 
events and actions, actual results could differ from these 
estimates.

4. Equity

a) Ordinary Shares
  Ordinary shares are classified as Equity Share capital. 

Incremental costs directly attributable to the 
issuance of new shares and buyback are recognized 
as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

b) Capital redemption reserve
  As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption 

reserve is created when company purchases its own 
shares out of free reserves or securities premium. 
A sum equal to the nominal value of the shares 
so purchased is transferred to capital redemption 
reserve. The reserve is utilised in accordance with 
the provisions of section 69 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

c)  Securities Premium
   The amount received in excess of the par value 

of equity shares has been classified as securities 
premium.

d)  Retained Earnings
   Retained earnings represent the amount of 

accumulated earnings of the company.

5. Property, Plant and Equipment

 OWNED ASSET

a) Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at 
original cost (net of tax/ duty credit availed) less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses 
except freehold land which is carried at cost. Cost 
includes cost of acquisition, construction and 
installation, taxes, duties, freight, other incidental 
expenses related to the acquisition, trial run 
expenses (net of revenue) and pre-operative 
expenses including attributable borrowing costs 
incurred during pre-operational period.

b) Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s 
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will 
flow to the company and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any 
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component as a separate asset is derecognized 
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance 
are charged to profit and loss during the reporting 
period in which they are incurred.

c) Assets which are not ready for their intended use 
on reporting date are carried as capital work-in-
progress at cost, comprising direct cost and related 
incidental expenses.

d) On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected 
to continue with the carrying value of all of its 
property, plant and equipment as at 1st April 2016 
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that 
carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, 
plant and equipment.

e) Property, Plant and Equipments including 
continuous process plants are depreciated and/
or amortized on Straight line Method on the basis 
of their useful lives as notified in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013. The assets residual values and 
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, 
at the end of each reporting period.

f ) Depreciation in respect of additions to assets has 
been charged on pro rata basis with reference to 
the period when the assets are ready for use. The 
provision for depreciation for multiple shifts has 
been made in respect of eligible assets on the basis 
of operation of respective units. 

g) Useful lives of the Property, Plant and Equipment as 
notified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 
are as follows :

 Buildings – 30 to 60 years

 Plant and Equipments (Paper Division) - 15 years 
(Triple Shift)

Plant and Equipments (Other Division) - 15 years 
(Triple Shift) Furniture and Fixtures - 10 years

Vehicles - 8 to 10 years

Office Equipments - 5 to 10 years  

Computers – 3 years 

 LEASED ASSET (RIGHT OF USE ASSETS)

a) The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist 
of leases for Land and Buildings. The Company 
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at 
the inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, 
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identified asset for a period of time 
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i)  the contract involves the use of an identified 
asset

(ii)  the Company has substantially all of the 
economic benefits from use of the asset 
through the period of the lease and

(iii)  the Company has the right to direct the use of 
the asset.

b) The right-of-use asset is a lessee’s right to use an asset 
over the life of a lease. The Company recognizes 

a right-of-use asset (‘ROU’) and a corresponding 
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it 
is a lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as 
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and 
leases of low value assets. For these leases of short-
term and low value assets, the Company recognizes 
the lease payments as an operating expense over 
the term of the lease.

c) The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at 
cost, which comprises the initial amount of the 
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments 
made (Deposits and Rentals) at or prior to the 
commencement date of the lease plus any initial 
direct costs less any lease incentives. They are 
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated from the commencement 
date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the 
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

6. Lease Property

 The Company determines the lease term as the non-
cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods 
covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company 
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods 
covered by an option to terminate the lease if the 
Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. 
In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to 
exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an 
option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts 
and circumstances that create an economic incentive for 
the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, 
or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The 
Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the 
non-cancellable period of a lease.

7. Lease Liabilities

 Lease liability is initially measured at the present value of 
future lease payments. Lease payments are discounted 
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily 
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rate. 
Lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing 
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease 
liability and reducing the carrying amount to reflect the 
lease payments made.

 A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of 
certain events such as a change in the lease term or a 
change in an index or rate used to determine lease 
payments. The remeasurement also adjusts the related 
leased assets

8. Intangible Assets 

a) Intangible assets acquired by payment e.g., Goodwill 
, Trademark and Computer Software are disclosed at 
cost less amortization on a straight-line basis over 
its estimated useful life.

b) Intangible assets are carried at cost, net of 
accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if 
any.

c) On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected 
to continue with the carrying value of all of its 
intangible assets as at 1st April 2016 measured as 
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per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value 
as the deemed cost of the intangible assets

d) Intangible assets are amortised on straight-line 
method as follows : 

Goodwill – 20 years

Computer Software – 3 years 

Trademark- 10 years

9. Investment Property

 Investment Property are stated at original cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses except 
freehold land which is carried at cost. Cost includes 
cost of acquisition, construction and other incidental 
expenses related to the acquisition, trial run expenses 
(net of revenue) and pre-operative expenses including 
attributable borrowing costs incurred during pre-
operational period.

 Investment properties are derecognised either when they 
have been disposed of or when they are permanently 
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is 
expected from their disposal.

10. Impairment of Assets

 At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the 
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment 
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount 
of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent 
of impairment loss. The recoverable amount is higher of 
the net selling price and the value in use, determined by 
discounting the estimated future cash flows expected 
from the continuing use of the asset to their present 
value.

11. Inventories

a) Inventories related to raw materials, packing 
materials, stores & spares are valued at   cost on 
weighted average basis or net realizable value 
whichever is lower.

b) Waste & scraps are valued at estimated realizable 
value.

c) Materials in transit and Semi Finished goods are 
valued at cost or market value which ever is lower.

d) Finished goods and process stock include all cost 
of purchases, cost of conversion and other related 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition.

e) Finished goods are valued at cost or net realizable 
value whichever is lower. Net realizable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business less the estimated cost of completion and 
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

f ) Obsolete, defective and unserviceable stocks are 
duly provided for.

12. Cash Flow Statement

 Cash flows statement are reported using “Indirect 
method” as set out in the Ind AS 7 on ‘Statement of Cash 
Flow’, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects 

of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or 
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The 
cash flow from regular revenue generating, financing and 
investing activities of the Company is segregated. 

 Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise 
cash at bank, cash/cheques in hand and short term 
investments (excluding pledged term deposits) with an 
original maturity of less than twelve months.

13. Financial instruments:

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

 A. Financial Assets
(i)  Initial Recognition and Measurement

 The Company classifies its financial assets as 
those to be measured subsequently at fair value 
(either through other comprehensive income, or 
through profit or loss) and those to be measured at 
amortized cost.

(ii)  Subsequent Measurement

 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial 
assets are classified in following categories:

(a) Debt instruments measured at amortized cost 
using the effective interest rate method and 
losses arising from impairment are recognized 
in Profit and Loss if both the following 
conditions are met:

•	 The asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 
contractual cash flows, and

•	 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on 
the principal amount outstanding.

(b) Equity instruments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income.

(c) Equity instruments at fair value through profit 
or loss (FVTPL)

(d) Equity Instruments in subsidiaries are carried 
at cost, in accordance with option available in 
Ind AS 27 “Separate Financial Statements”.

(iii)  De-Recognition

 A financial asset is de-recognized only when the 
Company has transferred the rights to receive 
cash flows from the financial asset, or when it has 
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset, or when it has transferred the control of 
the asset.

(iv)  Impairment of Financial Assets

 In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company 
applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for 
measurement and recognition of impairment loss 
on the Trade receivables or any contractual right 
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to receive cash or another financial asset that result 
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind 
AS 11 and Ind AS 18.

 The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for 
recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade 
receivables.

 The application of simplified approach does not 
require the Company to track changes in credit risk. 
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance 
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right 
from its initial recognition.

 As a practical expedient, the Company uses 
historically observed default rates over the expected 
life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for 
forward-looking estimates to determine impairment 
loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables.

  B.  Financial Liabilities:

i)  Classification as debt or equity - Debt and equity 
instruments are classified as either financial liabilities 
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual arrangement.

ii)  Equity instruments - An equity instrument is any 
contract that evidences a residual interest in the 
assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. 
Equity instruments issued by the Company are 
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct 
issue costs.

iii)  Initial Recognition and Measurement: 

 All Financials Liabilities are recognized net of 
transaction costs incurred. 

iv)  Subsequent Measurement-
 After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans 

and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate 
(“EIR”) method. Gains and losses are recognised in 
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised 
through the EIR amortisation process.

v)  De-Recognition

 All Financials Liabilities are removed from balance 
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract 
is discharged, cancelled or expired.

 When an existing financial liability is replaced by 
another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability 
are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the de-recognition of 
the original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss.

14. Revenue Recognition:

 Revenue comprises of all economic benefits that arise in 
the ordinary course of activities of the Company which 
result in increase in Equity, other than increases relating 
to contributions from equity participants. Revenue is 
recognized to the extent that it is probable that the 

economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at 
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

 Sale of Goods: As per Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts 
with customers’, Revenue from sale of goods is recognised 
when control of the products being sold is transferred 
to the customer and when there are no longer any 
unfulfilled obligations. The Performance Obligations in 
our contracts are fulfilled at the time of dispatch, delivery 
or upon formal customer acceptance depending on 
terms with customers. The Company derives revenue 
principally from sale of Plywood, Laminates, Decorative 
Veneers, MDF and Flush Doors. Revenue shown in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss are inclusive of the value 
of self-consumption, but excludes Goods & Service Tax 
(GST), inter-transfers, returns, trade discounts, other 
benefits passed to customers in kind.

 Services: Revenue from Services is recognized as and 
when the services are rendered. The Company collects 
Goods & Service Tax on behalf of the government and 
therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the 
Company and hence excluded from Revenue.

 Interest: Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by 
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective 
interest rate applicable.

 Insurance Claims: Insurance Claims are accounted for on 
acceptance and when there is a reasonable certainty of 
receiving the same, on grounds of prudence.

 Corporate Guarantee Fee: Corporate Guarantee Fee is 
accounted for corporate Guarantee given to related 
party’s Banker for their business use. Such revenue 
is recognised in the accounting period in which the 
services are rendered in accordance with agreement with 
the parties.

15. Government grants

 Government grants are recognized where there is 
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received 
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When 
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as 
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the 
related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, 
are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it 
is recognized as income in equal amounts over the 
expected useful life of the related asset.

 When the Company receives grants of non-monetary 
assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value 
amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected 
useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of 
the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual installments.

16. Foreign Currency Transactions:

 The Company’s financial statements are presented 
in Indian Rupees (‘INR’), which is also the Company’s 
functional currency.

 Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial 
recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction. At each balance sheet 
date, foreign currency monetary items are reported using 
the closing exchange rate. Exchange differences that arise 
on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each 
balance sheet date of the Company’s monetary items at 
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the closing rate are recognised as income or expenses in 
the period in which they arise.

 Non-monetary items which are carried at historical 
cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported 
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the 
date when the fair value is determined.

17. Employee Benefits:

 Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an 
expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss of the year in which the related service 
is rendered.

 Post Employment and Retirement benefits in the form 
of Gratuity and Leave Encashment are considered as 
defined benefit obligations and is provided for on the 
basis of third party actuarial valuation, using the projected 
unit credit method, as at the date of the Balance Sheet. 
Every Employee who has completed five years or more of 
service is entitled to Gratuity on terms not less favorable 
than the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

 The present value of the defined benefit obligation is 
determined by discounting the estimated future cash 
outflows by reference to market yields at the end of 
reporting period on government bonds that have terms 
approximating to the terms of the related obligation

 Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience 
adjustments and changes in acturial assumptions of the 
defined benefit obligation are recognised in the period 
in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive 
income. They are included in retained earnings in the 
statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

 Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund 
is considered as defined contribution plan and the 
contributions to Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation 
established under The Employees’ Provident Fund 
and Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1952 is charged to 
the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the 
contributions to the respective funds are due. The 
Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly 
administered provident funds as per local regulations.

 The Company has no further payment obligations once 
the contributions have been paid.

18. Borrowing Costs:

 Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including 
exchange differences relating to foreign currency 
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an 
adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with 
the borrowing of funds. 

 General and specific borrowing costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or construction of 
qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of 
such assets during the period of time that is required to 
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. A 
qualifying asset is one that takes necessarily substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use.

 All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in 
which they are incurred.

19. Accounting for Taxes on Income: 

 Tax expenses comprise of current tax and deferred tax 
including applicable surcharge and cess.

 Current Income tax is computed using the tax effect 
accounting method, where taxes are accrued in the 
same period in which the related revenue and expenses 
arise. A provision is made for income tax annually, based 
on the tax liability computed, after considering tax 
allowances and exemptions. Provisions are recorded 
when it is estimated that a liability due to disallowances 
or other matters is probable.

 Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet 
approach on temporary differences at the reporting date 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the 
reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for 
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the 
carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax 
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profits against which the 
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

 Deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognized in other comprehensive income. As such, 
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive 
income.

 Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities are offset, 
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the Deferred 
Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities relate to taxes on 
income levied by same governing taxation laws.

20. Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets:

 Contingent liabilities are not provided for but are 
disclosed by way of Notes on Accounts. Contingent 
liabilities is disclosed in case of a present obligation from 
past events 

(a) when it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation; 

(b)  when no reliable estimate is possible; 

(c)  unless the probability of outflow of resources is 
remote.

 Contingent assets are neither accounted for nor 
disclosed by way of Notes on Accounts where the 
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

21. Current And Non- Current Classification:

 The Normal Operating Cycle for the Company has been 
assumed to be of twelve months for classification of 
its various assets and liabilities into “Current” and “Non-
Current”.

 The Company presents assets and liabilities in the 
balance sheet based on current and non-current 
classification.
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 An asset is current when it is 

(a)  expected to be realised or intended to be sold or 
consumed in normal operating cycle 

(b)  held primarily for the purpose of trading

(c)  expected to be realised within twelve months after 
the reporting period 

(d)  Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from 
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting period. 

(e)  All other assets are classified as non-current.

 A liability is current when 

(a)  it is expected to be settled in normal operating 
cycle 

(b)  it is held primarily for the purpose of trading

(c)  it is due to be discharged within twelve months 
after the reporting period

(d)  there is no unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period.

(e)   All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.

22. Corporate social responsibility (CSR) Activity

 In case of CSR activities undertaken by the Company, 
if any expenditure of revenue nature is incurred or an 
irrevocable contribution is made to any agency to be 
spent by the latter on any of the activities mentioned 
in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013, the same is 
charged as an expense to its Statement of Profit and Loss 
and if any extra material amount has been done the same 
has been carried forward as current asset.

23. Earnings Per Share

 Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net 
profit or loss before OCI for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose 
of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit 
or loss before OCI for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects 

of all dilutive potential equity shares.

24. Segment Reporting

 The Company’s operating business segments are 
organized and managed separately according to the 
nature of products and services provided, with each 
segment representing a strategic business unit that 
offers different products and serves different markets.

25. Provisions

 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a 
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation. When the Company 
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, 
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, 
but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. 
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the 
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

 Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no 
longer probable that the outflow of resources would 
be required to settle the obligation, the provision is 
reversed.
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Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025
WIP Ageing

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years 3 years & above Total

As on 2024-25

FURNITURES AND FIXTURES  -    -    -    -    -   

As on 2023-24

FURNITURES AND FIXTURES  40.03  -    -    -    40.03 

Notes:-

1. The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company, in case of land which are on long term lease 
from government, the lease agreement are duly executed in favor of company.

2.  For details assets pledged against borrowings Refer Note No. 16 & 20 

3. Company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipment & Intangible assets during the period ending 31st March, 2025 and 
also during the previous period ending 31st March, 2024.

4. Intangible asset under development is Nil (PY Nil)

5. The Company has elected to apply IND AS 116 to its leases and has recognised lease liabilities and corresponding right of use 
assets. In the statement of profit and loss for the year ended, depreciation expenses on right of use assets and finance cost 
for interest accrued on such lease liability has been recognized.

6. For details of Lease Liabilities Refer Note No. 17 & 21

7. Company has not revalued its Right -to- use assets during the period ending 31st March, 2025.  

8. During the year ended March 31, 2025, certain assets which were old and have no realisable value having Net book value of 
Rs.1.59 Lakhs/-(PY Rs.  Rs.0.51 Lakhs/-) (Gross book value of Rs. 14.82 Lakhs/-(PY Rs. 6.46 Lakhs/-)) were retired and shown as 
impairement loss in the books. 

Details of Assets Retired during the year are as follows (Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars
Current Year Previous year

Gross Value Net Value Gross Value Net Value

 Plant & machinery  2.21  0.12  5.16  0.34 

 Computers  7.17  0.36  1.30  0.17 

 Office Equipment  1.98  0.15  -    -   

 Furniture & Fixtures  3.46  0.96  -    -   

 Total  14.82  1.59  6.46  0.51 

Note 3: Investments

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

a Investment in 100% Subsidiary Company

Archid Panel Industries Private Limited   6,731.00  4,240.00 

(2,13,82,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- face value (P.Y 1,64,00,000 
Equity shares))  

During the year company has invested in shares @Rs. 50/- per share

 6,731.00  4,240.00

Note 4: Loans & Advances

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Unsecured, Considered Good

        Loan & Advances  -    -   

-    -    
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Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025
Note 5: Other Non-Current Financial Assets 

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

i)Security Deposits  166.89  163.44 

ii)Security Deposits - Related Party  3.24  -   

iii) Balance With Banks

   - Bank Deposit for Margin Money  13.19  -   

 (Maturity period more than 12 months)

 183.32  163.44 

Note 6: Deferred Tax Assets

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Opening deferred tax asset 62.32  163.25  

Deferred tax (Liability)/Asset arising in current year on account of 
timing difference

    1. WDV of Fixed Assets  27.10  (156.11)

    2. Gratuity  19.50  (1.05)

    3. Leave Encashment  13.27  (3.67)

    4. Provisions  10.75  56.63 

    5. Lease Asset  2.70  3.27 

 73.31  (100.93)

 135.63  62.32 

Note 7: Other Non-Current Assets

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

a Capital Advances

        For Plant & Machinery  8.74 6.51 

 8.74 6.51

b Advances Other then Capital Advances

Other Advances

 - Income Tax Refund receivable  32.60 71.72

 32.60 71.72

Total Other Non Current Assets   41.34   78.23 

Note 8: Inventories

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

(At Lower of cost or Net realisable value)

        Raw Materials  1,561.56  1,789.21 

        Finished Goods  2,278.02  2,222.14 

        Stock in trade  713.40  735.35 

        Work in Progress  39.74  19.20 

        Stores, Spares & Consumption  283.53  428.63 

  4,876.24   5,194.52 

Note: Inventories are pledged against the cash credit limit obtained by the company.
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Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025
Note 9: Trade Receivables

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Unsecured

   -Considered Good*  10,341.17  9,836.45 

   -Significant increase in risk  433.34  274.25 

   -Credit Impaired  -    -   

    Less: Allowances for Credit loss  374.71  332.01 

 10,399.80  9,778.69 

*(includes Related Party Rs.2.30 Lakhs /- (P.Y 20.65 Lakhs/-)) 

1. The above outstanding is from date of transaction of sales.  

2. Trade receivables are pledged against the cash credit limit obtained by the Company.  

3. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0-90 days.  

4. No debts are due from Directors or other officers of the Company.  

Particulars
Less than 6 

months
6months to 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 
years

Total as on 
31.03.2025

a Unsecured ; Undisputed

   -Considered Good*  9,718.15  515.46  84.47  22.16  0.92  10,341.17 

   -Significant increase in risk  -    -    115.13  108.38  58.32  281.82 

   -Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

b Unsecured ; Disputed

   -Considered Good  -    -    -    -    -    -   

   -Significant increase in risk  66.48  -    50.18  27.22  7.63  151.52 

   -Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

    Less: Allowances for Credit loss   374.71  

 9,784.64  515.46  249.78  157.76  66.88  10,399.80 

Particulars
Less than 6 

months
6months to 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 
years

Total as on 
31.03.2024

a Unsecured ; Undisputed

   -Considered Good  9,483.86  277.71  60.50  11.56  2.83  9,836.45 

   -Significant increase in risk  17.20  -    105.32  68.67  1.97  193.15 

   -Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

b Unsecured ; Disputed

   -Considered Good  -    -    -   

   -Significant increase in risk  29.24  12.99  17.98  17.49  3.39  81.10 

   -Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

    Less: Allowances for Credit loss  332.01 

 9,530.30  290.70  183.79  97.72  8.19  9,778.69 
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Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025
Note 10: Cash & Cash Equivalents

Particulars 31.03.2025
(Amount in Lakhs)

31.03.2024  
(Amount in Lakhs)

a Balances with Banks

  - Balances in current accounts  -    -   

  - Balances in Fixed Deposit -

Maturity of  less than 12 months  -    -   

b Cash in hand  18.48  17.69 

 18.48  17.69 

Note 11: Bank balances other then Cash & Cash Equivalents

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Deposit for Margin Money - less than 12 months  51.89  52.35 

 51.89  52.35 

Note 12:  Current Income Tax Assets

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

 Advance Tax  -  400.00 

     TDS Receivable  -  18.33 

     Less: Provision for Taxation  -  (403.00) 

 -  15.33 

Note 13: Other Current Assets

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

a Advances to related parties

      - The Mysore Chipboard Ltd.  -    27.45 

      - Archidply Decor Ltd.  9.62  10.08 

      - Archidpanel Industries Pvt Ltd.  125.36 -

b Others

       Prepaid expenses  84.48  77.05 

       Balance With Revenue Authoroties  96.73  146.69 

       Advance for Supply of Goods/Services  496.56  69.56 

       Other Receivable-RODTEP  0.75  -   

       Other Advances  29.00  62.07 

  842.50  392.90 

Note 14: Equity Share Capital

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

AUTHORIZED

2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10.00 each  2,500.00  2,500.00 

(P.Y 2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)
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Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED, AND PAID UP

1,98,65,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10.00 each  1,986.50  1,986.50 

(Previous year 1,98,65,000 shares of Rs.10 each)

 1,986.50  1,986.50 

a. Details of the Shares hold by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Comapany

Name of Shareholder
 As at 31.03.2025  As at 31.03.2024

 No of Shares  % of Shares  No of Shares  % of Shares

Assam Timber Products Pvt Ltd  22,55,786  11.36  22,55,786  11.36 

Vanraj Suppliers Pvt Ltd  39,43,509  19.85  39,43,509  19.85 

Ravi Marketing Services Pvt Ltd  28,27,850  14.24  28,27,850  14.24 

The Mysore Chipboards Limited  17,97,431  9.05  17,97,431  9.05 

b. Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at beginning & end of the reporting period.

Particular
 As at 

31.03.2025 
 As at 

31.03.2024

Outstanding as at beginning of the reporting period  1,98,65,000  1,98,65,000 

Add: Shares issued during the year  -    -   

Less: Shares extinguished on buy-back  -    -   

Outstanding as at end of the Reporting period  1,98,65,000  1,98,65,000 

c.  The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share, Each Shareholder is eligible 
for one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining 
assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 
However, no such preferencial amounts exist currently.      

d.  Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Name of Shareholder

 As at 31.03.2025 
 % change 
during the 

year 

 As at 31.03.2024

 No of 
Shares as at 
31.03.2025

 % of Shares 
 No of 

Shares as at 
31.03.2024 

 % of Shares

Shyam Daga  5,73,685  2.89  -    5,73,685  2.89 

Sangeeta Bharadia  4,100  0.02  -    4,100  0.02 

Deendayal Daga  7,71,620  3.88  -    7,71,620  3.88 

Usha Daga  7,60,300  3.83  -    7,60,300  3.83 

Deendayal Daga (HUF)  20,000  0.10  -    20,000  0.10 

Rajiv Daga  6,51,342  3.28  -    6,51,342  3.28 

Assam Timber Products Pvt Ltd  22,55,786  11.36  -    22,55,786  11.36 

Vanraj Suppliers Pvt Ltd  39,43,509  19.85  -    39,43,509  19.85 

Ravi Marketing Services Pvt Ltd  28,27,850  14.24  -    28,27,850  14.24 

The Mysore Chipboards Limited  17,97,431  9.05  -    17,97,431  9.05 

Shree Shyam Tea Pvt Ltd  2,77,900  1.40  -    2,77,900  1.40 

 1,38,83,523  69.89  1,38,83,523  69.89 

e. Equity shares movement during the 5 years preceding March 31, 2025
 Equity shares extinguished on buy-back

 In the Financial Year 2020-2021, the Company has Bought back its 22,00,000 equity shares @Rs.37/- per share amounting to Rs. 
8.14 Crores being 9.97% of the total equity share. The equity shares bought back were extinguished on March 17, 2021. 

 The Company does not have any Holding/ Ultimate Holding Company. As such, no shares are held by them or their 
Subsidiaries/ Associates.      

 There are NIL ( Previous year NIL) shares reserved for issue under option and contracts/commitment for the sale of shares/ 
disinvestment.      
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Note 15: Other Equity

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Share Premium  880.16  880.16 

Capital Subsidy  30.00  30.00 

Capital Redemption reserve  220.00  220.00 

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year  8,057.88  7,328.35 

Profit for the Year  787.86  729.53 

Balance at the end of the year  8,845.74  8,057.88 

Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at the beginning of the year  (2.83)  (64.69)

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)  (25.91)  61.87 

Balance at the end of the year  (28.74)  (2.83)

Total  9,947.16   9,185.22 

Share Premium :- This Share Premium had been created on issue of shares by way of public issue and right issue.

Capital Subsidy :- Subsidy received in the Fincancial year 2011-12 towards setting up of the Laminates division.

Capital Redemption Reserve:- This reserve was created upon buy back of equity shares in FY 2020-21

Retained Earnings: Amount of retained earnings represents accumulated profit and losses of the Company as on reporting 
date.Such profits and losses are after transfer to any reserves as statutorily required and adjustment for remeasurement gain loss 
on defined benefit plan.

Note 16: Financial Non-Current Borrowings

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

a) Secured

          Term Loans  - Vehicle*  13.97  21.37 

Total  13.97  21.37 

Particulars Final repayment  As at 31.03.2025  As at 31.03.2024 

Term Loans - Vehicle

 - HDFC Bank Ltd. Mar-27  8.63  12.41 

 - HDFC Bank Ltd. Jul-26  5.34  8.95 

 13.97  21.37 

 Less: Current maturities of long term debt  8.07  7.40 

 5.90  13.97 

(*Secured by certain vehicles, term loan repayable within 3 to 5 years in equal monthly installments)

  5.90   13.97   

Note 17: Lease liabilities 

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Lease liabilities

          Provision for Lease liabilities payable beyond 12 months  282.55  195.62 

          Less: Short Term Provision  108.62  74.37 

 173.94  121.25 

Lease liability is initially measured at the present value of future lease payments. Lease payments are discounted using the interest 
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rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rate. Lease liability is subsequently 
remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and reducing the carrying amount to 
reflect the lease payments made. A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the 
lease term or a change in an index or rate used to determine lease payments. The remeasurement normally also adjusts the 
leased assets.      
Note 18: Provisions

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Provision for Employee Benefits

          Provision for Gratuity  547.86  470.38 

          Less: Short Term Provision  172.71  150.87 

(Includes Related Party Rs.90.37 Lakhs/-(P.Y 80.71 Lakhs/-))  375.15  319.51 

          Provision for Leave Encashment  337.93  285.21 

          Less: Short Term Provision  127.12  109.37 

(Includes Related Party Rs.139.66 Lakhs/-(P.Y 121.52 Lakhs/-))  210.81  175.84 

 585.96  495.36 

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable 
that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Note19: Other Non Current Liabilities

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Government Subsidy

        Opening  131.22  159.33 

          Add: Received during the year  -    -   

          Less: Depreciation withdrawn  25.03  28.12 

 106.19  131.22 

In the Finanacial year 2022-2023 Asset related government grant received on Plant & Machinery and the same has been accounted 
for as deferred revenue and depreciation withdrawn  proportionately recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Note 20: Financial Current Borrowings

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

a. Secured 

Repayable on demand

Bank overdraft/Cash Credit  6,877.68  6,435.41 

 6,877.68  6,435.41 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2025  As at 31.03.2024 

State Bank Of India*  3,110.54  2,654.81 

HDFC Bank#  3,767.14  3,780.60 

Axis Bank##  -    -   

( *Working capital loan from SBI Bank of Rs. 4000 lakhs is secured by  1st Pari Passu charge on entire current assets Stock and book 
debts of the company both present and future and collateral charge 1st Pari Passu on fixed assets both present and future of the 
company and personal guarantee of promoter directors.)      
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( #Working capital loan from HDFC Bank of Rs. 4050 lakhs is Secured by  1st Pari Passu charge on entire Current assets 
of the company both present and future and collateral security 1st Pari Passu on fixed assets both present and future 
of the company and personal guarantee of 2 Promoter Directors.)

( ##Working capital loan from Axis Bank of Rs. 2000 lakhs is Secured by 1st Pari Passu charge on entire Current assets 
of the company both present and future along with 1st Pari Passu charge on movable Fixed Assets of the company 
(except those funded out of Term Loan from other Banks) and collateral security 1st Pari Passu on entire immovable 
fixed assets of the company in MB arrangement and personal guarantee of 2 Promoter Directors.) But the same has 
not been utilised during the year.  

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

b. Secured

Current Maturities of long term debt

         - Term Loan  8.07  7.40 

c. Unsecured

From Director  150.00  50.00 

From Body Corporate  1,000.00  307.59 

From Body Corporate (Related party)  220.00  220.00 

(Repayable on demand, Interest @ 9% p.a)

 1,378.07  584.99 

 8,255.76  7,020.40 

Borrowings secured against current assets -Details of quarterly returns or statements by the company with the banks in lieu of 
the sanctioned working capital facilities (Refer note no 45)

Note 21: Lease liabilities 

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Current Lease liabilities

          Provision for Lease liabilities payable within 12 months  108.62  74.37 

 108.62  74.37 

Note 22: Trade Payables*

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

   - Undisputed Micro,Small & Medium  3,694.57  1,493.04 

   - Disputed Micro,Small & Medium  -    -   

   - Undisputed Creditors for Goods  976.18  2,236.92 

   - Undisputed Creditors for Services  312.16  390.68 

  4,982.90   4,120.64 
* The above payable is from the date of purchase transactions 
* Trade payables & acceptances are non interest bearing 

 Trade Payables
Less than 1 

year
 1-2 years  2-3 years 

 More than 3 
years 

 Total as on 
31.03.2025

   - Undisputed Micro,Small & Medium  3,694.57  -    -    -    3,694.57 

   - Disputed Micro,Small & Medium  -    -   

   - Undisputed Creditors for Goods  956.44  19.73  -    -    976.18 

   - Undisputed Creditors for Services  309.38  0.64  2.08  0.04  312.16 

 4,960.40  20.38  2.08  0.04  4,982.90 
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Trade Payables
Less than 1 

year
 1-2 years  2-3 years 

 More than 3 
years 

 Total as on 
31.03.2024

   - Undisputed Micro,Small & Medium  1,493.04  -    -    -    1,493.04 

   - Disputed Micro,Small & Medium  -   

   - Undisputed Creditors for Goods  2,236.92  -    -    -    2,236.92 

   - Undisputed Creditors for Services  390.23  0.40  0.04  -    390.68 

 4,120.19  0.40  0.04  -    4,120.64 

Note 23: Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Statutory Payables  292.99  209.88 

Other Payables*  72.39  55.94 

*(It includes expenses payable)

 365.38   265.81 

Note 24 : Current Provisions

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024 

(Amount in Lakhs)

a. Provision for Employee Benefits

         Provision for gratuity  172.71  150.87 

         Provision for leave encashment  127.12  109.37 

         Other Employee Provisions  332.05  282.03 

 631.88  542.27 

b. Others

        Special Discount Payable  0.14  15.65 

         Other Expenses Payable  25.87  20.83 

         Quality Complaint Payable  6.20  18.23 

         Provision for Scheme  33.64  63.50 

 65.85  118.21 

697.74  660.47 

Note 25 : Other Current Liabilities

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024 

(Amount in Lakhs)

a Contract liabilities

          Advance from customers  118.12  122.60 

(Includes Related Party Rs.21.97 Lakhs (P.Y 44.27 Lakhs))  118.12  122.60 

b Others

         Security Deposit from Vendors and Customers  32.93  45.34 

 32.93  45.34 

 151.05   167.95 
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Note 26: Current Income Tax Liabilities(Net)

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Provision for Tax  317.00 -

(Less) Advance Tax  275.00  -   

(Less) TDS/TCS Receivable  10.26 -

 31.74 

 31.74  -   

Reconciliation of estimated Income tax expenses at Indian Statutory Income tax rate to Income tax expenses report-
ed in the Statement of Profit & Loss      

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Accounting profit before tax  1,060.99  1,256.01 

At Statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%

Estimated tax expenses  267.03  316.11 

Expenses not deductible for tax purpose  (23.34)  187.82 

Deferred tax  73.31  (100.93)

Total tax reported in the statement of profit and loss  317.00   403.00 

Note 27: Revenue From Operations

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Sale of Products   46,408.06   43,542.86 

Other Operating Revenue

RODTEP  4.64  -   

Royalty on use of brand name  15.47  32.25 

46428.17  32.25 

Particular of sale of products

Laminate & Allied Products  13,226.33  14,134.14 

Plywood & Allied Products  31,708.31  26,598.99 

Medium Density Fibre Board  1,473.42  2,809.73 

  46,408.06   43,542.86 

Note 28: Other Income

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Interest Received  10.16  62.16 

Corporate Guarantee Fee Received  1.25  77.75 

Interest on IT refund  14.40  -   

Foreign Exchange Gain  16.02  43.87 

Balance written back  7.26  25.00 

Profit on Sale of Fixed Asset  12.76  0.72 

Depreciation withdrawn on Government grant  25.03  28.12 

Other Non Operating Income  20.56  27.89 

 107.44  265.49 
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Note 29: Cost of Material Consumed

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Raw Material  Consumed

Opening Stock  1,789.21  1,892.74 

Add: Purchases  12,731.39  12,802.08 

Less: Sales  -    -   

Less: Closing Stock  1,561.56  1,789.21 

 12,959.04  12,905.62 

Imported and Indigenous Raw Materials Consumed:
Year Ended 31.03.2025 Year Ended 31.03.2024

 % 
 Amount in 

Lakhs 
 % 

 Amount in 
Lakhs

Imported 3.51%  454.41 6.86%  884.89 

Indigenous 96.49%  12,504.63 93.14%  12,020.73 

100%  12,959.04 100%  12,905.62 

Break up of Raw Materials Consumed (As certified by 
Management)

Year Ended 31.03.2025 Year Ended 31.03.2024

 Qty 
 Amount in 

Lakhs 
 Qty 

 Amount in 
Lakhs

Paper in Kgs  80,73,710  4,490.85  79,01,275  4,262.30 

Timber in Cbm  18,819  2,574.30  17,650  2,101.05 

Veener(incl own production) in sq. mtr  21,57,077  425.91  24,50,697  472.87 

Core Veneer in Cbm  4,500  868.35  9,486  1,602.14 

Chemicals in Kgs  74,05,706  3,404.28  75,88,541  3,456.49 

Others  1,195.36  1,010.77 

 1,76,59,812  12,959.04  1,79,67,649  12,905.62 

Note 30: Purchase of Stock in trade

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Purchase of Traded Goods  20,562.50  17,443.32 

 20,562.50  17,443.32 

Note 31: Changes in Inventory of Finished Goods, Work in process & Stock in trade

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Invetories (at close)

Finished Goods  2,278.02  2,222.14 

WIP  39.74  19.20 

Stock-in-Trade  713.40  735.35 

Invetories (at commencement)

Finished Goods  2,222.14  2,236.78 

WIP  19.20  17.90 

Stock-in-Trade  735.35  628.94 

(Increase)  /  Decrease in Stock  (54.47)  (93.07)
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Note 32: Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Salaries and Wages  2,930.74  2,663.25 

Director Remuneration  115.20  109.37 

Contribution to and provisions for provident and other funds  326.43  260.87 

Staff Welfare Expenses  27.64  23.32 

Employee Insurance Expense  13.59  11.18 

 3,413.60  3,068.00 

Directors Remuneration, under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 are as follows:

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Salary & Perks  111.00  104.40 

Sitting Fees  4.20  4.97 

Total  115.20  109.37 

Note 33: Finance cost

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Interest on Term Loans  1.58  2.21 

Interest on Working Capital borrowings  646.34  640.55 

Interest on Unsecured Loan  99.11  36.45 

Interest on statutory Liabilities  1.04  6.26 

Interest on Lease Liabilities  29.75  18.48 

Bank charges, L C Charges & Discounting Charges  9.83  10.55 

Processing Charges  22.00  28.05 

 809.66  742.56 

Note 34: Other Expenses

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

a Manufacturing Expenses

Stores and Spares consumed *  524.79  540.37 

Packing Charges  165.07  168.34 

Processing Charges  760.64  776.82 

Power and fuel consumed  1,395.40  1,174.68 

Repairs to Plant and Machinery  41.14  39.46 

Repairs to Building  7.44  6.74 

Repairs to Others  3.60  3.86 

 2,898.09  2,710.27 

*Imported and Indigenous Stores and Spare Parts Consumed:

Particulars
Year Ended 31.03.2025 Year Ended 31.03.2024

% Amount in Lakhs % Amount in Lakhs

Imported 1.21%  6.35 0.00%  -   

Indigenous 98.79%  518.44 100.00%  540.37 

100%  524.79 100%  540.37 
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Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)
b Selling, Distribution, Administrative and Other Expenses

Rent  102.98  132.03 

Rates and Taxes  42.64  42.75 

Printing and Stationery  10.96  11.66 

Postage, Telephone and Telegram  48.51  62.12 

Insurance  58.42  67.94 

Legal, License and Professional Fees  182.65  158.10 

Repairs & Maintenance Expenses  79.16  78.28 

Auditors Remuneration  8.50  9.70 

Travelling and conveyance  358.24  323.77 

Commission on sales and samples  131.14  384.14 

Sample Folders Sales  369.41  320.79 

Freight, forwarding and other expenses  1,874.49  1,825.01 

Vehicle Running Expenses  17.07  16.53 

Sales Promotion and Advertisement Expenses  351.62  1,039.94 

Discount & Rebates  466.46  401.83 

Claims and Bad debts written off  70.74  101.03 

Provision for bad debt  42.70  252.61 

    Less: Reversal of Provision for Bad Debts -  42.70  27.62  224.99 

CSR Discharged  27.00  22.00 

Other  Expenses  174.91  143.35 

Impairment Loss on Fixed Asset  1.58  0.51 

Prior Period Expenses  2.51  0.07 

 4,421.71  5,366.56 
Grand Total(a + b)  7,319.80  8,076.83 

Note 35: Auditors Remuneration

Particulars
 Year Ended 
31.03.2025 

 Year Ended 
31.03.2024

a) Statutory Audit Fee  4.00  4.00 

b) Tax Audit Fee  1.00  1.00 

c) For GST Audit Fee  3.50  3.70 

d) For others Consultancy Fee  -    1.00 

Total  8.50  9.70 
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Note: - 37 : Segment Reporting
The Company has identified and rearranged there segments on the basis of production and sales of product in line with IND 
AS 108 "Operating Segments" against earlier years segment as wood based and paper based,reporting taking into account 
organizational structure as were as differential risk and return of these segments.

Details of the Products included in each segment are as under:

i)      Plywood & Allied Products        

ii)     Laminate & Allied Products        

iii)    Medium Density Fibre Board (MDF)        

The segment information has been prepared in conformity with the Accounting Policies for preparing and presenting the 
financial statements of the Company.

Segment revenue and results includes manufacturing as well as trading activities for the same segment product. Segment 
current assets and liabilities are taken on the basis of the turnover of the segment.

The following table presents the information relating to profit, assets and liabilities of the operating segment. (Primary Segment) 
of the Company. 

The Unallocated Segment includes general corporate income and expense items, which are not allocated to any business segment.

Note 36: Contingent Liabilities & Commitments(To the extent not provided for)

Particulars
31.03.2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Excise Duty*  81.02  81.02 

Income tax**  -    -   

GST***  543.05  1,611.18 

Guarantees given by the bank on behalf of the Company  28.41  28.99 

Guarantees given to Bank by the Company.  14,510.00  11,530.00 

Vendor  27.29  27.29 

*  On account of Demerger of Plywood & Block Board and Particle & laminated 
board (both divisions) of The Mysore Chip Boards Limited in to the Company in the 
financial year 2007-08:      

The Company, for and on behalf of  The Mysore Chip Boards Limited has given 
a guarantee towards a show cause notice issued by the Excise Department 
demanding a dues  from The Mysore Chip Boards Limited. However The Mysore 
Chip Boards Limited had deposited an amount of Rs. 16.00 lakhs/-( P.Y. Rs. 16.00 
lakhs/)  with Central Excise Department. The Mysore Chip Boards Limited had 
filed an appeal & disputed the said demand and the demand has been reduced 
to Rs.81.02 lakhs/- (P.Y. Rs.81.02 lakhs/) and the penalty of the same amount by 
Commissioner of Central Excise, Mysore on 05/10/2006. The Mysore Chip Board Ltd 
has filed an appeal to Custom, Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Bangalore 
and obtained a stay order against that demand. The tribunal has remanded back 
the case to the Commissioner of Central Excise for taking fresh decision after 
following the principles of natural justice. The Department has filed the appeal 
before the Honourable Supreme Court against the order of the Tribunal.

81.02    81.02 

The same has been disposed of on 19th August, 2020 by Honourable Supreme 
Court, confirming   the impugned  orders  of  CESTAT  setting  aside  the  Orders in-
Original passed    by    the    Adjudicating    Authorities    and    remanding    the 
matters back for re adjudication with certain directions.       
** The Company has received demand from Income Tax Department of Rs.80.33 
lakhs for the AY 2020-21. The company has filed an appeal against the same which 
is pending with CIT Appelate1

 
  80.33 

 
 

 
 80.33 

*** The Company has received notice from  The Suprintendent of Central Taxes, 
Bangalore of Rs. 541.80 lakhs for the F.Y 2021-2022. The company has filed response 
against the same which is pending with The Suprintendent of Central Taxes, 
Bangalore 

543.05 
 
  -   
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Note 38: Valuation of Gratuity
Actuarial Valuation Assumption Used for Valuation
Economic Assumptions

Date of Valuation 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Discount Rate 6.45% 7.09%

Salary Escalation Rate 12.00% 12.00%

Expected Rate of Return on Assets N.A. N.A.

Attrition Rate 25.00% 25.00%

Retirement Age  58 Years  58 Years 

  (Amount in Lakhs)

Amounts in Balance Sheet at Period-End 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Closing Defined Defined Benefit Obligation  547.86  470.38 

Closing Fair value of Plan Assets  -    -   

Unrecognized Prior Service Cost  -    -   

Limit under Para 59 (b)

Net Amount Recognized in Balance Sheet  547.86  470.38 

  (Amount in Lakhs)

Amounts Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss at Period-End
1st April 2022 to 31st 

March 2025
1st April 2021 to 31st 

March 2024

Company Service Cost - CY  38.37  58.96 

Interest Cost - CY  29.25  35.49 

Expected Return on Assets - CY  -    -   

Past Service Cost - CY  -    -   

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses - CY  34.62  (82.67)

Other Adjustments - CY  -    -   

Net Periodic Benefit Cost/(Income) - CY  102.25  11.78 

  (Amount in Lakhs)

Current / Non Current Bifurcation 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Current Liability  172.71  150.87 

Non Current Liability  375.15  319.51 

(Asset)/Liability Recognised in the Balance Sheet  547.86  470.38 

  (Amount in Lakhs)

Change in Defined Benefit Obligation during the period
1st April 2022 to  
31st March 2025

1st April 2021 to  
31st March 2024

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation  470.38  474.54 

Current Service Cost  38.37  58.96 

Interest Cost  29.25  35.49 

Plan Participants' Contributions

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss  34.62  (82.67)

Acquisition/Divestiture - L  -    -   

Benefits Paid  (24.77)  (15.93)

Past Service Cost

Currency Impact

Curtailments

Settlements

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation  547.86  470.38 
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  (Amount in Lakhs)

Reconciliation of Amounts Recognised in Balance Sheet 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Op. Balance Sheet  470.38  474.54 

P&L  102.25  11.78 

Contributions/Benefits Paid  (24.77)  (15.93)

Acquisition / Divestiture  -    -   

Other Adjustment

Cl. Balance Sheet  547.86  470.38 

Note: - 39 Corporate social responsibility (CSR) Activity
CSR amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII thereof by the company 
during the year is Rs 27.14 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.21.87 Lakhs) based on Average profit of last 3 years i.e. Rs. 1356.88 Lakhs 
(Previous year Rs. 1093.74 Lakhs).

Amounts in Lakhs

Expense to be 
incurred in F.Y

Amount to be 
spent

Amount available for set 
off of earlier years

Amount Spent during 
the year

Amount unspent/
(Excess)

2023-2024 21.87 0.51 22.00 (0.64)

2024-2025 27.14 0.64 27.00 (0.50)

Trust Name Purpose Amount in Lakhs

Swachh Paryavaran Trust Tree Plantation 12.00

Mata Krishnawanti Memorial 
Educational society

Promoting Education, including special education and 
employment enhancing vocational skills especially among 
children, women, elderly and the differently abled and 
livelihood enhancement projects.

15.00

Total   27.00

Note: - 40 Earning Per Share:
Basic earnings (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

In terms of Ind AS- 33 on “Earning Per Share” the calculation of EPS is given 

Particulars
Year ended  

March 31st 2025
Year ended  

March 31st 2024

i) Net Profit After Tax (A) (Rs. in Lakhs) 787.86 729.53

ii) Weighted Average number of Equity Shares (B) 19,865,000 19,865,000

iii) Face Value Per Equity Share (Rs.) 10 10

iv) Earning Per Share (A-B) (Rs) – Basic & Diluted 3.97 3.67

Note: - 41 Disclosures Pursuant To Securities And Exchange Board Of India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 And Section 186 Of The Companies Act, 2013

 Details of investments made have been given as part of Note ‘3’ Investments in Subsidiary.

 In the year 2022-2023 Company has given Corporate Guarantee for availing a loan facility on behalf of M/s Archidply Décor 
Ltd related concern of the Company to Kotak Mahindra Bank (1000 lakhs) and HDFC Bank Limited (1500 lakhs) for the 
credit facilities granted by them for the purpose of principal business activity of M/s Archidply Décor Ltd and the same is 
continued. 

 The same was approved by board on May 17, 2023 

 In the year 2022-2023 Company has given Corporate Guarantee for availing loan facility on behalf of M/s Archidpanel 
Industries Pvt Ltd, 100% Subsidiary of the Company to State Bank of India (5710 Lakhs) amount of loan is Rs. 5500.44 lakhs 
as on 31.03.2025,  HDFC Bank Limited (4800 Lakhs) amount of loan is Rs. 4019.71 lakhs as on 31.03.2025 and during the year 
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to Axis Bank (1500 lakhs), amount of loan is Rs. 1483.99 lakhs as on 31.03.2025 for the credit facilities granted by them for the 
purpose of Project Cost for setting up of MDF plant and principal business activity of M/s Archidpanel Industries Pvt Ltd

 The same was approved by board on August 09, 2022

Note: - 42: Related Party

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related party, 
regardless of whether a price is charged. Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be 
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Compensation includes all employee benefits i.e. all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided by the entity, or on behalf 
of the entity, in exchange for services rendered to the entity. It also includes such consideration paid on behalf of a parent of the 
entity in respect of the entity. Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) 
of that entity.

Disclosure as per Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is as follows:

Subsidiary Company:

Archidpanel Industries Private limited (100% subsidiary)

Key Management Personnel:

i) Mr.   Deendayal Daga – Chairman

ii) Mr.   Rajiv Daga – Managing Director

iii) Mr.   Shyam Daga – Non-Executive Director
iv) Mrs. Shanti V. Mallar- Independent Director (Retired on 10.03.2025)
v) Mr.   Pritam Singh- Independent Director
vi) Mr.   Rohit Pareek- Independent Director 
vii) Mr.   Anil Sureka- Chief Financial Officer

viii)

ix)

Mr.   Atul Krishna Pandey- Company Secretary

Ms. Anchal Mittal- Independent Director (Appointed on 26.04.2025)

Enterprises Owned/ Influenced by key Management personnel or their relatives: 

i) The Mysore Chip Boards Ltd

ii)  Assam Timber Products Pvt Ltd

iii)  Archidply Décor Ltd.

iv)  Archid Panel Products

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties as listed below during the year under consideration. Full 
Disclosure has been made and the Board of Directors considers such transactions to be in normal course of business and at 
rates agreed between the parties. Details of transactions with related parties are as follows:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31.03.2025 Year ended 31.03.2024

Transactions with related parties:   

a) Purchase of goods    

  - Assam Timber Products Pvt. Ltd. 176.75 211.46

  - Archidply Decor Ltd. 1.02 Nil

  - Archidpanel Industries Pvt. Ltd. 115.41 Nil

b) Royalties Received    

  - Assam Timber Products Pvt. Ltd. 2.65 13.31

  - Archid Panel Products 11.13 18.95

c) Lease Rent Paid    
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  - Archidpanel Industries Pvt. Ltd. 12.96 Nil

d) Rent Received  

  - Archidply Decor Ltd. Nil 0.65

e) Sale of goods    

  - Archidply Decor Ltd. 0.38 2.87

  - Archidpanel Industries Pvt. Ltd. 204.89 7.95

  - Assam Timber Products Pvt. Ltd. 0.10 0.08

f ) Interest Paid    

  - Assam Timber Products Pvt. Ltd. 19.80 19.84

  - Rajiv Daga 4.50 1.78

g) Fee For Corporate Guarantee    

 - Archidply Decor Ltd. 0.25 12.5

 - Archidpanel Industries Pvt. Ltd. 1.00 65.25

h) Interest Received on loan    

  - Archidpanel Industries Pvt. Ltd. Nil 54.98

i) Loan Taken  

  - Rajiv Daga 100.00 50.00

j) Loan received back  

  - Archidpanel Industries Pvt. Ltd. Nil 518.2

Key Management Personnel    

a) Remuneration to Director paid* 111.00 104.4

b) Sitting fee paid 4.20 4.97

c) Remuneration to CFO 47.20 41.09

Outstanding balances on date:    

a)    Director Remuneration Payable Nil Nil

b)   Director Gratuity 90.37 80.71

c) Director Leave Encashment 139.66 121.52

Advance Received :    

- Assam Timber Products Pvt. Ltd. 21.97 44.27

Loan Balance Outstanding:    

- Assam Timber Products Pvt. Ltd. 220.00 220.00

- Rajiv Daga 150.00 50.00

Receivable from Related Parties    

a)    Advance paid    

  - Archidply Décor Ltd. 9.62 10.08

  - Archidpanel Industries Pvt. Ltd. 125.36 Nil

  - The Mysore Chipboards Ltd. Nil 27.45

b) Receivable    

  - Archidpanel Products 2.30 4.15

- Archidpanel Industries Pvt. Ltd. Nil 16.50
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c) Lease Deposit    

 - Archidpanel Industries Pvt. Ltd. 3.24 Nil

Investment as on closing date
6731.00 4240.00

- Archidpanel Industries Pvt. Ltd.

Corporate Guarantee Given Balance    
  - Archidply Decor Ltd. 2500.00 2500.00

    - Archidpanel Industries Pvt. Ltd. 12010.00 9030.00

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

1. The sales to/ purchases from/ services availed from/ services provided to related parties are made on terms 
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.

2. Outstanding balances at the year-end from related parties are unsecured and interest free

3. The above Remuneration is exclusive of Leave Encashment and Gratuity as the same is provided on Actuarial Valuation 
done for company as a whole.

Note: - 43 Unclaimed shares

The disclosure in accordance with the requirement of Regulation 34(3) and Part F of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with respect to demat suspense account / unclaimed suspense account are as 
follows:

Sr.No Particulars
Outstanding 
Shares as on 
31.03.2025

Outstanding 
Shares as on 
31.03.2024

1
Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the 
Suspense Account lying as on April 1, 2024

3,225 3,225

2
Shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of shares from 
Suspense Account during the year;

Nil Nil

3
Shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the Suspense 
Account during the year;

Nil Nil

4
Shareholders whose shares are transferred to the demat account of the 
IEPF Authority as per Section 124 of the Act

Nil Nil

5
Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the 
Suspense Account lying at the end of the year;

3,225 3,225

Note: - 44 Micro, Small or Medium Enterprises
Based on the information/documents available with the Company, information as per the requirements of section 22 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

  (Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 
accounting year;

3694.57 1493.04

The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 
accounting year;

NIL NIL

The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 NIL NIL
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006);

NIL NIL

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year. NIL NIL

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until 
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, 
for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.

NIL NIL



Archidply Industries Limited Annual Report 2025

96  

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025
Note:- 45 Quarterly Returns submitted to Banks
The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five hundred lakhs rupees, in aggregate, from banks on 
the basis of security of current assets. Differences between Quarterly returns or statement filed by the company with banks and 
books of account are as follows:

Quarter As per bank return 
(Amount In Lakhs)

As per books of account 
(Amount In Lakhs)

Difference  (Amount 
In Lakhs) %age of Differences

Q1  5,326.12  5,326.12  -   0.000%

Q2 6,336.29 6,336.29  -   0.000%

Q3 5,533.78 5,533.78  -   0.000%

Q4  4,875.06 4,876.24  (1.18) -0.024%

Note: - 46 Fair values measurements
(Amount in Lakhs)

 
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

FVOCI Amortised Cost FVOCI Amortised Cost

Non-current financial assets        

(i) Investments - - - -

(ii) Loans   Nil   Nil

(iii)Other Financial Assets - 183.32 - 163.44

Current financial assets        

(i) Trade receivable - 10,399.80 - 9,778.69

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents - 18.48 - 17.69

(iii) Bank balances other than above - 51.89 - 52.35

(iv) Investments - - - -

(v) Other current financial assets - - - -

Total Financial assets - 10,653.49 - 10,012.17

Non-current financial liabilities        

(i) Borrowings - 5.90 - 13.97

(ii) Lease Liabilities - 173.94 - 121.25

Current financial liabilities        

(i) Borrowings - 8,255.75 - 7,020.40

(ii) Lease Liabilities - 108.62 - 74.37

(ii) Trade payables - 4,982.90 - 4,120.64

(iii) Other current financial liabilities - 365.38 - 265.81

Total Financial liabilities - 13,892.49 - 11,616.44

Notes:-

1.  The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a 
reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be 
significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.

2.  Investment in subsidiaries are being carried at cost hence not reported.

3.  Finance income and finance cost by instrument category wise classification:-
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i)   Interest income of Rs.10.16 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 62.16 Lakhs) on financial instrument at amortised cost.

ii)   Fee on Corporate guarantee received of Rs. 1.25 lakhs (P.Y-77.75)

iii)  Interest expense of Rs. 747.03 Lakhs (P.Y.Rs. 679.21 Lakhs) on borrowing and lease interest of Rs. 29.75 lakhs (P.Y Rs. 
18.48 lakhs) on Financial Liabilities at amortised cost.

Note 47. Financial Risk Management-Objectives and Policies

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise long term borrowings, short term borrowings, capital creditors, trade and other 
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s financial assets 
include trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, investment in subsidiaries at cost and deposits.

The Company is exposed to market risk and credit risk. The Company has a Risk management policy and its management is 
supported by a Risk management committee that advises on risks and the appropriate risk governance framework for the 
Company. The audit committee provides assurance to the Company’s management that the Company’s risk activities are 
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with 
the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, 
which are summarised below.

(i) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices. Market risk comprises risk of interest rate, currency risk and other price risk, such as commodity price risk and 
equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include FVTPL investments.

a.    Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in 
foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the 
Company’s operating activities. The Company has a treasury department which monitors the foreign exchange fluctuations 
on the continuous basis and advises the management of any material adverse effect on the Company.

 Foreign Currency sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign currency exchange rates, with all 
other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of assets and 
liabilities.

(Amount in Lakhs)

Change in Foreign Currency Rates
 

Effect on Profit before Tax

As on 31st March 2025 As on 31st March 2024

5% USD 9.44  -1.28 

 -5% USD -9.44 1.28 

5% EURO  9.69 9.84 

 -5% EURO (9.69) (9.84)

b.        Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates.

 Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion 
of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected 
through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:
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  Increase/ Decrease in 
basis points

Effect on Profit before 
Tax (Amount in Lakhs)

31st March, 2025 +50 34.39 

-50  -34.39 

31st March, 2024 +50 32.18 

-50  -32.18 

(ii) Credit Risks

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading 
to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables).

The Company implements a credit risk management policy under which the Company only transacts business with 
counterparties that have a certain level of credit worthiness based on internal assessment of the parties, financial condition, 
historical experience, and other factors. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual 
characteristics of each customer. The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed 
individually for creditworthiness.

Trade receivables

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for all the customers. In addition, a large 
number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation 
is based on credit losses historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of 
trade receivables disclosed in Note 9 as the Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company has evaluated the 
concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries.

Refer note no 9 for ageing of trade receivable as of 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024.

No significant changes in estimation techniques or assumptions were made during the reporting period.

Credit risk also arises from transactions with financial institutions, and such transactions include transactions of cash and cash 
equivalents, various deposits, and financial instruments such as derivative contracts. The Company manages its exposure 
to this credit risk by only entering into transactions with banks that have high ratings. The Company’s treasury department 
authorizes, manages, and oversees new transactions with parties with whom the Company has no previous relationship.

Furthermore, the Company limits its exposure to credit risk of financial guarantee contracts by strictly evaluating their necessity 
based on internal decision making processes, such as the approval of the board of directors.

Credit risk exposure

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposure 
to credit risk as of 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 are as follows:

(Amount in Lakhs)

 Particulars As on 31st March 2025 As on 31st March 2024

NON CURRENT    

Investments In Others   -    -   

Loans   -      -   

Other financial assets  183.32 163.44 

CURRENT    

Trade receivable (Net) 10,399.80  9,778.69 

Cash and cash equivalents 18.48 17.69 

Other Bank balances 51.89 52.35 

Other financial assets -    -   

   10,653.50 10,012.17 
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Impairment losses on financial assets

Refer the table below for reconciliation of loss allowance in respect of Trade Receivables:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Trade Receivables (measured under life time excepted 
credit loss model) As on 31st March 2025 As on 31st March 2024

Loss Allowance at the beginning of the year 332.01 107.02 

Add/(less): Allowance provided during the year 42.70 224.99 

Loss Allowance at the end of the year 374.71 332.01 

(iii) Liquidity Risk

The Company’s objective is to maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements at all 
times. The Company relies on a mix of borrowings and excess operating cash flows to meet its needs for funds. The current 
committed lines of credit are sufficient to meet its short to medium/ long term expansion needs. The Company monitors 
rolling forecasts of its liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs. Besides, it generally 
has certain undrawn credit facilities which can be accessed as and when required; such credit facilities are reviewed at regular 
intervals. Thus, no liquidity risk is perceived at present.

Availability of Liquidity is as follows (Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As on 31st March 2025 As on 31st March 2024

Cash and Cash Equivalent 18.48   17.69 

Availability under committed credit facilities  889.46   3,843.66 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual discounted payments.

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2 Years or more Total

Year ended 31st March, 2025        

Borrowings  8,255.76  5.90  -   8,261.65 

Lease liabilities 108.62 120.09  53.84 282.55 

Other financial liabilities 365.38 -    -   365.38 

Trade payables 4,960.40 20.38 2.13 4,982.90 

  13,690.15  146.37 55.97 13,892.49 

Year ended 31st March, 2024        

Borrowings 7,020.40   8.07 5.90 7,034.37 

Lease liabilities 74.37  64.56 56.69 195.62 

Other financial liabilities 265.81 -    -   265.81 

Trade payables 4,120.19 0.40  0.04 4,120.64 

  11,480.77  73.04 62.63 11,616.44 
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Note:- 48 Additional disclosures relating to the requirement of revised Schedule III

(i)  No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the 
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

(ii)  The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 
authority.

(iii)  The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv)  There is no undisclosed income under the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the year ending 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 
which needs to be recorded in the books of account.

(v)  The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(vi)  The borrowings obtained by the company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for 
which such loans were taken.

(vii)  The below charges are pending for satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the 
statutory period.

Sl No Charge holder name Date of Creation /
modification Amount in lakhs Status

1 State Bank of India 30-06-2020 5400
Pending for 

modification

(viii)  Relationship with struck off companies

 There are no transactions with strike off company u/s 248 or 560 of Companies Act, 2013.

(ix)  The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangements which has an accounting impact on current or previous 
financial year.

(x)  Utilisation of Borrowed Fund & Share Premium:

a)  The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entities, including foreign 
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other personsor entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) 
or (b) provide anyguarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b)  The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) 
with theunderstanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: (a) directly or indirectly 
lend or invest inother persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries)or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

xi)  Ratio analysis & its elements

Serial No. Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 Deviation Reason

a) Debt Service Coverage Ratio 2.29 2.68 -17.06%   - 

b) Interest service Coverage Ratio 2.31 2.69 -14.16%  - 

c) Debt Equity Ratio 0.69 0.63 9.95%   - 

d) Total Debts to Total Assets 0.30 0.29 3.92%   - 

e) Creditors Turnover Ratio 7.31 7.43 -1.57%  

f ) Debtors Turnover Ratio 4.60 4.59 0.23%   - 

g) Inventory Turnover Ratio 12.11 11.25 7.60%   - 

h) Operating Margin (%) 3.80% 3.98% -4.51%   - 

i) Net Profit Margin (%) 1.70% 1.67% 1.36%   - 

j) Return on Equity Ratio 6.82% 6.77% 0.73%   - 

k) Return on Capital Employed 9.26% 10.98% -15.62%   - 
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Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025
Note:- 49 

 Previous year’s figures have been rearranged and/or regrouped, wherever necessary.

Note:- 50

 The financial statements have been approved by the Audit Committee at its meeting held on 22th May, 2025 and by the 
Board of Directors on the same date.

Deen Dayal Daga Rajiv Daga AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
Chairman Managing Director For GRV & PK
DIN: 00497806     DIN:01412917 Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 008099S
Anil Sureka Atul Krishna Pandey
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Kamal Kishore
  M.No.:A47815 (Partner)
  Membership No. 205819
Place: Delhi  UDIN: 25205819BMKUHS5724  
Date : 22.05.2025
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INDEPENDENT 
AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of 
M/S. ARCHIDPLY INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of M/s. Archidply Industries Limited (“hereinafter referred 
to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”),”) 
which comprises the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated  Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the consolidated financial statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2025, 
and its consolidated Profit, total comprehensive losses, the consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group 
in accordance with the ethical requirement that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statement in terms of the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
the consolidated financial statement.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each 
matter below, our description of how our audit addresses the matter is provided in that context.

Descriptions of Key Audit Matter How we addressed the matter in our audit

A. Valuation of Inventories
Refer to note 8 to the financial statements. 
The Company is having Inventory of Rs. 7971.31 lakh as on 
31st March, 2025. 

Inventories are to be valued as per Ind AS 2. As described 
in the accounting policies in note 1(11) to the financial 
statements, inventories are carried at the lower of cost and 
net realisable value. As a result, the management applies 
judgment in determining the appropriate provisions 
against inventory of Stores, Raw Material, Finished goods 
and Work in progress based upon a detailed analysis of 
old inventory, net realisable value below cost based upon 
future plans for sale of inventory.

To ensure that all inventories owned by the entity are 
recorded and recorded inventories exist as at the year-end 
and valuation has been done correctly

We obtained assurance over the appropriateness of the man-
agement’s assumptions applied in calculating the value of the 
inventories and related provisions by:
• Completed a walkthrough of the inventory valuation pro-

cess and assessed the design and implementation of the 
key controls addressing the risk.

• Verifying the effectiveness of key inventory controls operat-
ing over inventories; including sample based physical verifi-
cation.

• Verify that the adequate cut off procedure has been applied 
to ensure that purchased inventory and sold inventory are 
correctly accounted.

• Reviewing the document and other record related to phys-
ical verification of inventories done by the management 
during the year.

• Verify that inventories are valued in accordance with Ind AS 
2

• Verifying for a sample of individual products that costs have 
been correctly recorded.
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• Comparing the net realisable value to the cost price of in-
ventories to check for completeness of the associated pro-
vision.

• Reviewing the historical accuracy of inventory provisioning 
and the level of inventory write-offs during the year.

Our Conclusion:
Based on the audit procedures performed we did not identify 
any material exceptions in the Inventory valuation.

B. Revenue recognition on sale of goods and 
impairment loss allowance on trade receivables

      Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which 
is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, rebates, 
scheme allowances, price concessions, incentives and 
returns, if any, (‘variable consideration’) as specified in the 
contracts with the customers.

   An estimate of variable consideration payable to the 
customers is recorded as at the year end. Such estimation 
is done based on the terms of contracts, rebates and 
discounts schemes and historical experience.

     In accordance with Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments, 
the Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition 
of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. In 
calculating the impairment loss allowance, the Company 
has considered its credit assessment and other related 
credit information for its customers to estimate the 
probability of default in future and has considered 
estimates of possible effect from increased uncertainties 
in economic environment. We identified estimation of 
variable consideration and impairment loss allowance 
on trade receivables as a key audit matter because the 
Company’s management exercises significant judgments 
and estimates in calculating the said variable consideration 
and impairment  loss  allowance

Our audit procedures included, amongst others:

• Tested a sample of sales transactions for compliance 
with the Company’s accounting principles to assess the 
completeness, occurrence and accuracy of revenue 
recorded.

• We read and evaluated the Company’s policies for revenue 
recognition and impairment loss allowance and assessed 
its compliance with Ind AS 115 – Revenue From Contracts 
With Customers’ and Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’, 
respectively.

• We assessed the design and tested the operating 
effectiveness of internal controls related to sales including 
variable consideration and impairment loss allowance on 
trade receivables.

• We performed the following tests for a sample of 
transactions relating to variable consideration:

•    Read the terms of contract including rebates and discounts 
schemes as approved by authorized personnel.

•   Evaluated the assumptions used in estimation of variable 
consideration by comparing with the past trends and 
understand the reasons for deviation.

•     Performed retrospective review to identify and evaluate 
variances.

• Tested the design, implementation and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s controls over computation 
of incentives and pay out against the corresponding 
liability

• We evaluated management’s assessment of the 
assumptions used in the calculation of impairment loss 
allowance on trade receivables, including consideration 
of the current and estimated future uncertain economic 
conditions.

• For sample customers, we tested past collection history, 
customer’s credit assessment and probability of default 
assessment performed by the management.

• We tested the mathematical accuracy and computation 
of the allowances.

• We read and assessed the relevant disclosures made 
within the standalone financial statements.

Our conclusion:

Based on the audit procedures performed we did not identify 
any material exceptions in the recognition of revenue and 
incentives and discount expenses.
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Other Information 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Holding Company Board’s Report including Annexure to the Board’s Report, but does not include 
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Holding Company’s annual report is expected to be made available 
to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Board of Director’s for the ConsolidatedFinancial Statements

The holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated financial statements that 
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive 
income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting standards)Rules, 2015, 
as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of each Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection, 
application, implementation and maintenance of appropriate of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Consolidated financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the each Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Respective Management and Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the Management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
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However, future events or conditions may cause the group to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the Consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of entities within the Group to express an 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 
audit of financial information of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements. We remain solely responsible 
for our audit opinion

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes 
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated financial statements may 
be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial 
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the group regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter shouldnot be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable, that: 

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements. 

b.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of aforesaid consolidated financial 
statement have been kept by the so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c.  The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive Losses, 
consolidated Statement of changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are 
in agreement with the books of account.

d.  In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015

e.  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding company as on 31st March, 2025 
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the holding company and on the basis of written representation received 
by the management of subsidiary company, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our Report expresses an unmodified opinion 
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

i.  The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations which could impact its financial position as mentioned in 
note no.36 to Consolidated Financial Statement.

ii.  The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
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Group during the year ended 31st March, 2025.

iv.  a.  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned 
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other source or kind of funds) by the Group to or in 
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

•  directly or indirectly lender invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Group or

•  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b.  The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by 
the group from any person or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the group shall, whether, 

• directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 

• provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c.  Based on audit procedures as we considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our 
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause iv(a) and iv(b) contain any material mis-
statement.

v.  The Group has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks, performed by us on the Company and its subsidiary and in accordance 
with requirements of the Implementation Guide on Reporting on Audit Trial under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the group has used accounting software for maintaining their respective books of account for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software.

 Further, during the course of audit, where audit trial (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the year, we have 
not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

 Additionally, the audit trial has been preserved by the group as per the statutory requirements for records retention.

 The back-up of audit trail (edit log) has been maintained on the servers physically located in India for financial year ended 31st 
March, 2025.

h.  With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section197(16) of the Act:

 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Group to its 
directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to 
any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not 
prescribed other details under Section197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For GRV & PK

Chartered Accountants

FRN.008099S

(Kamal Kishore)

Partner

Place: Delhi M N.205819

Date: 22.05.2025 UDIN: 25205819BMKUHU7000
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Annexure –A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated 
financial statements of Archidply Industries Limited for the year ended 31 
March 2025
The Annexure 1 referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date to the members of M/s. Archidply Industries Limited on the Consolidated financial statements for the year 
ended 31 March 2025, we report that:

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of the following company included 
in consolidated financial statements, does not have any remarks to be included in their reports under Companies (Auditor’s 
Report) Order,2020 (“CARO”), therefore nothing have been reproduced as per the requirements of the Guidance Note on CARO

Name of Entities CIN Nature

Archidpanel Industries Private 
Limited U20299UR2022PTC013589 Wholly Owned Subsidiary

For GRV & PK

Chartered Accountants

FRN.008099S

(Kamal Kishore)

Partner

Place: Delhi M N.205819

Date: 22.05.2025 UDIN: 25205819BMKUHU7000
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the 
Members of Archidply Industries Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. Archidply Industries Limited as of 31 March 
2025 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Archidply Industries Limited hereinafter referred 
to as (“the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with 
reference to the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India under 
the Companies Act, 2013 which are its subsidiary companies, as of that date. In our opinion, the Holding Company and such 
companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 
31 March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by 
such companies considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 



Corporate Overview | Statutory Reports | Financial Statements

109

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

For GRV & PK

Chartered Accountants

FRN.008099S

(Kamal Kishore)

Partner

Place: Delhi M N.205819

Date: 22.05.2025 UDIN: 25205819BMKUHU7000
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025  (Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Notes  As at 31.03.2025  As at 31.03.2024
A. ASSETS
1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property , Plant and Equipment(including Right to Use Asset)  2  14,491.03  14,739.33 
(b) Capital Work-in Progress  2  22.51  185.29 
(c) Goodwill  2  30.78  61.74 
(d) Other Intangible Assets  2  49.65  36.83 
(e) Investment Property
(f ) Financial Assets

    i.  Investments  3  -    -   
    ii. Loans  4  -    -   
    iii. Others  5  849.61  814.84 

(g) Deferred tax Asset (Net)  6  448.37  66.91 
(h) Other non current assets  7  120.90  291.11 
  Total   Non current assets  16,012.86  16,196.06
2. CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories  8  7,971.31  5,456.61 
(b) Financial Assets

    i. Trade Receivables  9  13,654.71  9,778.69 
    ii. Cash and cash equivalent  10  26.81  89.37 
    iii. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent  11  51.89  52.35 

(c) Current Income Tax Assets(net)  12  -    17.82 
(d) Other current assets  13  1,521.71  1,080.36 
 Total Current Assets  23,226.43  16,475.20 

                                TOTAL ASSETS  39,239.30  32,671.26 
B.EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1. EQUITY:
(a) Equity Share Capital  14  1,986.50  1,986.50 
(b) Other Equity  15  8,404.58  9,166.29 
 Total Shareholders Fund  10,391.08  11,152.79 
2. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities

     i. Borrowings  16  6,100.64  7,204.61 
     ii. Lease Liabilities  17  236.08  121.25 

(b) Provisions  18  596.54  495.36 
(c) Other Non Current Liabilities  19  106.19  131.22 
 Total Non-Current liabilities  7,039.45  7,952.44 
3. CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities

     i. Borrowings  20  13,165.15  7,425.40 
     ii. Lease Liabilities  21  124.94  74.37 
    iii. Trade Payables  22 

Total Outstanding dues of Micro and small Enterprises  5,195.71  1,776.27 
Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro and small Enterprises  1,746.72  3,066.51 

    iv. Other financial liabilities  23  386.13  278.77 
(b) Short term Provisions  24  1,001.95  766.78 
(c) Other Current Liabilities  25  165.13  177.95 
(d) Current Income Tax Liabilities(Net)  26  23.02  -   
Total Current liabilities  21,808.76  13,566.04 

                 TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES  39,239.30  32,671.26 

 Notes from 01 to 50 form the integral part of Consolidated  Financial statements

For and On behalf of the board of directors,

Deen Dayal Daga Rajiv Daga AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
Chairman Managing Director For GRV & PK
DIN: 00497806     DIN:01412917 Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 008099S
Anil Sureka Atul Krishna Pandey
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Kamal Kishore
  M.No.: A47815  (Partner)
Place: Delhi  Membership No. 205819
Date : 22.05.2025 UDIN: 25205819BMKUHU7000
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 Notes from 01 to 50 form the integral part of Consolidated  Financial statements

For and On behalf of the board of directors,

Deen Dayal Daga Rajiv Daga AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
Chairman Managing Director For GRV & PK
DIN: 00497806     DIN:01412917 Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 008099S
Anil Sureka Atul Krishna Pandey
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Kamal Kishore
  M.No.: A47815  (Partner)
  Membership No. 205819
Place: Delhi UDIN:25205819BMKUHU7000
Date : 22.05.2025

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the period March 31, 2025 (Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Notes
 Figures at the 
end of Current 

Reporting Period 

 Figures at the 
end of Previous 

Reporting Period 
INCOME :
Revenue From Operations  27  55,591.29  43,567.16 
Other Income  28  154.32  265.15 

TOTAL INCOME  55,745.61  43,832.31 
EXPENSES :
Cost of Goods consumed  29  19,176.02  12,905.34 
Purchase of Stock In Trade  30  20,562.50  17,443.32 
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-process and 
stock-in-trade

 31  (1,879.51)  (102.67)

Employee Benefit Expenses  32  4,240.59  3,070.83 
Finance Cost  33  1,774.11  745.03 
Depreciation & Ammortisation Expense  2  1,338.90  446.75 
Other Expenses  34  11,303.80  8,091.97 
TOTAL EXPENSES  56,516.42  42,600.58 
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION  (770.81)  1,231.73 
Tax Expenses:
Current Tax  317.00  403.00 
Deferred Tax  6  (372.75)  75.53 
Taxes of earlier year  20.73  43.35 
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION FOR THE YEAR  (735.80)  709.84 
Other Comprehensive Income
A i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Defined benefit plan acturial gains/(losses)  (34.62)  82.67 
ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  8.71  (20.81)
B i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(Dimunision)/Increase in the value of Investment  -    (0.74)
ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  -   
Other Comprehensive Income net of tax  (25.91)  61.87 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax  (761.70)  771.71 

Earning Per Share ( D )
Basic & diluted  (3.70)  3.57 



Archidply Industries Limited Annual Report 2025

112  

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the period March 31, 2025 (Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025
For the year ended  

March 31, 2024

A. Cash flows arising from operating activities

Net Profit/(Loss) Before Tax  (770.81)  1,231.73 

Add: Depreciation  1,338.90  446.75 

Interest Paid  1,774.11  745.03 

Loss on Sale of Assets  1.58  0.51 

Less: Other comprehensive (Income)/loss  34.62  (82.67)

 2,309.16  2,506.69 

Less: Profit on sale of Assets  8.82  0.72 

Profit on Reclassification of lease Assets  4.00  -   

Depreciation withdrawn Deferred Government grant  25.03  28.12 

Interest Received  54.85  62.51 

 2,216.46  2,415.35 

Operating profit before working capital changes

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory  (2,514.70)  (385.42)

(Increase)/Decrease in Debtors  (3,876.02)  (574.53)

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances  46.17  (19.99)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets  (441.34)  (375.07)

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  2,099.65  823.35 

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions  336.36  (19.16)

Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities  94.56  (196.53)

Cash flow from Operations  (2,038.87)  1,668.01 

Payment of Income Tax  296.89  522.28 

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities  (2,335.76)  1,145.73 

B. Cash flows arising from Investment activities

Inflows:

Sale of Fixed Assest  17.38  11.84 

Interest Received  54.85  62.51 

Outflows:

Investment in Fixed Assets  494.75  6,490.74 

Loans given  -    -   

FD Made with bank  43.93  458.74 

Purchase of Investment  -    -   

 (466.44)  (6,875.14)

C. Cash flows arising from finance activities

Inflows:

Proceeds from Secured Loan  4,255.77  6,024.57 

Proceeds from Unsecured Loan  1,500.00  550.00 
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Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025
For the year ended  

March 31, 2024

Outflows:

Repayment of Secured Loan  412.40  -   

Repayment of unsecured Loan  707.59  200.00 

Principal payment of lease liabilities  122.03  56.35 

Interest paid on lease liabilities  36.81  18.48 

Interest paid  1,737.30  2,739.63  726.55  5,573.19 

Cash flow from all activities-(A+B+C)  (62.57)  (156.21)

Add: Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of the year  89.37  245.59 

Cash & cash equivalents at year end of the year  26.81  89.37 

Statement of Cash Flow (Contd..) for the period March 31, 2025 (Amount in Lakhs)

 Notes from 01 to 50 form the integral part of Consolidated  Financial statements

For and On behalf of the board of directors,

Deen Dayal Daga Rajiv Daga AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
Chairman Managing Director For GRV & PK
DIN: 00497806     DIN:01412917 Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 008099S
Anil Sureka Atul Krishna Pandey
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Kamal Kishore
  M.No.: A47815  (Partner)
  Membership No. 205819
Place: Delhi UDIN:25205819BMKUHU7000
Date : 22.05.2025
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
A.  EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL      (Amount in lakhs)

 Balance as at April 1, 
2024

 Changes in Equity 
share capital due to 
prior period errors 

 Restated Balance as 
at April 1, 2024 

 Changes in Equity 
Share Capital during 

the year 

 Balance as at 
March 31, 2025 

 1,986.50  -    1,986.50  -    1,986.50 

 Balance as at April 1, 
2023 

 Changes in Equity 
share capital due to 
prior period errors 

 Restated Balance as 
at April 1, 2023 

 Changes in Equity 
Share Capital during 

the year 

 Balance as at 
March 31, 2024 

 1,986.50  -    1,986.50  -    1,986.50 

B.  OTHER EQUITY (Amount in lakhs)

Particulars

 (As at 31st March 2025) 

 Share 
Premium 

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 

 Capital 
Subsidy 

 Capital 
Redemption 

reserve 

 Total 
Other 
Equity 

Opening Balance  880.16  8,038.95  (2.83)  30.00  220.00  9,166.29 
Add: Profit for the Period  (735.80)  (735.80)
Add: Other Comprehensive 
Income/(Loss)

 (25.91)  (25.91)

Total Comprehensive Income 
for the period

 880.16  7,303.16  (28.74)  30.00  220.00  8,404.58 

Closing Balance  880.16  7,303.16  (28.74)  30.00  220.00  8,404.58 

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

 (As at 31st March 2024) 

 Share 
Premium 

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 

 Capital 
Subsidy 

 Capital 
Redemption 

reserve 

 Total 
Other 
Equity 

Opening Balance  880.16  7,329.11  (64.69)  30.00  220.00  8,394.57 
Add: Profit for the Period  709.84  -    -    709.84 
Add: Other Comprehensive 
Income/(Loss)

 61.87  61.87 

Total Comprehensive Income 
for the period

 880.16  8,038.95  (2.83)  30.00  220.00  9,166.29 

Closing Balance  880.16  8,038.95  (2.83)  30.00  220.00  9,166.29 

 

 Notes from 01 to 50 form the integral part of Consolidated  Financial statements

For and On behalf of the board of directors,

Deen Dayal Daga Rajiv Daga AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
Chairman Managing Director For GRV & PK
DIN: 00497806     DIN:01412917 Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 008099S
Anil Sureka Atul Krishna Pandey
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Kamal Kishore
  M.No.: A47815  (Partner)
  Membership No. 205819
Place: Delhi UDIN:25205819BMKUHU7000
Date : 22.05.2025
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Note: - 1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
1. Corporate Information:

 Archidply Industries Limited (the ‘Company’) is a public 
limited company domiciled in India incorporated under 
the provisions of the Companies Act. Its shares are listed 
on two recognized stock exchanges in India. The registered 
office of the company is at Plot No. 7, Sector-9, Integrated 
Industrial Estate, SIDCUL, Pant Nagar, Rudrapur - 263 153, 
Uttarakhand, India.

 The reportable segments have been identified on the basis 
of the products of the Company. Company is engaged 
in the business of manufacturing two broad product 
segments and one trading product segment, as follows: 

i) Wood Based Products: Plywood & Allied Products.

ii) Paper Based Products: Laminate & Allied Products. 

iii) Wood Based Products: Medium Density Fiber board 
(MDF)

 It has branches and dealers’ network spread all over the 
country. The Company is procuring raw material & trading 
goods locally as well as imports them. Goods are sold both 
in domestic and overseas markets.

 The company’s shares are listed in Bombay Stock Exchange 
Ltd. (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India (NSE).

2. Basis of preparation of Financial Statements :      

 The Financial Statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies 
Act 2013 (“the Act”), as notified under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 and other 
relevant provision of the Act, to the extent applicable and 
presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to 
the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), 
as applicable to the Standalone Financial Statement. 

 The financial statements have been prepared under 
historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except 
for the following items which have been measured as 
required by relevant Ind AS:

a)  Financial Instruments classified as fair value through 
other comprehensive income.

b)  The defined benefit (loss)/profit is recognized as at 
the present value of defined benefit obligation less 
fair value of plan assets through other comprehensive 
income.

 Accounting policies have been consistently applied except 
where a newly issued accounting standard is initially 
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard 
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 
The Company’s management evaluates all recently issued 
or revised accounting standards on an on-going basis.

 For the year ended 31st March, 2025, MCA has not notified 
any new standards or amendments to the existing 
standards applicable to the Company.

 Where changes are made in presentation, the comparative 
figures of the previous years are regrouped and re-

arranged accordingly.

3. Accounting Estimates And Assumptions:

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the results of operations during 
the reporting year end. Although these estimates are 
based upon management’s best knowledge of current 
events and actions, actual results could differ from these 
estimates.

4. Equity

a) Ordinary Shares

  Ordinary shares are classified as Equity Share capital. 
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance 
of new shares and buyback are recognized as a 
deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

b) Capital redemption reserve

  As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption 
reserve is created when company purchases its own 
shares out of free reserves or securities premium. 
A sum equal to the nominal value of the shares 
so purchased is transferred to capital redemption 
reserve. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the 
provisions of section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013.

c) Securities Premium

  The amount received in excess of the par value of 
equity shares has been classified as securities premium.

d) Retained Earnings

  Retained earnings represent the amount of 
accumulated earnings of the company.

5. Property, Plant and Equipment

 OWNED ASSET

a) Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at original 
cost (net of tax/ duty credit availed) less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses except freehold land 
which is carried at cost. Cost includes cost of acquisition, 
construction and installation, taxes, duties, freight, other 
incidental expenses related to the acquisition, trial run 
expenses (net of revenue) and pre-operative expenses 
including attributable borrowing costs incurred during 
pre-operational period.

b) Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying 
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the company 
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The 
carrying amount of any component as a separate asset 
is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and 
maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the 
reporting period in which they are incurred.

c) Assets which are not ready for their intended use on 
reporting date are carried as capital work-in-progress 
at cost, comprising direct cost and related incidental 
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expenses.

d) On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to 
continue with the carrying value of all of its property, 
plant and equipment as at 1st April 2016 measured as 
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the 
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

e) Property, Plant and Equipments including continuous 
process plants are depreciated and/or amortized on 
Straight line Method on the basis of their useful lives as 
notified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The 
assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and 
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting 
period.

f ) Depreciation in respect of additions to assets has been 
charged on pro rata basis with reference to the period 
when the assets are ready for use. The provision for 
depreciation for multiple shifts has been made in respect 
of eligible assets on the basis of operation of respective 
units. 

g) Useful lives of the Property, Plant and Equipment as 
notified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 are 
as follows :

Buildings – 30 to 60 years

Plant and Equipments (Paper Division) - 15 years (Triple 
Shift)

Plant and Equipments (Other Division) - 15 years (Triple 
Shift)         

 Furniture and Fixtures - 10 years

Vehicles - 8 to 10 years

Office Equipments - 5 to 10 years  

Computers – 3 years 

LEASED ASSET (RIGHT OF USE ASSETS)

a) The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of 
leases for Land and Buildings. The Company assesses 
whether a contract is or contains a lease, at the inception of 
a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset 
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To 
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the 
use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i)  the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(ii)  the Company has substantially all of the economic 
benefits from use of the asset through the period of 
the lease and

(iii)  the Company has the right to direct the use of the 
asset.

b) The right-of-use asset is a lessee’s right to use an asset over 
the life of a lease. The Company recognizes a right-of-use 
asset (‘ROU’) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease 
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for short-term 
leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months 
or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases of 
short-term and low value assets, the Company recognizes 
the lease payments as an operating expense over the term 
of the lease.

c) The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, 

which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made (Deposits and 
Rentals) at or prior to the commencement date of the 
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. 
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Right-of-use 
assets are depreciated from the commencement date on 
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and 
useful life of the underlying asset.

6. Lease Property

 The Company determines the lease term as the non-
cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods 
covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company 
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods 
covered by an option to terminate the lease if the 
Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. 
In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to 
exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an 
option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts 
and circumstances that create an economic incentive for 
the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, 
or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The 
Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the 
non-cancellable period of a lease.

7. Lease Liabilities

 Lease liability is initially measured at the present value of 
future lease payments. Lease payments are discounted 
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily 
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rate. Lease 
liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the 
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability 
and reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease 
payments made.

 A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of 
certain events such as a change in the lease term or 
a change in an index or rate used to determine lease 
payments. The remeasurement also adjusts the related 
leased assets.

8. Intangible Assets 

a) Intangible assets acquired by payment e.g., Goodwill 
, Trademark and Computer Software are disclosed at 
cost less amortization on a straight-line basis over its 
estimated useful life.

b) Intangible assets are carried at cost, net of accumulated 
amortization and impairment loss, if any.

c) On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to 
continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible 
assets as at 1st April 2016 measured as per the previous 
GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost 
of the intangible assets

d) Intangible assets are amortised on straight-line 
method as follows : 

Goodwill – 20 years

Computer Software – 3 years 

Trademark- 10 years
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9. Investment Property

 Investment Property are stated at original cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses except 
freehold land which is carried at cost. Cost includes cost 
of acquisition, construction and other incidental expenses 
related to the acquisition, trial run expenses (net of revenue) 
and pre-operative expenses including attributable 
borrowing costs incurred during pre-operational period.

 Investment properties are derecognised either when they 
have been disposed of or when they are permanently 
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is 
expected from their disposal.

10. Impairment of Assets

 At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the 
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment 
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount 
of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent 
of impairment loss. The recoverable amount is higher of 
the net selling price and the value in use, determined by 
discounting the estimated future cash flows expected 
from the continuing use of the asset to their present value.

11. Inventories

a) Inventories related to raw materials, packing materials, 
stores & spares are valued at   cost on weighted average 
basis or net realizable value whichever is lower.

b) Waste & scraps are valued at estimated realizable value.

c) Materials in transit and Semi Finished goods are valued 
at cost or market value which ever is lower.

d) Finished goods and process stock include all cost of 
purchases, cost of conversion and other related costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition.

e) Finished goods are valued at cost or net realizable 
value whichever is lower. Net realizable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business less the estimated cost of completion and 
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

f ) Obsolete, defective and unserviceable stocks are duly 
provided for.

12.  Cash Flow Statement

 Cash flows statement are reported using “Indirect method” 
as set out in the Ind AS 7 on ‘Statement of Cash Flow’, 
whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or 
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The 
cash flow from regular revenue generating, financing and 
investing activities of the Company is segregated. 

 Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise 
cash at bank, cash/cheques in hand and short term 
investments (excluding pledged term deposits) with an 
original maturity of less than twelve months.

13. Financial instruments:

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 

a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

 A. Financial Assets

(i) Initial Recognition and Measurement

 The Company classifies its financial assets as those to be 
measured subsequently at fair value (either through other 
comprehensive income, or through profit or loss) and 
those to be measured at amortized cost.

(ii) Subsequent Measurement

 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets 
are classified in following categories:

(a) Debt instruments measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest rate method and losses arising 
from impairment are recognized in Profit and Loss if 
both the following conditions are met:

•	 The asset is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual 
cash flows, and

•	 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal 
amount outstanding.

(b) Equity instruments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income.

(c) Equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL)

(d)  Equity Instruments in subsidiaries are carried at cost, 
in accordance with option available in Ind AS 27 
“Separate Financial Statements”.

(iii) De-Recognition

 A financial asset is de-recognized only when the Company 
has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the 
financial asset, or when it has transferred substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset, or when it has transferred 
the control of the asset.

(iv) Impairment of Financial Assets

 In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies 
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on the Trade receivables or 
any contractual right to receive cash or another financial 
asset that result from transactions that are within the 
scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.

 The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition 
of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.

 The application of simplified approach does not require 
the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime 
ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

 As a practical expedient, the Company uses historically 
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade 
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates 
to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its 
trade receivables.
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 B. Financial Liabilities:

i)  Classification as debt or equity - Debt and equity 
instruments are classified as either financial liabilities 
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual arrangement.

ii)  Equity instruments - An equity instrument is any 
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets 
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity 
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at 
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

iii)  Initial Recognition and Measurement: 

 All Financials Liabilities are recognized net of 
transaction costs incurred. 

iv) Subsequent Measurement-

 After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the Effective Interest Rate (“EIR”) method. Gains and 
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities 
are derecognised through the EIR amortisation process.

v) De-Recognition

 All Financials Liabilities are removed from balance sheet 
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expired.

 When an existing financial liability is replaced by another 
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or 
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

14. Revenue Recognition:

 Revenue comprises of all economic benefits that arise in 
the ordinary course of activities of the Company which 
result in increase in Equity, other than increases relating 
to contributions from equity participants. Revenue is 
recognized to the extent that it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at 
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

 Sale of Goods: As per Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts 
with customers’, Revenue from sale of goods is recognised 
when control of the products being sold is transferred to 
the customer and when there are no longer any unfulfilled 
obligations. The Performance Obligations in our contracts 
are fulfilled at the time of dispatch, delivery or upon 
formal customer acceptance depending on terms with 
customers. The Company derives revenue principally from 
sale of Plywood, Laminates, Decorative Veneers, MDF and 
Flush Doors. Revenue shown in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss are inclusive of the value of self-consumption, but 
excludes Goods & Service Tax (GST), inter-transfers, returns, 
trade discounts, other benefits passed to customers in 
kind.

 Services: Revenue from Services is recognized as and when 
the services are rendered. The Company collects Goods & 
Service Tax on behalf of the government and therefore, it 

is not an economic benefit flowing to the Company and 
hence excluded from Revenue.

 Interest: Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by 
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective 
interest rate applicable.

 Insurance Claims: Insurance Claims are accounted for on 
acceptance and when there is a reasonable certainty of 
receiving the same, on grounds of prudence.

 Corporate Guarantee Fee: Corporate Guarantee Fee is 
accounted for corporate Guarantee given to related party’s 
Banker for their business use. Such revenue is recognised in 
the accounting period in which the services are rendered 
in accordance with agreement with the parties.

 Government grants

 Government grants are recognized where there is 
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all 
attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant 
relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a 
systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for 
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When 
the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in 
equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related 
asset.

 When the Company receives grants of non-monetary 
assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value 
amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected 
useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the 
underlying asset i.e. by equal annual installments.

15. Foreign Currency Transactions:

 The Company’s financial statements are presented 
in Indian Rupees (‘INR’), which is also the Company’s 
functional currency.

 Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial 
recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction. At each balance sheet 
date, foreign currency monetary items are reported using 
the closing exchange rate. Exchange differences that arise 
on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each 
balance sheet date of the Company’s monetary items at 
the closing rate are recognised as income or expenses in 
the period in which they arise.

 Non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost 
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using 
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency 
are translated using the exchange rate at the date when 
the fair value is determined.

16.  Employee Benefits:

  Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an 
expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss of the year in which the related service is 
rendered.

 Post Employment and Retirement benefits in the form of 
Gratuity and Leave Encashment are considered as defined 
benefit obligations and is provided for on the basis of 
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third party actuarial valuation, using the projected unit 
credit method, as at the date of the Balance Sheet. Every 
Employee who has completed five years or more of service 
is entitled to Gratuity on terms not less favorable than the 
provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

 The present value of the defined benefit obligation is 
determined by discounting the estimated future cash 
outflows by reference to market yields at the end of 
reporting period on government bonds that have terms 
approximating to the terms of the related obligation

 Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience 
adjustments and changes in acturial assumptions of the 
defined benefit obligation are recognised in the period in 
which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. 
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of 
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

 Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund 
is considered as defined contribution plan and the 
contributions to Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation 
established under The Employees’ Provident Fund 
and Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1952 is charged to 
the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the 
contributions to the respective funds are due. The 
Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly 
administered provident funds as per local regulations.

 The Company has no further payment obligations once 
the contributions have been paid.

17.  Borrowing Costs:

   Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including 
exchange differences relating to foreign currency 
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an 
adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with 
the borrowing of funds. 

 General and specific borrowing costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying 
assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets 
during the period of time that is required to complete and 
prepare the asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is 
one that takes necessarily substantial period of time to get 
ready for its intended use.

 All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in 
which they are incurred.

18.  Accounting for Taxes on Income: 

 Tax expenses comprise of current tax and deferred tax 
including applicable surcharge and cess.

 Current Income tax is computed using the tax effect 
accounting method, where taxes are accrued in the same 
period in which the related revenue and expenses arise. A 
provision is made for income tax annually, based on the tax 
liability computed, after considering tax allowances and 
exemptions. Provisions are recorded when it is estimated 
that a liability due to disallowances or other matters is 
probable.

 Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach 
on temporary differences at the reporting date between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 

amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting 
date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised 
for all deductible temporary differences, the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. 
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profits against which the deductible 
temporary differences, and the carry forward unused tax 
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

 Deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized 
in other comprehensive income. As such, deferred tax is 
also recognised in other comprehensive income.

 Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities are offset, if 
a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the Deferred Tax Assets 
and Deferred Tax Liabilities relate to taxes on income levied 
by same governing taxation laws.

19.  Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets:

 Contingent liabilities are not provided for but are disclosed 
by way of Notes on Accounts. Contingent liabilities is 
disclosed in case of a present obligation from past events 

(a) when it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation; 

(b)  when no reliable estimate is possible; 

(c)  unless the probability of outflow of resources is 
remote.

 Contingent assets are neither accounted for nor disclosed 
by way of Notes on Accounts where the inflow of economic 
benefits is probable.

20.  Current And Non- Current Classification:

 The Normal Operating Cycle for the Company has been 
assumed to be of twelve months for classification of 
its various assets and liabilities into “Current” and “Non-
Current”.

 The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance 
sheet based on current and non-current classification.

 An asset is current when it is 

(a)  expected to be realised or intended to be sold or 
consumed in normal operating cycle 

(b)  held primarily for the purpose of trading

(c)  expected to be realised within twelve months after 
the reporting period 

(d)  Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from 
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting period. 

(e)  All other assets are classified as non-current.

 A liability is current when 

(a)  it is expected to be settled in normal operating 
cycle 

(b)  it is held primarily for the purpose of trading

(c)  it is due to be discharged within twelve months 
after the reporting period
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(d)  there is no unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period.

(e)   All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.

21. Corporate social responsibility (CSR) Activity

 In case of CSR activities undertaken by the Company, if any 
expenditure of revenue nature is incurred or an irrevocable 
contribution is made to any agency to be spent by the 
latter on any of the activities mentioned in Schedule VII 
to the Companies Act, 2013, the same is charged as an 
expense to its Statement of Profit and Loss and if any 
extra material amount has been done the same has been 
carried forward as current asset.

22. Earnings Per Share

 Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net 
profit or loss before OCI for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose 
of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit 
or loss before OCI for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects 

of all dilutive potential equity shares.

23. Segment Reporting

 The Company’s operating business segments are 
organized and managed separately according to the 
nature of products and services provided, with each 
segment representing a strategic business unit that offers 
different products and serves different markets.

24. Provisions

 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a 
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of the obligation. When the Company 
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the 
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only 
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense 
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of 
profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

 Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no 
longer probable that the outflow of resources would be 
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025
WIP Ageing

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years 3 years & above Total

As on 31.03.2025

 Plant & Machinery  11.76  -    -    -    11.76 

 Building  10.75  10.75 

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years 3 years & above Total

As on 31.03.2024

 Plant & Machinery  108.55  108.55 

 Building  6.57  6.57 

 Furniture  70.17  -    -    -    70.17 

Notes:-
  1. The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company, in case of land which are on long term lease from 

government, the lease agreement are duly executed in favor of company.    

 2. For details assets pledged against borrowings Refer Note No. 16 & 20      

 3. Company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipment & Intangible assets during the period ending 31st March, 2025 and also during 
the previous period ending 31st March, 2024.         

 4. Intangible asset under development is Nil (PY Nil)       

 5.  The Company has elected to apply IND AS 116 to its leases and has recognised lease liabilities and corresponding right of use assets. In 
the statement of profit and loss for the year ended, depreciation expenses on right of use assets and finance cost for interest accrued on 
such lease liability has been recognized.       

6. For details of Lease Liabilities Refer Note No. 17 & 21      

7. Company has not revalued its Right -to- use assets during the period ending 31st March, 2025  

8. During the year ended March 31, 2025, certain assets which were old and have no realisable value having Net book value of Rs.1.59 
Lakhs/-(PY Rs.  Rs.0.51 Lakhs/-) (Gross book value of Rs. 14.82 Lakhs/-(PY Rs. 6.46 Lakhs/-)) were retired and shown as impairement loss in 
the books.          

 

.Details of Assets Retired during the year are as follows                                                                                       (Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars
Current Year Previous year

Gross Value Net Value Gross Value Net Value

 Building  -    -    -    -   

 Plant & machinery  2.21  0.12  5.16  0.34 

 Computers  7.17  0.36  1.30  0.17 

 Office Equipment  1.98  0.15  -    -   

 Furniture & Fixtures  3.46  0.96  -    -   

 Total  14.82  1.59  6.46  0.51 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025

Note 5: Other Non-Current Financial Assets 

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

i)Security Deposits  238.01  247.61 

ii)Security Deposits - Related Party

iii) Balance With Banks  598.42  567.22 

   - Bank Deposit for Margin Money  13.19  -   

 (Maturity period more than 12 months)

 849.61  814.84 

Note 6: Deferred Tax Assets

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Opening deferred tax asset  66.91  163.25 

Deferred tax (Liability)/Asset arising in current year on account of 
timing difference

    1. WDV of Fixed Assets  (23.18)  (254.58)

    2. Gratuity  20.24  (1.05)

    3. Leave Encashment  16.31  (3.67)

    4. Provisions  10.75  56.63 

    2. Loss Carried Forward  353.81  103.05 

    5. Lease Asset  3.54  3.27 

 381.46  (96.34)

 448.37  66.91 

Note 3: Investments

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

a Investment in 100% Subsidiary Company

Archid Panel Industries Private Limited - -

(2,13,82,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- face value (P.Y 1,64,00,000 
Equity shares))  

During the year company has invested in shares @Rs. 50/- per share

- -

Note 4: Loans & Advances

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Unsecured, Considered Good

        Loan & Advances -  -

 - -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025
Note 7: Other Non-Current Assets

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024 

(Amount in Lakhs)

a Capital Advances

        For Plant & Machinery  82.77  210.20 

 82.77  210.20 

b Advances Other then Capital Advances

       i)Other Advances

            - Income Tax Refund receivable  32.60  71.72 

 32.60  71.72 

       ii)Pre operative Expenses  9.19  12.85 

           Less: 1/5 transfer to Expenses  3.66  5.53  3.66  9.19 

Total Other Non Current Assets  120.90  291.11 

Note 8: Inventories

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

(At Lower of cost or Net realisable value)

        Raw Materials  2,505.90  1,994.59 

        Finished Goods  3,816.16  2,224.89 

        Stock in trade  903.98  735.35 

        Work in Progress  145.65  26.05 

        Stores, Spares & Consumption  599.63  475.74 

 7,971.31  5,456.61 

Note: Inventories are pledged against the cash credit limit obtained by the company.

Note 9: Trade Receivables

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Unsecured

   -Considered Good*  13,596.08  9,836.45 

   -Significant increase in risk  433.34  274.25 

   -Credit Impaired  -    -   

    Less: Allowances for Credit loss  374.71  332.01 

 13,654.71  9,778.69 

*(includes Related Party Rs.2.30 Lakhs /- (P.Y 4.15 Lakhs/-))  
1.The above outstanding is from date of transaction of sales.  
2.Trade receivables are pledged against the cash credit limit obtained by the Company.  
3.Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0-90 days.  
4.No debts are due from Directors or other officers of the Company.  

Particulars
Less than 6 

months
6months to 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 
years

Total as on 
31.03.2025

a Unsecured ; Undisputed

   -Considered Good  12,954.93  533.60  84.47  22.16  0.92  13,596.08 

   -Significant increase in risk  115.13  108.38  58.32  281.82 

   -Credit Impaired  -   
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025

b Unsecured ; Disputed

   -Considered Good  -   

   -Significant increase in risk  66.48  -    50.18  27.22  7.63  151.52 

   -Credit Impaired  -   

    Less: Allowances for Credit loss  374.71 

 13,021.41  533.60  249.78  157.76  66.88  13,654.71 

Particulars
Less than 6 

months
6months to 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 
years

Total as on 
31.03.2024

a Unsecured ; Undisputed

   -Considered Good  9,483.86  277.71  60.50  11.56  2.83  9,836.45 

   -Significant increase in risk  17.20  -    105.32  68.67  1.97  193.15 

   -Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

b Unsecured ; Disputed

   -Considered Good  -    -    -   

   -Significant increase in risk  29.24  12.99  17.98  17.49  3.39  81.10 

   -Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

    Less: Allowances for Credit loss  332.01 

 9,530.30  290.70  183.79  97.72  8.19  9,778.69 

Note 10: Cash & Cash Equivalents

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

a Balances with Banks

  - Balances in current accounts  6.33  71.11 

b Cash in hand  20.48  18.26 

 26.81  89.37 

Note 11: Bank balances other then Cash & Cash Equivalents

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Deposit for Margin Money - less than 12 months  51.89  52.35 

 51.89  52.35 

Note 12: Current Income Tax Assets 

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

      Advance Tax -  400.00 

      TDS Receivable -  20.82 

     Less: Provision for Taxation -  403.00 

-  17.82 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025
Note 13: Other Current Assets

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

a Advances to related parties

      - The Mysore Chipboard Ltd.  -    27.45 

      - Archidply Decor Ltd.  9.62  10.08 

b Others

       Prepaid expenses  144.58  103.96 

       Balance With Revenue Authoroties  713.08  744.06 

       Advance for Supply of Goods/Services  620.68  69.56 

       Other Receivable-RODTEP  0.75  -   

       Other Advances  33.00  125.24 

 1,521.71  1,080.36 

Note 14: Equity Share Capital

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

AUTHORIZED

2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10.00 each  2,500.00  2,500.00 

(P.Y 2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED, AND PAID UP

1,98,65,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10.00 each  1,986.50  1,986.50 

(Previous year 1,98,65,000 shares of Rs.10 each)

 1,986.50  1,986.50 

a.  Details of the Shares hold by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Comapany

Name of Shareholder
 As at 31.03.2025  As at 31.03.2024

 No of Shares  % of Shares  No of Shares  % of Shares

Assam Timber Products Pvt Ltd  22,55,786  11.36  22,55,786  11.36 

Vanraj Suppliers Pvt Ltd  39,43,509  19.85  39,43,509  19.85 

Ravi Marketing Services Pvt Ltd  28,27,850  14.24  28,27,850  14.24 

The Mysore Chipboards Limited  17,97,431  9.05  17,97,431  9.05 

b. Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at beginning & end of the reporting period.

Particular
 As at 

31.03.2025 
 As at 

31.03.2024

Outstanding as at beginning of the reporting period  1,98,65,000  1,98,65,000 

Add: Shares issued during the year  -    -   

Less: Shares extinguished on buy-back  -    -   

Outstanding as at end of the Reporting period  1,98,65,000  1,98,65,000 

c.  The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share, Each Shareholder is eligible for 
one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the 
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. However, no such preferencial 
amounts exist currently.      
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d.  Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Name of Shareholder

 As at 31.03.2025
 % change 
during the 

year 

 As at 31.03.2024

 No of 
Shares as at 
31.03.2025

 % of Shares 
 No of 

Shares as at 
31.03.2024

 % of Shares 

Shyam Daga  5,73,685  2.89  -    5,73,685  2.89 

Sangeeta Bharadia  4,100  0.02  -    4,100  0.02 

Deen Dayal Daga  7,71,620  3.88  -    7,71,620  3.88 

Usha Daga  7,60,300  3.83  -    7,60,300  3.83 

Deen Dayal Daga (HUF)  20,000  0.10  -    20,000  0.10 

Rajiv Daga  6,51,342  3.28  -    6,51,342  3.28 

Assam Timber Products Pvt Ltd  22,55,786  11.36  -    22,55,786  11.36 

Vanraj Suppliers Pvt Ltd  39,43,509  19.85  -    39,43,509  19.85 

Ravi Marketing Services Pvt Ltd  28,27,850  14.24  -    28,27,850  14.24 

The Mysore Chipboards Limited  17,97,431  9.05  -    17,97,431  9.05 

Shree Shyam Tea Pvt Ltd  2,77,900  1.40  -    2,77,900  1.40 

 1,38,83,523  69.89  1,38,83,523  69.89 

e. Equity shares movement during the 5 years preceding March 31, 2025

 Equity shares extinguished on buy-back

 In the Financial Year 2020-2021, the Company has Bought back its 22,00,000 equity shares @Rs.37/- per share amounting 
to Rs. 8.14 Crores being 9.97% of the total equity share. The equity shares bought back were extinguished on 
March 17, 2021. 

 The Company does not have any Holding/ Ultimate Holding Company. As such, no shares are held by them or their 
Subsidiaries/ Associates. 

 There are NIL ( Previous year NIL) shares reserved for issue under option and contracts/commitment for the sale of shares/ 
disinvestment.

Note 15: Other Equity

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Share Premium  880.16  880.16 

Capital Subsidy  30.00  30.00 

Capital Redemption reserve  220.00  220.00 

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year  8,038.95  7,329.11 

Profit for the Year  (735.80)  709.84 

Balance at the end of the year  7,303.16  8,038.95 

Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at the beginning of the year  (2.83)  (64.69)

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)  (25.91)  61.87 

Balance at the end of the year  (28.74)  (2.83)

Total  8,404.58  9,169.11 

Share Premium :- This Securities Premium had been created on issue of shares by way of public issue and right issue.

Capital Subsidy :- Subsidy received in the Fincancial year 2011-12 towards setting up of the Laminates division.

Capital Redemption Reserve:- This reserve was created upon buy back of equity shares in FY 2020-21

Retained Earnings: Amount of retained earnings represents accumulated profit and losses of the Company as on reporting 
date.Such profits and losses are after adjustment of payment of dividend, transfer to any reserves as statutorily required and 
adjustment for remeasurement gain loss on defined benefit plan.
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Note 16: Financial Non-Current Borrowings

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

a) Secured

          Term Loans  - Vehicle*  13.97  21.37 

          Term Loans  - Project  7,711.58  7,595.64 

Total  7,725.54  7,617.01 

Particulars Final repayment  As at 31.03.2025  As at 31.03.2024 

Term Loans - Vehicle

 - HDFC Bank Ltd. Mar-27  8.63  12.41 

 - HDFC Bank Ltd. Jul-26  5.34  8.95 

 Less: Current maturities of long term debt  3,689.94  3,406.41 

 3,060.64  3,016.77 

 961.01  1,172.47 

 7,725.54  7,617.01 

 1,624.90  412.40 

 6,100.64  7,204.61 

*Secured by certain vehicles, term loan repayable within 3 to 5 years in equal monthly installments)

 6,100.64  7,204.61 

# HDFC Bank Security

Limit Primary Security
Collateral security

 Third party Guarantee 

Project Capex : Term Loan 
of Rs. 3900 lakhs

Movable fixed assets and Current assets 1st pari pasu 
charge both present and future with SBI Bank, 1st Pari Pasu 

charge on Industrial Property suitated at Plot no. 10, sector 1 
Integrated Industrial Estate IIE Sitargunj Phase-II, Udam Singh 

Nagar Rudrapur and Residential Property situted at Village 
Falsungi Near S.K Industries Udam Singh Nagar 

 Corporate guarantee :                                           
Archidply Industries Ltd 

 Personal Guarantee 
by Directors :                                 
1. Rajiv Daga                                                                   

2. Shri Deen Dayal Daga 

Term loan repayable within 20 equal quarterly installments starting from January 2025 ie after 2 years of moratorium

## State Bank of India Security

Limit Primary Security Collateral security
Immovable Property  Third party Guarantee 

Fund based : Term loan 
Rs. 4200 lakhs & FCNR DL 
(Sub limit of Term Loan) 
USD 50.4 Lakhs

1) First pari - passu charge with HDFC 
Bank on assets created/ plant & 
machinery purchased out of term loan 
2) First pari - passu charge with HDFC 
Bank on Factory land & Building in 
the name of the Company Situated 
at plot no 10, Sector 01, IIE, Sitarganj, 
Phase  -II, Udham Singh Nagar 
admeasuring 101278 Sq Meters 
3) First pari - passu hypothecation 
charge with HDFC Bank on the 
entire current assets (present & 
future) which includes all stock of 
Raw material, WIP, Finished Goods, 
Stock in Transit, book debts etc. 
and advances emittances made to 
suppliers for stock and other assets.

First pari - passu charge 
with HDFC Bank on all fixed 

assets mentioned below:                                                         
Land & Building in name 
of Archidply industries 

ltd Situated at khasra no 
249, Fulsungi Village, Tehsil 

-khicha,  udham Singh 
Nagar admeasuring 9110 

Sq. Meters                    

 Coporate guarantee : 
Archidply Industries Ltd 

Non Fund based :                                                       
Credit Exposure limit of 
Rs. 10 Lakhs

 Personal Guarantee 
by Directors :                                 
1. Shri Rajiv Daga                                
2.Shri Deen Dayal Daga 
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Term loan repayable within 20 equal quarterly installments starting from January 2025.  

Under the existing  term loan limit of 4200 lakhs, Rs.3045 lakhs (USD 34.98 Lakhs) (P.Y. Rs.3000 lakhs (USD 36.07 lakhs)) was 
converted as foreign currency loan for the duartion of 6 Months(ending on 03.07.2025), and will be converted in INR at the 
same rate of USD,hence no exchange fluctuation will arise.

Note 17: Lease liabilities 

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Lease liabilities

          Provision for Lease liabilities payable beyond 12 months  361.02  195.62 

          Less: Short Term Provision  124.94  74.37 

 236.08  121.25 

Lease liability is initially measured at the present value of future lease payments. Lease payments are discounted 
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rate. 
Lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability 
and reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. A lease liability is remeasured upon the 
occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease term or a change in an index or rate used to determine 
lease payments. The remeasurement normally also adjusts the leased assets.    
Note 18: Provisions

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Provision for Employee Benefits

          Provision for Gratuity  552.18  470.38 

          Less: Short Term Provision  174.77  150.87 

(Includes Related Party Rs.90.37 Lakhs/-(P.Y 80.71 Lakhs/-))  377.40  319.51 

          Provision for Leave Encashment  355.63  285.21 

          Less: Short Term Provision  136.49  109.37 

(Includes Related Party Rs.139.66 Lakhs/-(P.Y 121.52 Lakhs/-))  219.14  175.84 

 596.54  495.36 

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable 
that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.  

Note19: Other Non Current Liabilities

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Government Subsidy

         Opening  131.22  159.33 

         Add: Received during the year  -   

          Less: Depreciation withdrawn  25.03  28.12 

 106.19  131.22 

 106.19  131.22 

In the Finanacial year 2022-2023 Asset related government grant received on Plant & Machinery and the same has been accounted 
for as deferred revenue and depreciation withdrawn  proportionately recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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Note 20: Financial Current Borrowings

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

a. Secured 

Repayable on demand

Bank overdraft/Cash Credit  10,170.25  6,435.41 

 10,170.25  6,435.41 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2025  As at 31.03.2024 

State Bank Of India*  4,589.34  2,654.81 

HDFC Bank#  4,096.92  3,780.60 

Axis Bank##  1,483.99  -   

( *Working capital loan from SBI Bank of Rs. 4000 Lakhs is secured by  1st Pari Passu charge on entire current assets Stock and book debts of the 
company both present and future and collateral charge 1st Pari Passu on fixed assets both present and future of the company and personal 
guarantee of promoter directors.)

(*Working capital Loan of Subsidiary company from SBI Bank of Rs. 1500 Lakhs is Secured by  fixed assets created out of Term Loan 1st pari pasu 
charge with HDFC Bank, 1st Pari Pasu charge with HDFC Bank on factory Land and Building suitated at Plot no. 10, sector 1 Integrated Industrial 
Estate IIE Sitargunj Phase-II, Udam Singh Nagar Rudrapur  and 1st Pari passu charge with HDFC Bank on entire current Assets (present & future) 
along with collateral security 1st pari pasu charge with HDFC Bank of Land & Building of Archidply Industries Limited situted at Village Falsungi 
Tehsil- Khicha Udam Singh Nagar along with Personal Guarantee of Director namely Shri Rajiv Daga and Shri Deen Dayal Daga and Corporate 
Guarantee of Archidply Industries Limited (100% Holding Company)

( #Working capital loan from HDFC Bank of Rs. 4050 Lakhs is Secured by  1st Pari Passu charge on entire Current assets of the company both 
present and future and collateral security 1st Pari Passu on fixed assets both present and future of the company and personal guarantee of 2 
Promoter Directors.) 

( #Working capital loan from HDFC Bank of Rs. 4050 Lakhs is Secured by  1st Pari Passu charge on entire Current assets of the company both 
present and future and collateral security 1st Pari Passu on fixed assets both present and future of the company and personal guarantee of 2 
Promoter Directors.)

(#Working capital Loan of Subsidiary company from HDFC Bank of Rs. 900 Lakhs is Secured by  Movable fixed assets and current assets 1st pari 
pasu charge with SBI Bank (both present & future), 1st Pari Pasu charge with SBI Bank on Industrial Property suitated at Plot no. 10, sector 1 
Integrated Industrial Estate IIE Sitargunj Phase-II, Udam Singh Nagar Rudrapur along with Residential Property situted at Village Falsungi Tehsil- 
Khicha Udam Singh Nagar along with Personal Guarantee of Director namely Shri Rajiv Daga and Shri Deen Dayal Daga and Corporate Guarantee 
of Archidply Industries Limited (100% Holding Company).

( ##Working capital loan from Axis Bank of Rs. 2000 Lakhs is Secured by 1st Pari Passu charge on entire Current assets of the company both present 
and future along with 1st Pari Passu charge on movable Fixed Assets of the company (except those funded out of Term Loan from other Banks) 
and collateral security 1st Pari Passu on entire immovable fixed assets of the company in MB arrangement and personal guarantee of 2 Promoter 
Directors.) But the same has not been utilised during the year.

( ##Working capital loan of Subsidiary company from Axis Bank of Rs. 1500 Lakhs is Secured by 1st Pari Passu charge on entire Current assets and 
movable Fixed Assets of the company both present and future in MB arrangement along with collateral security 1st Pari Pasu charge on Industrial 
Property suitated at Plot no. 10, sector 1 Integrated Industrial Estate IIE Sitargunj Phase-II, Udam Singh Nagar Rudrapur along with Residential 
Property situted at Village Falsungi Tehsil- Khicha Udam Singh Nagar in MBA along with Personal Guarantee of Director namely Shri Rajiv Daga 
and Shri Deen Dayal Daga and Corporate Guarantee of Archidply Industries Limited (100% Holding Company).

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

b. Secured

Current Maturities of long term debt

         - Term Loan  1,624.90  412.40 

c. Unsecured

From Director  150.00  50.00 

From Body Corporate  1,000.00  307.59 

From Body Corporate (Related party)  220.00  220.00 

(Repayable on demand, Interest @ 9% p.a)

 2,994.90  989.99 

 13,165.15  7,425.40 
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Note 21: Lease liabilities 

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Current Lease liabilities

          Provision for Lease liabilities payable within 12 months  124.94  74.37 

 124.94  74.37 

Note 22: Trade Payables*

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

   - Undisputed Micro,Small & Medium  5,195.71  1,776.27 

   - Disputed Micro,Small & Medium  -    -   

   - Undisputed Creditors for Goods  1,269.28  2,533.05 

   - Undisputed Creditors for Services  477.44  533.47 

 6,942.43  4,842.78 
* The above payable is from the date of purchase transactions
* Trade payables & acceptances are non interest bearing

 Trade Payables
Less than 1 

year
 1-2 years  2-3 years 

 More than 3 
years 

 Total as on 
31.03.2025 

   - Undisputed Micro,Small & Medium  5,192.79  2.92  -    -    5,195.71 

   - Disputed Micro,Small & Medium  -    -    -    -    -   

   - Undisputed Creditors for Goods  1,146.94  122.34  -    -    1,269.28 

   - Undisputed Creditors for Services  473.52  1.79  2.08  0.04  477.44 

 6,813.24  127.06  2.08  0.04  6,942.43 

Trade Payables
Less than 1 

year
 1-2 years  2-3 years 

 More than 3 
years 

 Total as on 
31.03.2024 

   - Undisputed Micro,Small & Medium  1,776.27  -    -    -    1,776.27 

   - Disputed Micro,Small & Medium  -   

   - Undisputed Creditors for Goods  2,533.05  -    -    -    2,533.05 

   - Undisputed Creditors for Services  533.02  0.40  0.04  -    533.47 

 4,842.33  0.40  0.04  -    4,842.78 

Note 23: Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Statutory Payables  313.74  222.83 

Other Payables*  72.39  55.94 

*(It includes expenses payable)

 386.13  278.77 

Note 24: Current Provisions

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

a. Provision for Employee Benefits

         Provision for gratuity  174.77  150.87 

         Provision for leave encashment  136.49  109.37 

         Other Employee Provisions  394.00  312.38 

 705.27  572.62 
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b. Others

        Special Discount Payable  0.14  15.65 

         Other Expenses Payable  249.23  96.78 

         Quality Complaint Payable  6.20  18.23 

         Provision for Scheme  41.11  63.50 

 296.69  194.15 

 1,001.95  766.78 

Note 25: Other Current Liabilities

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

a Contract liabilities
          Advance from customers  130.21  122.60 

(Includes Related Party Rs.21.97 Lakhs (P.Y 44.27 Lakhs))  130.21  122.60 
b Others

         Security Deposit from Vendors and Customers  34.93  55.34 

 34.93  55.34 
 165.13  177.95 

Note 26: Current Income Tax Liabilities(Net)

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Provision for Tax  317.00  -   

(Less) Advance Tax (275.00)  -   

(Less) TDS/TCS Receivable  (18.98)  -   

 23.02  -   

Reconciliation of estimated Income tax expenses at Indian Statutory Income tax rate to Income tax expenses report-
ed in the Statement of Profit & Loss  

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Accounting profit before tax  1,060.99  1,256.01 

At Statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%

Estimated tax expenses  267.03  316.11 

Expenses not deductible for tax purpose  (23.34)  187.82 

Deferred tax  73.31  (100.93)

Total tax reported in the statement of profit and loss  317.00   403.00  

Note 27: Revenue From Operations

Particulars 31.03.2025 
(Amount in Lakhs)

31.03.2024  
(Amount in Lakhs)

Sale of Products  55,571.19  43,534.90 
Other Operating Revenue
RODTEP  4.64  -   
Royalty on use of brand name  15.47  32.25 

 20.11  32.25 
 55,591.29  43,567.16 
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Particular of sale of products
Laminate & Allied Products  13,089.77  14,134.14 
Plywood & Allied Products  31,445.86  26,565.26 
Medium Density Fibre Board  10,841.43  2,809.73 
Others  194.13  25.78 

 55,571.19  43,534.90 

Note 28: Other Income

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Interest Received  54.85  62.51 

Corporate Guarantee Fee Received  0.25  77.74 

Interest on IT refund  14.40  -   

Foreign Exchange Gain  15.21  43.88 

Balance written back  7.26  25.00 

Profit on Sale of Fixed Asset  12.82  0.72 

Depreciation withdrawn on Government grant  25.03  28.12 

Other Non Operating Income  24.49  27.20 

 154.32  265.15 

Note 29: Cost of Material Consumed

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Raw Material  Consumed

Opening Stock  1,994.59  1,892.74 

Add: Purchases  19,687.32  13,007.19 

Less: Sales  -    -   

Less: Closing Stock  2,505.90  1,994.59 

 19,176.02  12,905.34 

Imported and Indigenous Raw Materials Consumed:
Year Ended 31.03.2025 Year Ended 31.03.2024

 % 
 Amount in 

Lakhs 
 % 

 Amount in 
Lakhs

Imported 2.37%  454.41 6.86%  884.89 

Indigenous 97.63%  18,721.60 93.14%  12,020.46 

100%  19,176.02 100%  12,905.34 

Break up of Raw Materials Consumed (As certified by 
Management)

Year Ended 31.03.2025 Year Ended 31.03.2024

 Qty 
 Amount in 

Lakhs 
 Qty 

 Amount in 
Lakhs

Paper in Kgs  81,10,793  4,586.15  79,01,275  4,262.30 

Timber in Cbm  82,923  6,749.04  17,650  2,101.05 

Veener(incl own production) in sq. mtr  21,57,077  425.91  24,50,697  472.87 

Core Veneer in Cbm  4,500  868.35  9,486  1,602.14 

Chemicals in Kgs  1,64,27,046  5,482.46  75,88,541  3,456.49 

Others  1,064.10  1,010.50 

 2,67,82,339  19,176.02  1,79,67,649  12,905.34 
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Note 30: Purchase of Stock in trade

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Purchase of Traded Goods  20,562.50  17,443.32 

 20,562.50  17,443.32 

Note 31: Changes in Inventory of Finished Goods, Work in process & Stock in trade

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Invetories (at close)

Finished Goods  3,816.16  2,224.89 

WIP  145.65  26.05 

Stock-in-Trade  903.98  735.35 

Invetories (at commencement)

Finished Goods  2,224.89  2,236.78 

WIP  26.05  17.90 

Stock-in-Trade  735.35  628.94 

(Increase)  /  Decrease in Stock  (1,879.51)  (102.67)

(Increase)  /  Decrease in Stock  (1,879.51)  (102.67)

Note 32: Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Salaries and Wages  3,706.10  2,666.09 

Director Remuneration  115.20  109.37 

Contribution to and provisions for provident and other funds  369.27  260.87 

Staff Welfare Expenses  36.43  23.32 

Employee Insurance Expense  13.59  11.18 

 4,240.59  3,070.83 

Directors Remuneration, under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 are as follows:

Particulars
 Year ended March 

31st 2025
 Year ended March 

31st 2024

Salary & Perks  111.00  104.40 

Sitting Fees  4.20  4.97 

Total  115.20  109.37 

Note 33: Finance cost

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Interest on Term Loans  694.84  4.68 

Interest on Working Capital borrowings  823.56  640.55 

Interest on Unsecured Loan  99.11  36.45 

Interest on statutory Liabilities  1.24  6.26 

Interest on Lease Liabilities  36.81  18.48 

Bank charges, L C Charges & Discounting Charges  96.56  10.55 

Processing Charges  22.00  28.05 

 1,774.11  745.03 
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Note 34: Other Expenses

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

a Manufacturing Expenses

Stores and Spares consumed *  1,129.06  540.37 

Packing Charges  165.07  168.34 

Processing Charges  760.64  776.82 

Power and fuel consumed  3,739.66  1,174.86 

Repairs to Plant and Machinery  74.24  39.46 

Repairs to Building  7.53  6.74 

Repairs to Others  14.01  3.86 

 5,890.23  2,710.45 

*Imported and Indigenous Stores and Spare Parts Consumed:

Particulars
Year Ended 31.03.2025 Year Ended 31.03.2024

 % 
 Amount in 

Lakhs 
 % 

 Amount in 
Lakhs

Imported 9.90%  111.78 0.00%  -   

Indigenous 90.10%  1,017.28 100.00%  540.37 

100%  1,129.06 100%  540.37 

Particulars
31.03.2024 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2023 

(Amount in Lakhs)
b Selling, Distribution, Administrative and Other Expenses

Rent  95.13  133.87 

Rates and Taxes  55.11  43.18 

Printing and Stationery  10.96  11.66 

Postage, Telephone and Telegram  49.92  62.54 

Insurance  86.74  67.94 

Legal, License and Professional Fees  200.56  162.69 

Repairs & Maintenance Expenses  88.26  78.36 

Auditors Remuneration  12.70  12.00 

Travelling and conveyance  399.15  324.92 

Commission on sales and samples  131.29  384.14 

Sample Folders Sales  374.91  320.79 

Freight, forwarding and other expenses  2,468.88  1,825.01 

Vehicle Running Expenses  17.07  16.53 

Sales Promotion and Advertisement Expenses  410.54  1,039.94 

Discount & Rebates  608.77  401.83 

Claims and Bad debts written off  87.37  101.03 

Provision for bad debt  42.70  252.61 

    Less: Reversal of Provision for Bad Debts -  42.70 27.62  224.99 

CSR Discharged  27.00  22.00 

Other  Expenses  238.75  143.87 

Impairment Loss on Fixed Asset  1.58  0.51 

Pre Operative Expnses  3.66  3.66 

Prior Period Expenses  2.51  0.07 

 5,413.57  5,381.53 
Grand Total(a + b)  11,303.80  8,091.97 
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Note 35: Auditors Remuneration

Particulars
 Year Ended 
31.03.2025

 Year Ended 
31.03.2024 

a) Statutory Audit Fee  7.00  6.00 

b) Tax Audit Fee  2.00  1.00 

c) For GST Audit Fee  3.70  4.00 

d) For others Consultancy Fee  -    1.00 

Total  12.70  12.00 

Note 36: Contingent Liabilities & Commitments(To the extent not provided for)

Particulars
31.03.2025 

(Amount in Lakhs)
31.03.2024  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Excise Duty*  81.02  81.02 

Income tax**  80.33  80.33 

GST***  543.05  1,611.18 

Guarantees given by the bank on behalf of the Company  28.41  28.99 

Guarantees given to Bank by the Company.

i. To Subsidiary  12,010.00  9,030.00 

ii. To Others  2,500.00  2,500.00 

Vendor  27.29  27.29 

Commitments

Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 
and not provided for

 -    658.40 

* On account of Demerger of Plywood & Block Board and Particle & laminated 
board (both divisions) of The Mysore Chip Boards Limited in to the Company 
in the financial year 2007-08:  

The Company, for and on behalf of  The Mysore Chip Boards Limited has given 
a guarantee towards a show cause notice issued by the Excise Department 
demanding a dues  from The Mysore Chip Boards Limited. However The Mysore 
Chip Boards Limited had deposited an amount of Rs. 16.00 Lakhs/-( P.Y. Rs. 16.00 
Lakhs/)  with Central Excise Department. The Mysore Chip Boards Limited had 
filed an appeal & disputed the said demand and the demand has been reduced 
to Rs.81.02 Lakhs/- (P.Y. Rs.81.02 Lakhs/) and the penalty of the same amount by 
Commissioner of Central Excise, Mysore on 05/10/2006. The Mysore Chip Board Ltd 
has filed an appeal to Custom, Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Bangalore 
and obtained a stay order against that demand. The tribunal has remanded 
back the case to the Commissioner of Central Excise for taking fresh decision 
after following the principles of natural justice. The Department has filed the 
appeal before the Honourable Supreme Court against the order of the Tribunal. 
The same has been disposed of on 19th August, 2020 by Honourable Supreme 
Court, confirming   the impugned orders of CESTAT setting aside the Orders in-
Original passed    by    the    Adjudicating    Authorities    and    remanding    the 
matters back for re adjudication with certain directions.

 81.02 81.02

** The Company has received demand from Income Tax Department of 
Rs.80.33 Lakhs for the AY 2020-21. The company has filed an appeal against 
the same which is pending with CIT Appelate1 

80.33 80.33

*** The Company has received notice from  The Suprintendent of Central 
Taxes, Bangalore of Rs. 541.80 Lakhs for the F.Y 2021-2022. The company has 
filed response against the same which is pending with The Suprintendent of 
Central Taxes, Bangalore

543.05 -
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ote: - 37: Segment Reporting
The Company has identified two segments viz a) Wood based product b) Paper based product, which have been identified in 
line with IND AS 108 on Operating segment reporting taking into account organizational structure as were as differential risk and 
return of these segments. 

Details of the Products included in each segment are as under:   
i)   Plywood & Allied Products   
ii)   Laminate & Allied Products   
iii)  Medium Density Fibre Board (MDF)

The segment information has been prepared in conformity with the Accounting Policies for preparing and presenting the 
financial statements of the Company. 

Segment revenue and results includes manufacturing as well as trading activities for the same segment product. Segment 
current assets and liabilities are taken on the basis of the turnover of the segment.   

The following table presents the information relating to profit, assets and liabilities of the operating segment. (Primary Segment) 
of the Company. 

The Unallocated Segment includes general corporate income and expense items, which are not allocated to any business 
segment. The Company has identified two segments viz a) Wood based product b) Paper based product, which have been 
identified in line with IND AS 108 on Operating segment reporting taking into account organizational structure as were as 
differential risk and return of these segments. 

Details of the Products included in each segment are as under:   
i)   Wood based products: Plywood & Allied Products   
ii)   Wood based products:  Medium Density Fibre Board (MDF).    
iii)  Paper based products:  Laminate & Allied Products
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Note 38: Valuation of Gratuity
Actuarial Valuation Assumption Used for Valuation
Economic Assumptions

Date of Valuation 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Discount Rate 6.45% 7.09%

Salary Escalation Rate 12.00% 12.00%

Expected Rate of Return on Assets N.A. N.A.

Attrition Rate 25.00% 25.00%

Retirement Age  58 Years  58 Years 

 (Amount in Lakhs)

Amounts in Balance Sheet at Period-End 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Closing Defined Defined Benefit Obligation  552.18  470.38 

Closing Fair value of Plan Assets  -    -   

Unrecognized Prior Service Cost  -    -   

Net Amount Recognized in Balance Sheet  552.18  470.38 

  (Amount in Lakhs)

Amounts Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss at Period-End
1st April 2022 to 31st 

March 2025
1st April 2021 to 31st 

March 2024

Company Service Cost - CY  42.69  58.96 

Interest Cost - CY  29.25  35.49 

Expected Return on Assets - CY  -    -   

Past Service Cost - CY  -    -   

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses - CY  34.62  (82.67)

Other Adjustments - CY  -    -   

Net Periodic Benefit Cost/(Income) - CY  106.57  11.78 

  (Amount in Lakhs)

Current / Non Current Bifurcation 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Current Liability  174.77  150.87 

Non Current Liability  377.40  319.51 

(Asset)/Liability Recognised in the Balance Sheet  552.18  470.38 

  (Amount in Lakhs)

Change in Defined Benefit Obligation during the period
1st April 2022 to  
31st March 2025

1st April 2021 to  
31st March 2024

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation  470.38  474.54 

Current Service Cost  42.69  58.96 

Interest Cost  29.25  35.49 

Plan Participants' Contributions

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss  34.62  (82.67)

Acquisition/Divestiture - L  -    -   

Benefits Paid  (24.77)  (15.93)

Past Service Cost

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation  552.18  470.38 
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  (Amount in Lakhs)

Reconciliation of Amounts Recognised in Balance Sheet 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Op. Balance Sheet  470.38  474.54 

P&L  106.57  11.78 

Contributions/Benefits Paid  (24.77)  (15.93)

Acquisition / Divestiture  -    -   

Cl. Balance Sheet  552.18  470.38 

Note: - 39 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activity
CSR amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII thereof by the company 
during the year is Rs 27.14 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.21.87 Lakhs) based on Average profit of last 3 years i.e. Rs. 1356.88 Lakhs 
(Previous year Rs. 1093.74 Lakhs).

                                                                                                                     Amounts in Lakhs

Expense to be 
incurred in F.Y

Amount to be 
spent

Amount available for set off of 
earlier years

Amount Spent during 
the year

Amount unspent/
(Excess)

2023-2024 21.87 0.51 22.00 (0.64)

2024-2025 27.14 0.64 27.00 (0.50)

Trust Name Purpose Amount in Lakhs

Swachh Paryavaran Trust Tree Plantation 12.00

Mata Krishnawanti Memorial Educational 
society

Promoting Education, including special education and 
employment enhancing vocational skills especially 
among children, women, elderly and the differently 
abled and livelihood enhancement projects.

15.00

Total   27.00

Note: - 40 Earning Per Share:
Basic earnings (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

In terms of Ind AS- 33 on “Earning Per Share” the calculation of EPS is given below: -

Particulars
Year ended  

March 31st 2025
Year ended  

March 31st 2024

i) Net Profit After Tax (A) (Rs. in Lakhs) (735.79) 709.84

ii) Weighted Average number of Equity Shares (B) 19,865,000 19,865,000

iii) Face Value Per Equity Share (Rs.) 10 10

iv) Earning Per Share (A-B) (Rs) – Basic & Diluted (3.70) 3.57

Note: - 41 Disclosures Pursuant To Securities And Exchange Board Of India (Listing Obligations And 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 And Section 186 Of The Companies Act, 2013
Details of investments made have been given as part of Note ‘3’ Investments in Subsidiary.

In the year 2022-2023 Company has given Corporate Guarantee for availing a loan facility on behalf of M/s Archidply Décor Ltd 
related concern of the Company to Kotak Mahindra Bank (1000 Lakhs) and HDFC Bank Limited (1500 Lakhs) for the credit facilities 
granted by them for the purpose of principal business activity of M/s Archidply Décor Ltd and the same is continued. 

The same was approved by board on May 17, 2023 
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In the year 2022-2023 Company has given Corporate Guarantee for availing loan facility on behalf of M/s Archidpanel Industries 
Pvt Ltd, 100% Subsidiary of the Company to State Bank of India (5710 Lakhs) amount of loan is Rs. 5500.44 lakhs as on 31.03.2025,  
HDFC Bank Limited (4800 Lakhs) amount of loan is Rs. 4019.71 lakhs as on 31.03.2025 and during the year to Axis Bank (1500 lakhs), 
amount of loan is Rs. 1483.99 lakhs as on 31.03.2025 for the credit facilities granted by them for the purpose of Project Cost for 
setting up of MDF plant and principal business activity of M/s Archidpanel Industries Pvt Ltd

The same was approved by board on August 09, 2022

Note: - 42: Related Party
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related party, 
regardless of whether a price is charged. Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be 
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Compensation includes all employee benefits i.e. all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided by the entity, or on behalf 
of the entity, in exchange for services rendered to the entity. It also includes such consideration paid on behalf of a parent of the 
entity in respect of the entity. Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) 
of that entity.

Disclosure as per Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is as follows:

Subsidiary Company:

Archidpanel Industries Private limited (100% subsidiary)

Key Management Personnel:

i) Mr. Deendayal Daga – Chairman
ii) Mr. Rajiv Daga – Managing Director
iii) Mr. Shyam Daga – Non-Executive Director
iv) Mrs. Shanti V. Mallar- Independent Director (Retired on 10.03.2025)
v) Mr. Pritam Singh- Independent Director
vi) Mr. Rohit Pareek- Independent Director (appointed on 25/01/2024)
vii) Mr. Anil Sureka- Chief Financial Officer
viii) Mr. Atul Krishna Pandey- Company Secretary
xi) Ms. Anchal Mittal- Independent Director (Appointed on 26.04.2025)

Enterprises Owned/ Influenced by key Management personnel or their relatives: 

i) The Mysore Chip Boards Ltd

ii) Assam Timber Products Pvt Ltd

iii) Archidply Décor Ltd.

iv) Archid Panel Products

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties as listed below during the year under consideration. Full 
Disclosure has been made and the Board of Directors considers such transactions to be in normal course of business and at rates 
agreed between the parties. Details of transactions with related parties are as follows:
         (Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2025

Year ended 
31.03.2024

Transactions with related parties:    
a) Purchase of goods    
  - Assam Timber Products Pvt. Ltd. 176.75 211.46
  - Archidply Decor Ltd. 1.02 Nil
b) Royalties Received    
  - Assam Timber Products Pvt. Ltd. 2.65 13.31
  - Archid Panel Products 11.13 18.95
C) Rent Received  
  - Archidply Decor Ltd. Nil 0.65
d) Sale of goods    
  - Archidply Decor Ltd. 0.38 2.87
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  - Assam Timber Products Pvt. Ltd. 0.10 0.08
e) Interest Paid    
  - Assam Timber Products Pvt. Ltd. 19.80 19.84
  - Rajiv Daga 4.50 1.78
f ) Fee For Corporate Guarantee    
 - Archidply Decor Ltd. 0.25 12.50
g) Loan Taken  
  - Rajiv Daga 100.00 50.00
Key Management Personnel    
a) Remuneration to Director paid* 111.00 104.4
b) Sitting fee paid 4.20 4.97
c) Remuneration to CFO 47.20 41.09
Outstanding balances on date:    
a)    Director Remuneration Payable Nil Nil
b)   Director Gratuity 90.37 80.71
c) Director Leave Encashment 139.66 121.52
Advance Received :    
- Assam Timber Products Pvt. Ltd. 21.97 44.27
Loan Balance Outstanding:    
- Assam Timber Products Pvt. Ltd. 220.00 220.00
- Rajiv Daga 150.00 50.00
Receivable from Related Parties    
a)    Advance paid    
  - Archidply Décor Ltd. 9.62 10.08
  - The Mysore Chipboards Ltd. Nil 27.45
b) Receivable    
  - Archidpanel Products 2.30 4.15
Corporate Guarantee Given Balance    
  - Archidply Decor Ltd. 2500.00 2500.00
 - Archidpanel Industries Pvt. Ltd. 12010.00 9030.00

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
1. The sales to/ purchases from/ services availed from/ services provided to related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail 

in arm’s length transactions.
2. Outstanding balances at the year-end from related parties are unsecured and interest free
3. The above Remuneration is exclusive of Leave Encashment and Gratuity as the same is provided on Actuarial Valuation done for company 

as a whole.

Note: - 43 Unclaimed shares
The disclosure in accordance with the requirement of Regulation 34(3) and Part F of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with respect to demat suspense account / unclaimed suspense account are as follows

Sr.No Particulars
Outstanding Shares as 

on 31.03.2025
Outstanding Shares 

as on 31.03.2024

1 Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding 
shares in the Suspense Account lying as on April 1, 2024

3,225 3,225

2 Shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of 
shares from Suspense Account during the year;

Nil Nil

3 Shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the 
Suspense Account during the year;

Nil Nil

4 Shareholders whose shares are transferred to the demat 
account of the IEPF Authority as per Section 124 of the Act

Nil Nil

5 Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding 
shares in the Suspense Account lying at the end of the year;

3,225 3,225
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Note: - 44 Micro, Small or Medium Enterprises
Based on the information/documents available with the Company, information as per the requirements of section 22 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

  (Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 
accounting year;

5195.71 1776.27

The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of 
each accounting year;

NIL NIL

The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 NIL NIL

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006); NIL NIL

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
accounting year.

NIL NIL

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding 
year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the 
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure 
under section 23.

NIL NIL

Note:- 45 Quarterly Returns submitted to Banks
The Holding company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five hundred Lakhs rupees, in aggregate, from 
banks on the basis of security of current assets. Differences between Quarterly returns or statement filed by the Holding company 
with banks and books of account are as follows:

Quarter As per bank return As per books of account Difference
%age of 

Differences

Q1                5,326.12                5,326.12                     - 0.000%

Q2               6,336.29               6,336.29                          -   0.000%

Q3               5,533.78               5,533.78                          -   0.000%

Q4                4,875.06                4,876.24                     (1.18) -0.024%

The Subsidiary company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five hundred lakhs rupees, in aggregate, 
from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Differences between Quarterly returns or statement filed by the 
Subsidiary company with banks and books of account are as follows:

Quarter As per bank return 
(Amount In Lakhs)

As per books of account 
(Amount In Lakhs)

Difference  (Amount 
In Lakhs)

%age of 
Differences

Q1 1,950.45 1,949.46 1.00 0.05%

Q2 2,868.30 2,870.87 (2.58) (0.09)%

Q3 3,687.09 3,789.60 (102.51) (2.78)%

Q4 2,986.80 3,095.08 (108.27) (3.63)%

 Note: - 46 Fair values measurements

(Amount in Lakhs)

 
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

FVOCI Amortised Cost FVOCI Amortised Cost
Non-current financial assets        
(i) Investments - - - -
(ii) Loans   Nil   Nil
(iii)Other Financial Assets - 849.61 - 814.84
Current financial assets        
(i) Trade receivable - 13,654.71 - 9,778.69
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents - 26.81 - 89.37
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(iii) Bank balances other than above - 51.89 - 52.35
(iv) Other current financial assets - - - -
Total Financial assets - 14,583.02 - 10,735.25
         
Non-current financial liabilities        
(i) Borrowings - 6,100.64 - 7,204.61
(ii) Lease Liabilities - 236.08 - 121.25
Current financial liabilities        
(i) Borrowings - 13,165.15 - 7,425.40
(ii) Lease Liabilities - 124.94 - 74.37
(ii) Trade payables - 6,942.43 - 4,842.78
(iii) Other current financial liabilities - 386.13 - 278.77
Total Financial liabilities - 26,955.37 - 19,947.18

Notes:-
1.  The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable 

approximation of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from 
the values that would eventually be received or settled.

2.  Finance income and finance cost by instrument category wise classification:-
i)   Interest income of Rs. 54.85 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 62.51 Lakhs) on financial instrument at amortised cost.
ii)  Fee on Corporate guarantee received of Rs. 0.25 Lakhs (P.Y-77.74)
iii)  Interest expense of Rs. 1617.50 Lakhs (P.Y.Rs. 681.67 Lakhs) on borrowing and lease interest of Rs. 36.81 Lakhs (P.Y Rs. 18.48 Lakhs) on 

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost.

Note 47. Financial Risk Management-Objectives and Policies
The Company’s financial liabilities comprise long term borrowings, short term borrowings, capital creditors, trade and other 
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s financial assets 
include trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, investment in subsidiaries at cost and deposits. 

The Company is exposed to market risk and credit risk. The Company has a Risk management policy and its management is 
supported by a Risk management committee that advises on risks and the appropriate risk governance framework for the 
Company. The audit committee provides assurance to the Company’s management that the Company’s risk activities are 
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the 
Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which 
are summarised below.    

(i) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. Market risk comprises risk of interest rate, currency risk and other price risk, such as commodity price risk and equity price 
risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include FVTPL investments.    

a. Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s 
operating activities. The Company has a treasury department which monitors the foreign exchange fluctuations on the continuous 
basis and advises the management of any material adverse effect on the Company.    

Foreign Currency sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign currency exchange rates, with all 
other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of assets and 
liabilities.    

  (Amount in Lakhs)

Change in Foreign Currency Rates
Effect on Profit before Tax

As on 31st March 2025 As on 31st March 2024

5% USD  4.56  (6.65)

 -5% USD  (4.56)  6.65 

5% EURO  9.69  9.84 

 -5% EURO  (9.69)  (9.84)
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b. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and 
borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on 
floating rate borrowings, as follows:    :

Increase/ Decrease in 
basis points

Effect on Profit before 
Tax (Amount in Lacs)

31st March, 2025 +50  89.41 

-50  (89.41)

31st March, 2024 +50  70.16 

-50  (70.16)

(ii) Credit Risks

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to 
a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables). 

The Company implements a credit risk management policy under which the Company only transacts business with 
counterparties that have a certain level of credit worthiness based on internal assessment of the parties, financial condition, 
historical experience, and other factors. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics 
of each customer. The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for 
creditworthiness.    

Trade receivables

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for all the customers. In addition, a large number 
of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on 
credit losses historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of trade receivables 
disclosed in Note 9 as the Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company has evaluated the concentration of risk 
with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries.   
Refer note no 9 for ageing of trade receivable as of 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024.    

No significant changes in estimation techniques or assumptions were made during the reporting period. 

Credit risk also arises from transactions with financial institutions, and such transactions include transactions of cash and cash 
equivalents, various deposits, and financial instruments such as derivative contracts. The Company manages its exposure to this 
credit risk by only entering into transactions with banks that have high ratings. The Company’s treasury department authorizes, 
manages, and oversees new transactions with parties with whom the Company has no previous relationship.  
Furthermore, the Company limits its exposure to credit risk of financial guarantee contracts by strictly evaluating their necessity based 
on internal decision making processes, such as the approval of the board of directors.    

Credit risk exposure

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk 
as of 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 are as follows:       

  (Amount in Lakhs)

As on 31st March 2025 As on 31st March 2024

NON CURRENT

Investments In Others  -    -   

Loans  -    -   

Other financial assets  849.61  814.84 
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CURRENT

Trade receivable (Net)  13,654.71  9,778.69 

Cash and cash equivalents  26.81  89.37 

Other Bank balances  51.89  52.35 

Other financial assets  -    -   

 14,583.02  10,735.25 

Impairment losses on financial assets

Refer the table below for reconciliation of loss allowance in respect of Trade Receivables:

  (Amount in Lakhs)

Trade Receivables (measured under life time excepted credit loss 
model)

As on 31st March 2025 As on 31st March 2024

Loss Allowance at the beginning of the year  332.01  107.02 

Add/(less): Allowance provided during the year  42.70  224.99 

Loss Allowance at the end of the year  374.71  332.01 

(iii) Liquidity Risk

The Company’s objective is to maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements at all times. The 
Company relies on a mix of borrowings and excess operating cash flows to meet its needs for funds. The current committed lines 
of credit are sufficient to meet its short to medium/ long term expansion needs. The Company monitors rolling forecasts of its 
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs. Besides, it generally has certain undrawn credit 
facilities which can be accessed as and when required; such credit facilities are reviewed at regular intervals. Thus, no liquidity risk 
is perceived at present.   .

Availability of Liquidity is as follows  (Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As on 31st March 2025 As on 31st March 2024

Cash and Cash Equivalent  26.81  89.37 

Availability under committed credit facilities  1,496.90  3,843.66 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual discounted payments.

    (Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-7 Years Total

Year ended 31st March, 2025

Borrowings  13,165.15  1,622.72  4,477.92  19,265.79 

Lease liabilities  124.94  139.13  96.95  361.02 

Other financial liabilities  386.13  -    -    386.13 

Trade payables  6,813.24  127.06  2.13  6,942.43 

 20,489.46  1,888.91  4,577.00  26,955.38 

Year ended 31st March, 2024

Borrowings  7,425.40  1,628.07  5,576.54  14,630.01 

Lease liabilities  74.37  64.56  56.69  195.62 

Other financial liabilities  278.77  -    -    278.77 

Trade payables  4,842.33  0.40  0.04  4,842.78 

 12,620.87  1,693.04  5,633.27  19,947.18 

 10,882.36  4,447.00  1,912.80  17,242.17 
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Note:- 48  Additional disclosures relating to the requirement of revised Schedule III
(i)  No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the 

BenamiTransactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

(ii)  The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government orany 
government authority.

(iii)  The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv)  There is no undisclosed income under the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the year ending 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 
which needs to be recorded in the books of account.

(v)  The Companyhas not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current orprevious year.

(vi)  The borrowings obtained by the company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for 
whichsuch loans were taken.

(vii)  The below charges are pending for satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the 
statutory period.

SL no Charge holder name Date of Creation /modification Amount Status

1. State Bank of India 30/06/2020 5400.00 Pending for modification

(viii)  Relationship with struck off companies

      There are no transactions with strike off company u/s 248 or 560 of Companies Act, 2013.

(ix)  The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangements which has an accounting impact on current or 
previousfinancial year.

(x)  Utilisation of Borrowed Fund & Share Premium:

a)  The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entities, including foreign 
entities(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other personsor entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) 
or (b) provide anyguarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b)  The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) 
with theunderstanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: (a) directly or indirectly 
lend or invest inother persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries)or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

xi)  Ratio analysis & its elements

Serial 
no. Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 deviation Reason

a) Debt Service Coverage Ratio 0.56 2.65 -78.77%
 Reduced Earnings and 

Increase in Interest 
Expense 

b) Interest service Coverage Ratio 0.57 2.65 -78.69%
 Reduced Earnings and 

Increase in Interest 
Expense 

c) Debt Equity Ratio 1.85 1.31 41.34%  Increase in Debt 
d) Total Debts to Total Assets 0.49 0.45 9.64%   - 
e) Creditors Turnover Ratio 6.83 6.87 -0.60%  
f ) Debtors Turnover Ratio 4.74 4.59 3.37%   - 
g) Inventory Turnover Ratio 11.14 11.23 -0.76%   - 
h) Operating Margin(%) 1.53% 3.93% -61.13%  Decrease in Profit 

i) Net Profit Margin(%) -1.32% 1.63% -181.24%
 Due to Loss in current 

year 

j) Return on Equity Ratio -6.83% 6.59% -203.61%
 Due to Loss in current 

year 
k) Return on Capital Employed 3.38% 7.67% -55.88%  Decrease in Profit 
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Deen Dayal Daga Rajiv Daga AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
Chairman Managing Director For GRV & PK
DIN: 00497806     DIN:01412917 Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 008099S
Anil Sureka Atul Krishna Pandey
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Kamal Kishore
  M.No.: A47815  (Partner)
  Membership No. 205819
Place: Delhi UDIN:UDIN: 25205819BMKUHU7000
Date : 22.05.2025

Note:- 49

Previous year’s figures have been rearranged and/or regrouped, wherever necessary.

Note:- 50
The financial statements have been approved by the Audit Committee at its meeting held on 22nd May, 2025 and by the Board 
of Directors on the same date.



NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE THIRTIETH ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF ARCHIDPLY INDUSTRIES 
LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY, 26TH AUGUST, 2025 AT 
12.30 P.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT 
PLOT NO. 7, SECTOR - 9, INTEGRATED INDUSTRIAL ESTATES, 
SIDCUL, PANT NAGAR, DIST. UDAM SINGH NAGAR, RUDRAPUR, 
UTTARAKHAND, 263153 TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING 
BUSINESS: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and adopt (a) the audited standalone financial 
statements of the company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025, together with the reports of the board 
of directors and auditors thereon; and (b) the audited 
consolidated financial statements of the company for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2025, together with 
the report of the auditors thereon and in this regard, 
to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following 
resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions: 

(a) “RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial 
statements of the company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2025 and the reports of the board 
of directors and auditors thereon as circulated to 
the shareholders, be and are hereby considered and 
adopted.” 

(b)  “RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated 
financial statements of the company for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2025 and the report of auditors 
thereon as circulated to the shareholders, be and are 
hereby considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Deen Dayal Daga, (DIN: 
00497806), Executive, Non-independent Director, who 
retires by rotation as per Section 152(6) of Companies Act 
2013 and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment 
and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass 
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions 
of section 152 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Deen Dayal Daga (DIN: 
00497806), Executive, Non-Independent Director who 
retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible, 
has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby 
appointed as a director of the company, liable to retire by 
rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To consider and if thought fit, approve the appointment 
of CS Rajneesh Sharma, Practicing Company Secretary 
as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a first term of 
five years and to pass with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder and Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended 
from time to time (including any statutory modification(s) 
or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof 
for the time being in force), consent of the members of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded, to appoint 

CS Rajneesh Sharma, Practicing Company Secretary, 
Proprietor of Rajneesh Sharma & Co, (CP No: 24210 and 
Peer Review Certificate No. PRC:5544/2024) as Secretarial 
Auditors of the Company to conduct secretarial audit for 
the first term of five consecutive years commencing from 
FY 2025-26 till FY 2029-30 on such remuneration and 
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses for the purpose 
of audit as may be approved by the Board of Directors of 
the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the members be 
and is hereby accorded to the Board to avail or obtain from 
the Secretarial Auditors, such other services or certificates, 
reports, or opinions which the Secretarial Auditors may be 
eligible to provide or issue under the applicable laws, at a 
remuneration to be determined by the Audit committee/
Board of Directors of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and 
are hereby authorised to take all actions and do all such 
deeds, matters and things, as may be necessary, proper 
or desirable and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt 
that may arise in this regard.”

4. To approve the re-appointment of Mr. Rajiv Daga (DIN: 
01412917) as Managing Director & Chief Executive 
Officer (“CEO”) of the Company:

 To consider and, if thought fit, to approve the re-
appointment Rajiv Daga (DIN: 01412917) as Managing 
Director & Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) of the 
Company and to pass, with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as a Special Resolution:

 RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions 
of Sections 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for 
the time being in force), approval of the members be 
and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Rajiv Daga (DIN: 
01412917) as Managing Director & Chief Executive 
Officer (“CEO”) for a period of 5 (five) years, from the 
expiry of his present term of office, i.e., with effect from 
30th May 2025 to 29th May 2030 (both days inclusive) 
on the terms and conditions including remuneration 
as set out in the statement annexed to this Notice, with 
liberty to the Board of Directors (herein after referred 
to as “the Board which term shall be deemed to include 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the 
Board) to vary the terms and conditions of the said re-
appointment and/ or remuneration as it may deem fit;

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year, 
the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, 
the foregoing amount of remuneration and perquisites 
shall be paid to Mr. Rajiv Daga subject to the applicable 
provisions of Schedule V of the Act, if any.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 
as may be deemed necessary to give effect to the above 
resolution.”



5. To approve the re-appointment of Mr. Deen Dayal 
Daga (DIN: 00497806) as an Executive Chairman & 
Whole Time Director of the Company:

 To consider and, if thought fit, to approve the re-
appointment Mr. Deen Dayal Daga (DIN: 00497806) as 
an Executive Chairman & Whole Time Director of the 
Company of the Company and to pass, with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

 RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions 
of Sections 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for 
the time being in force), approval of the members be and 
is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. Deen Dayal Daga 
(DIN: 00497806) as an Executive Chairman & Whole 
Time Director of the Company for a period of 5 (five) 
years, from the expiry of his present term of office, i.e., 
with effect from 30th May 2025 to 29th May 2030 (both 
days inclusive) on the terms and conditions including 

remuneration as set out in the statement annexed to this 
Notice, with liberty to the Board of Directors (herein after 
referred to as “the Board which term shall be deemed to 
include the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of 
the Board) to vary the terms and conditions of the said re-
appointment and/ or remuneration as it may deem fit.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant regulation 17(1A) of 
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements), 
2015 approval be and is hereby given for continuation 
of Mr. Deen Dayal Daga (DIN: 00497806) as an Executive 
Chairman & Whole Time Director of the Company on 
account of his having already attain age of 82 years.   

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year, the 
Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the 
foregoing amount of remuneration and perquisites shall 
be paid to Mr. Deen Dayal Daga subject to the applicable 
provisions of Schedule V of the Act, if any.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 
as may be deemed necessary to give effect to the above 
resolution.” 

By Order of the Board of Directors
For ARCHIDPLY INDUSTIRES LIMITED

Place: Delhi                 Atul Krishna Pandey
Date: 26.07.2025                                 Company Secretary
                     M. No. A47815
Registered Office:
Plot No 7, Sector-9, 
Integrated Industrial Estate, 
SIDCUL, Pant Nagar, Rudrapur, 
Udham Singh Nagar, 
Uttarakhand -263153.
CIN: L85110UR1995PLC008627



NOTES:

1. Information regarding appointment/re-appointment 
of Directors and Explanatory Statement in respect of 
special business to be transacted pursuant to Section 
102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and/or 
Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing 
Regulations”) is annexed hereto.

2. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual 
General Meeting (“the Meeting/ AGM”) is entitled to 
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of 
him/her and the proxy need not be a Member of the 
Company. The instrument appointing the proxy, in order 
to be effective, should be deposited, duly completed and 
signed, at the registered office of the Company not less 
than forty-eight hours before the commencement of the 
Meeting. A proxy form is attached herewith.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 
fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of 
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. 
A Member holding more than ten percent of the total share 
capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a 
single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy 
for any other person or shareholder.

3. The proxy holder shall prove his/her identity at the time of 
attending the Meeting.

4. When a Member appoints a proxy and both the Member 
and proxy attend the Meeting, the proxy stands 
automatically revoked.

5. Requisition for inspection of proxies shall be received 
by the Company in writing from a Member entitled to 
vote on any resolution at least three days before the 
commencement of the Meeting.

6. Corporate Members intending to attend the Meeting 
are required to send to the Company a certified copy 
of the Board Resolution, pursuant to Section 113 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, authorizing their representative 
to attend and vote at the Meeting. The said Resolution/
Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email 
through its registered email address to cskomalahuja@
gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com.

7. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such 
joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be 
entitled to vote.

8. The Register of Member and Share Transfer Books of the 
Company will remain closed from 20th of August, 2025 to 
26th of August, 2025 (both days inclusive) in connection 
with the Annual General Meeting.

9. SEBI has mandated the submission of the Permanent 
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the 
securities market. Members holding shares in electronic 
form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their 
depository participant(s). Members holding shares in 
physical form are required to submit their PAN details to 
the RTA.

10. Since, the securities of the Company are traded 
compulsorily in dematerialized form as per SEBI mandate, 
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to 
get their shares dematerialized at the earliest.

11. Electronic copy of the Annual Report 2024-25, Notice 
of the aforesaid AGM of the Company, inter alia, 
indicating the process and manner of e-voting along 
with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all 
the Members whose email IDs are registered with the 
Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent/Depository 
Participant(s) for communication purposes unless any 
Member has requested for a hard copy of the same. The 
physical copies of the Notice of the aforesaid AGM of the 
Company, inter alia, indicating the process and manner 
of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form 
are being sent to the registered address of the Members 
of the Company who have not registered their e-mail 
address in the permitted mode.

12. In keeping with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ Green 
Initiative measures, the Company hereby requests the 
Members who have not registered their email addresses 
so far, to register their email addresses for receiving all 
communication including annual report, notices, circulars 
etc. from the Company electronically.

13. The Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which 
Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 
of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Directors 
and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, 
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rules issued thereunder are open for inspection 
by the Members at the registered office of the Company 
on all working days, except Saturdays, between 11:00 
a.m. to 1:00 p.m. and also at the AGM. Also, the Notice for 
this 30th AGM along with requisite documents and the 
Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 shall also be 
available on the Company’s website www.archidply.com. 
Further, the notice received, if any, under Section 160 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 will be put up on the website of 
the Company up to the date of the Meeting.

14. In accordance with the provisions of Section 108 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Company has engaged the services of NSDL to provide 
the facility of voting by electronic voting system to all the 
Members to enable them to cast their votes electronically 
in respect of all the businesses to be transacted at the 
aforesaid Meeting. The facility of casting the votes by 
the Members using such electronic voting system from a 
place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) is 
being provided by NSDL.

15. The facility for voting through Poll/Ballot Paper shall be 
made available at the AGM and the Members attending 
the Meeting who have not cast their vote by remote 
e-voting shall be able to exercise their right to vote at the 
Meeting through Poll/ Ballot Paper. The facility for voting 
by electronic voting system shall not be made available at 
the AGM of the Company.

16. Members seeking any information with regard to the 
accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM, are 
requested to write to the Company on or before 20th 
August 2025 through email on cs@archidply.com. The 
same will be replied by the Company suitably. Documents 
referred to in this Notice will be made available for 
inspection as per applicable statutory requirements.



17. The Company has designated a separate e-mail ID of the 
grievance redressal division/Compliance officer i.e. ‘cs@
archidply.com’, for the purpose of registering complaints 
by investors. 

18. In accordance with, the General Circular No. 20/2020 
dated 5th May, 2020 and General Circular No. 2/2021 
dated 13th January, 2021 issued by MCA, and Circular 
No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 
2020 and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 
dated 15th January, 2021 issued by SEBI, owing to the 
difficulties involved in dispatching of physical copies of 
the financial statements (including Report of Board of 
Directors, Auditor’s report or other documents required 
to be attached therewith), such statements including 
the Notice of AGM are being sent in electronic mode to 
Members whose e-mail address is registered with the 
Company or the Depository Participant(s). Members 
may note that the Notice and Annual Report will also 
be available on the Company’s website www.archidply.
com, websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited 
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.
bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively, and 
on the website of NSDL i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com/

19. The e-voting facility will be available during the following 
voting period: 

a. Commencement of remote e-voting: From 10.00 
a.m. IST of 23rd August, 2025. 

b. End of remote e-voting: Up to 5.00 p.m. IST of 25th 
August, 2025.

20. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding 
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as 
on the cut-off date i.e. 19th August, 2025, may cast their 
vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled 
by NSDL for voting thereafter and the facility will be 

blocked forthwith. The voting right of shareholders shall 
be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share 
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 19th 
August, 2025.

21. To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised 
to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any 
change in address or demise of any Member as soon as 
possible. Members are also advised to not leave their 
demat account(s) dormant for a long time. Periodic 
statement of holdings should be obtained from the 
concerned Depository Participant and holdings should 
be verified from time to time.

22. The route map showing directions to reach the venue of 
the Meeting is annexed.

23. Members can send their requests, if any, to cs@archidply.
com and einward.ris@kfintech.com

24. Voting Options 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING 
ARE AS UNDER:-

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of 
“Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on 
e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed 
to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders 
are advised to update their mobile number and email Id 
in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders  Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL.

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.
nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home 
page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 
‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. 
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value 
added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will 
be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, 
option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online 
for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.
jsp 

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once 
the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see 
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and 
you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period.



3. /Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by 
scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 
existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting 
page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are 
requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New 
System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi username & password.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option 
for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information 
provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see 
e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting 
service providers’ website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL 
website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then 
click on registration option.

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com 
home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered 
Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, 
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and 
also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you 
will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/
CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password 
option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 
Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
1800 22 55 33

B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?



1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 
the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your 
existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can 
proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

 Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user ID is 12**************

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which 
was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and 
the system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is 

communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the 
.pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password:
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) 

option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.
b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.

nsdl.com.
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.com 

mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.
d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of 

NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and 
whose voting cycle is in active status.



2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you 
wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of 
the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) 
who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to cskomalahuja@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@
nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution 
/ Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on  “Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter”  displayed 
under “e-Voting” tab in their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the 
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User 
Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual 
for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on : 022 - 4886 7000 or send a 
request at evoting@nsdl.com 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not 
registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide 
Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 
certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned 
copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) by email to cs@archidply.com. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide 
DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary 
ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 
statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
cs@archidply.com. If you are an Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode, you are requested 
to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. 
Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request 
to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and password 
for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on 
e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained 
with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number 
and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to 
access e-Voting facility.

ANNEXURE TO NOTICE EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013 AND / OR REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING 
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS, 2015

For Item No. 4

Pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) 
Regulations, 2024, on the basis of recommendation of Board 
of Directors, a listed company is required to appoint or re-
appoint an individual as Secretarial Auditor for not more than 
one term of five consecutive years; or a Secretarial Audit firm 
as Secretarial Auditor for not more than two terms of five 
consecutive years,, with the approval of the shareholders in 
annual general meeting. 

In view of the above, on the basis of recommendations of the 
Audit Committee, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 
May 22, 2025 have appointed CS Rajneesh Sharma, Practicing 
Company Secretary, Proprietor of Rajneesh Sharma & Co. (CP 
No: 24210 and Peer Review Certificate No. PRC:5544/2024) as 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct secretarial audit 
for a period of five consecutive years from FY 2025-26 to FY 
2029-30. 

The appointment is subject to approval of the Members of 
the Company. While recommending CS Rajneesh Sharma for 
appointment, the Audit Committee and the Board considered 
the past audit experience of the particularly in auditing listed 
companies, valuated various factors, including the CS Rajneesh 
Sharma’s capability to handle a complex business environment, 
his existing clientele it serves, and his technical expertise. 

Pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of SEBI Listing Regulations as 
amended, the credentials and terms of appointment of CS 
Rajneesh Sharma, are as under:

Profile:

CS Rajneesh Sharma, leading Practising Company Secretary 
has a distinguished record extending over six year of excellence 
in Corporate Governance and Compliance. Rajneesh Sharma 
& Co is widely recognized for its expertise in Secretarial 
Audits, Compliance Audits, and Due Diligence across sectors 
like Manufacturing, banking, financial services, FMCG, and 
infrastructure etc.

CS Rajneesh Sharma is peer reviewed / Quality reviewed (Peer 
Review No.: 5544/2024) and is eligible to be appointed as 
Secretarial Auditors of the Company and are not disqualified in 
terms of SEBI Listing Regulations read with SEBI Circular dated 
December 31, 2024.



Terms of appointment: 

CS Rajneesh Sharma, Practicing Company Secretary is proposed 
to be appointed for the first term of five consecutive years 
conducting secretarial audit from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30. 
The proposed fees payable to Mr. Rajneesh Sharma, is Rs. 2.50 
lakhs per annum. The said fees shall exclude GST, certification 
fees, applicable taxes, reimbursements and other outlays. 

The Audit Committee/ Board is proposed to be authorised to 
revise the secretarial audit fee, from time to time. 

The Board of Directors recommends the said resolution, as set 
out in item 4 of this Notice for your approval. 

None of the Directors or key managerial personnel or their 
relatives is in any way concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise in the said resolution.

For Item No. 5

Mr. Rajiv Daga was re-appointed as the Managing Director and 
CEO w.e.f. May 30, 2020 for a period of 5 years i.e. up to May 29, 
2025 pursuant to the resolution passed by the members in the 
Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2020 and their 
reappointment are due for another term of five years.

Mr. Rajiv Daga is not disqualified from being appointed as a 
Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act. Mr. Rajiv 
Daga has also confirmed that he is not debarred for holding 
office by virtue of any SEBI order or any other authority.

In view of large contribution in the growth of the Company 
and the background and experience of Mr. Rajiv Daga, the 
Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on May 
22, 2025, based on the recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee & subject 
to the approval of members of the Company at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting has re-appointed Mr. Rajiv Daga as the 
Managing Director and CEO of the Company for further period 
of 5 (five) years on the terms and conditions given below:-

1. PERIOD: Five years commencing from May 30, 2025 to 
May 29, 2030.

2. REMUNERATION:

a)  Salary: Rs. 8,00,000/- (Rupees Eight lakh only) 
per month with such annual increment of 10% 
per year, subject however, to a ceiling of Rs. 
12,00,000/-(Rupees Twelve Lakhs only) per month. 

b)  Perquisites: 

i)  Housing: 

A)  Residential accommodation or house rent allowance 
@60% of the salary. 

B)  Expenses pertaining to electricity, water charges, 
telephone bills and all other expenses for the upkeep 
and maintenance thereof and the expenditure 
incurred thereon will be borne / reimbursed by the 
Company. 

C)  Company shall provide such furniture, fixtures and 
furnishings as approved by the Board of Directors 
(which includes any committee thereof ) of the 
Company from time to time. 

ii)  Leave / Holiday Travel Expenses: Reimbursement of leave/ 
holiday Travel expenses (like travel fare, lodging, boarding, 
conveyance and other expenses) incurred on one or 
more occasions in a year whether in India or abroad in 
respect of himself and family subject to the condition that 

reimbursement shall not exceed one month’s basic salary 
per annum. The entitlement for any one year to the extent 
not availed shall be allowed to be accumulated up to next 
two years.

iii)  Medical Expenses: Reimbursement of medical expenses 
(including insurance premium for medical and 
hospitalization policy, if any) for self and family, which 
shall include spouse, children and dependent parents, at 
actual. 

iv)  Club Fees: Reimbursement of membership fees for one 
club in India including admission and life membership 
fees. 

v)  Leave and encashment of leave: Leave with full pay or 
encashment thereof as per the rules of the Company. 

vi)  Personal Accident Policy: Personal Accident Insurance 
Policy of such amount as may be decided by the Board 
of Directors (which includes any committee thereof ) the 
premium of which shall not exceed of Rs. 10000/- per 
annum. 

vii)  Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation or 
Annuity Fund: The company’s contribution to Provident 
Fund and Superannuation and Annuity Fund to the extent 
these either singly or put together are not taxable under 
the Income Tax, Act, 1961.

viii)  Gratuity and /or contribution to Gratuity Fund of the 
Company: Gratuity at the rate of half month’s salary for 
each completed year of service. 

ix)  Cars: Company maintained one car, as per the Rules of the 
Company. 

x)  Reimbursement of entertainment, traveling and all other 
expenses incurred for the business of the Company as per 
the rules applicable to the Company. Traveling expenses 
of spouse accompanying the Managing Director & CEO 
on any official overseas or inland trip will be governed as 
per the Rules applicable to the Company. 

xi)  Other Allowance/benefits/perquisites: Any other 
allowances, benefits and perquisites as per the Rules 
applicable in the future and/or any other allowance, 
perquisites as the Board may from time to time decide. 

xii)  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein 
contained, where in any financial year during the currency 
of the tenure of Mr. Rajiv Daga the Company has no 
profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay 
remuneration, for a period of 3 years, by way of Salary, 
Benefits, Perquisites and Allowances as specified above, 
subject to further approvals as required under Schedule V 
of the Act, or any modification(s) thereto.

xiii)  Sitting Fees: The Managing Director & CEO shall not be 
entitled to any sitting fees for attending meetings of the 
Board or any committee thereof.

Explanation:

Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income Tax Rules, wherever 
applicable and in absence of any such rule, perquisites shall be 
evaluated at actual cost.

For the purposes of Gratuity, provident fund, Superannuation 
and other like benefits, if any, the service of Mr. Rajiv Daga, 



Managing Director & CEO will be considered as continuous 
service with the Company from the date of his joining as Joint 
Managing Director the 18th January, 2007.

The total remuneration paid to Mr. Rajiv Daga for the financial 
years 2024-25, 2023-24 and 2022-23 is ₹ 72.60 lakhs, ₹66.00 lakhs 
and ₹ 49.20 Lakhs, respectively. The proposed remuneration is 
commensurate with the size and complexity of the business.

3. General:

(i) The Managing Director shall perform such duties as 
shall from time to time be entrusted to him by the 
Board, subject to superintendence, guidance and 
control of the Board.

(ii) The Managing Director shall act in accordance with 
the Articles of Association of the Company and shall 
abide by the provisions contained in Section 166 of 
the Act with regard to duties of directors.

(iii) The Managing Director shall adhere to the 
Company’s Code of Conduct

The copy of Agreement executed with the Managing Director 
& CEO is available for inspection on all working days except 
Saturday between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. at the registered 
office of the Company, up to the date of meeting.

The above mentioned explanatory statement read together 
with the resolutions specified under SPECIAL BUSINESS as 
item no. 5 of the Notice convening the General Meeting may be 
considered as an abstract, under section 102 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, of the terms of  remuneration and perquisites 
payable to the aforesaid Managing Director & CEO with effect 
from 30.05.2025.The proposed business at item no.5 of the 
Notice of this meeting is intended to seek your approval. 

Mr. Rajiv Daga is concerned or interested in this resolution. Mr. 
Shyam Daga, Director & Mr. Deen Dayal Daga, Director of the 
company is related to Mr. Rajiv Daga and accordingly may be 
deemed, concerned or interested in the Resolution.

Relatives of Mr. Rajiv Daga may be deemed to be interested in 
the resolution to the extent of their shareholding interest, if 
any, in the Company.

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in 
any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in 
the resolution.

The Board of Directors commends the Special Resolution set 
out at Item No.5 of this Notice for approval by the members.

Item No 6

Mr. Deen Dayal Daga was re-appointed as the Executive 
Chairman and Whole Time Director w.e.f. May 30, 2020 for 
a period of 5 years i.e. up to May 29, 2025 pursuant to the 
resolution passed by the members in the Annual General 
Meeting held on September 29, 2020 and their reappointment 
are due for another term of five years.

Mr. Deen Dayal Daga is not disqualified from being appointed 
as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act. Mr. 
Deen Dayal Daga has also confirmed that he is not debarred for 
holding office by virtue of any SEBI order or any other authority.

In view of large contribution in the growth of the Company 
and the background and experience of Mr. Deen Dayal Daga, 
the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 
May 22, 2025, based on the recommendation of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee & subject 

to the approval of members of the Company at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting has re-appointed Mr. Deen Dayal 
Daga as the Executive Chairman and Whole Time Director of 
the Company for further period of 5 (five) years on the terms 
and conditions given below:-

4. PERIOD: Five years commencing from May 30, 2025 to 
May 29, 2030.

5. REMUNERATION:

a)  Salary: : Rs. 2,00,000/- (Rupees Two lakh only) per 
month with such annual increment (s) as the Board 
may decide from time to time, subject however, to a 
ceiling of Rs. 3,00,000/-(Rupees three Lakhs only) per 
month. 

b)  Perquisites: 

i)  Housing: 

A)  Residential accommodation or house rent allowance 
@60% of the salary. 

B)  Expenses pertaining to electricity, water charges, 
telephone bills and all other expenses for the upkeep 
and maintenance thereof and the expenditure 
incurred thereon will be borne / reimbursed by the 
Company. 

C)  Company shall provide such furniture, fixtures and 
furnishings as approved by the Board of Directors 
(which includes any committee thereof ) of the 
Company from time to time. 

ii)  Leave / Holiday Travel Expenses: Reimbursement 
of leave/ holiday Travel expenses (like travel fare, 
lodging, boarding, conveyance and other expenses) 
incurred on one or more occasions in a year whether 
in India or abroad in respect of himself and family 
subject to the condition that reimbursement shall 
not exceed one month’s basic salary per annum. 
The entitlement for any one year to the extent not 
availed shall be allowed to be accumulated up to 
next two years.

iii)  Medical Expenses: Reimbursement of medical 
expenses (including insurance premium for medical 
and hospitalization policy, if any) for self and family, 
which shall include spouse, children and dependent 
parents, at actual. 

iv)  Club Fees: Reimbursement of membership fees 
for one club in India including admission and life 
membership fees. 

v)  Leave and encashment of leave: Leave with full 
pay or encashment thereof as per the rules of the 
Company. 

vi)  Personal Accident Policy: Personal Accident 
Insurance Policy of such amount as may be decided 
by the Board of Directors (which includes any 
committee thereof ) the premium of which shall not 
exceed of Rs. 10000/- per annum. 

vii)  Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation 
or Annuity Fund: The company’s contribution to 
Provident Fund and Superannuation and Annuity 
Fund to the extent these either singly or put together 
are not taxable under the Income Tax, Act, 1961.



viii) Gratuity and /or contribution to Gratuity Fund of the 
Company: Gratuity at the rate of half month’s salary
for each completed year of service. 

ix) Cars: Company maintained one car, as per the Rules
of the Company. 

x) Reimbursement of entertainment, traveling and
all other expenses incurred for the business of the
Company as per the rules applicable to the Company. 
Traveling expenses of spouse accompanying the
Executive Chairman and Whole Time Director on any 
official overseas or inland trip will be governed as
per the Rules applicable to the Company. 

xi) Other Allowance/benefits/perquisites: Any other
allowances, benefits and perquisites as per the Rules 
applicable in the future and/or any other allowance, 
perquisites as the Board may from time to time
decide. 

xii) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein
contained, where in any financial year during the
currency of the tenure of Mr. Deen Dayal Daga the
Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, 
the Company will pay remuneration, for a period of
3 years, by way of Salary, Benefits, Perquisites and
Allowances as specified above, subject to further
approvals as required under Schedule V of the Act,
or any modification(s) thereto.

xiii) Sitting Fees: The Executive Chairman and Whole
Time Director shall not be entitled to any sitting
fees for attending meetings of the Board or any
committee thereof.

Explanation:

Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income Tax Rules, 
wherever applicable and in absence of any such rule, 
perquisites shall be evaluated at actual cost.

For the purposes of Gratuity, provident fund, 
Superannuation and other like benefits, if any, the service 
of Mr. Deen Dayal Daga, Executive Chairman will be 
considered as continuous service with the Company from 
the date of his joining Chairman and Managing Director 
i.e. 1st July, 2007.

The total remuneration paid to Mr. Deen Dayal Daga 
for the financial years 2024-25, 2023-24 and 2022-23 is 
₹38.40 lakhs, ₹38.40 lakhs and ₹38.40 Lakhs, respectively. 

The proposed remuneration is commensurate with the 
size and complexity of the business.

6. General:

(iv) The Executive Chairman and Whole Time Director
shall perform such duties as shall from time to
time be entrusted to him by the Board, subject to
superintendence, guidance and control of the Board.

(v) The Executive Chairman and Whole Time Director
shall act in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company and shall abide by the
provisions contained in Section 166 of the Act with
regard to duties of directors.

(vi) The Executive Chairman and Whole Time Director
shall adhere to the Company’s Code of Conduct

The copy of Agreement executed with the Executive 
Chairman and Whole Time Director is available for 
inspection on all working days except Saturday between 
11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. at the registered office of the 
Company, up to the date of meeting.

The above mentioned explanatory statement read 
together with the resolutions specified under SPECIAL 
BUSINESS as item no. 6 of the Notice convening the 
Annual General Meeting may be considered as an 
abstract, under section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, of 
the terms of  remuneration and perquisites payable to the 
aforesaid Executive Chairman and Whole Time Director 
with effect from 30.05.2025. The proposed business at 
item no.6 of the Notice of this meeting is intended to seek 
your approval. 

Mr. Deen Dayal Daga is concerned or interested in this 
resolution. Mr. Shyam Daga, Director & Mr. Rajiv Daga, 
Director of the company is related to Mr. Deen Dayal Daga 
and accordingly may be deemed, concerned or interested 
in the Resolution.

Relatives of Mr. Deen Dayal Daga may be deemed to 
be interested in the resolution to the extent of their 
shareholding interest, if any, in the Company.

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives 
are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in the resolution.

Since Mr. Deen Dayal Daga already attaining the age of 82 
(Eighty Two) years, therefore in terms of Section 196 read 
with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board 
recommends the resolutions as item no 6 for approval of 
members as special resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For ARCHIDPLY INDUSTIRES LIMITED

     Atul Krishna Pandey
    Company Secretary

M. No. A47815

Place: Delhi 
Date: 26.07.2025  
Registered Office:  
Plot No 7, Sector-9, 
Integrated Industrial Estate, 
SIDCUL, Pant Nagar, Rudrapur, 
Udham Singh Nagar, 
Uttarakhand -263153.
CIN: L85110UR1995PLC008627



Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings

Name of Director Mr. Rajiv Daga Mr. Deen Dayal Daga

Age 47 Years, April 26, 1978 82 Years, December 12, 1943

Nationality Indian India

Qualifications
Industrial Engineering and an Economics 
degree from Purdue University in the United 
States

Bachelor of Law (LLB)

Brief Profile and Nature 
of expertise in specific 
functional areas

Mr. Rajiv Daga is the Managing Director & 
CEO of the Company, which is having its 
manufacturing unit in Rudrapur, Uttarakhand. 
He had a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial 
Engineering and an Economics degree from 
Purdue University in the United States.
Mr. Rajiv Daga joined the Archidply in 2003, 
initially heading operations at its Karnataka 
facility for 7 years. After that Promoted to 
Joint Managing Director at the newly opened 
Rudrapur (Uttaranchal) plant where he 
doubled capacity in 3 years and achieved full 
utilization, establishing it as Archidply’s largest 
facility. He has successfully implemented 
SAP ERP and also instrumental in getting 
the “Power Brand” award in the year 2017 
for Archidply. Over the last 5 years he has 
successfully developed the Laminate Export 
Business in 20 countries.
He has expertise in the functional area of  
General Management, Sales & Marketing and 
Industrial Engineering

Mr. Deen Dayal Daga holds a law degree, 
his entrepreneurial drive led him to launch 
a plywood manufacturing business in 
Assam in 1976. From 1995 to 1996, he was 
elected President of the Assam Plywood 
Manufacturers Association. His remarkable 
contributions have earned him notable 
accolades, including:
The Udyogapatra Award in 1982, presented 
by the Vice President of India, recognized 
him as a self-made industrialist. 
The Swatantra Swarna Jayanti Udyog 
Vibhushan Award in 1999, honouring his 
significant impact on the nation’s economic 
growth.
An Industrialist having 48 years of expertise 
in establishing and successfully running the 
wood panel & tea industry.
He has expertise in the functional area 
of General Management, Production, 
Accounts & Finance.

Date of first appointment on 
the Board January 18, 2007 July 01, 2007

Terms and conditions 
of appointment or 
reappointment

Re-appointment as a Managing Director 
and CEO for a period of 5 consecutive years 
effective from May 30, 2025 to May 29, 2030 
(for further details refer the Notice and 
Explanatory Statement).

Re-appointment as an Executive Chairman 
and Whole Time Director for a period of 
5 consecutive years effective from May 
30, 2025 to May 29, 2030 (for further 
details refer the Notice and Explanatory 
Statement).

Remuneration last drawn 
(during the year) (per 
annum) including sitting 
fees

FY 2024-25: Rs. 72.60 Lakhs FY 2024-25: Rs. 38.40 Lakhs

Remuneration proposed to 
be paid

As per the resolution at Item No. 5 of this Notice 
read with statement pursuant to Section 102 
of the Act

As per the resolution at Item No. 6 of this 
Notice read with statement pursuant to 
Section 102 of the Act

Number of meetings of the 
Board attended

Please refer Corporate Governance Report 
Section of the Annual Report

Please refer Corporate Governance Report 
Section of the Annual Report

Relationship with other 
Directors, Manager and 
other Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company

Except for receiving Remuneration as 
Managing Director & CEO Mr. Rajiv Daga or 
any of his relative do not have any pecuniary 
relationship with the company. 
Mr. Rajiv Daga is a son of Mr. Deen Dayal Daga, 
Executive Chairman and brother of Mr. Shyam 
Daga, Non- Executive Director of the Company

Except receiving for Remuneration as an 
Executive Chairman Mr. Deen Dayal Daga 
or any of his relative do not have any 
pecuniary relationship with the Company. 
Mr. Deen Dayal Daga is father of Mr. Shyam 
Daga, Non-Executive Director and Mr. Rajiv 
Daga, Managing Director & CEO of the 
Company.

Other Directorship 
(Includes directorship in 
public, private and foreign 
companies and insurance 
corporations)

1. Archidpanel Industries Private Limited
2. Archidply Decor Limited
3. Assam Timber Products Private Limited
4. The Mysore Chip Boards Limited

1. The Mysore Chipboards Limited
2. Assam Timber Products Private Limited
3. Archidpanel Industries Private Limited
4. Ravi Marketing & Services Pvt Ltd
5. Vanraj Suppliers Pvt. Ltd.

Chairmanship/ Membership 
of the Committees of other 
Companies in which position 
of Director is held

Refer to Report on CORPORATE GOVERNANCE Refer to Report on CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE



Resignations, if any, from 
listed entities (in India) in 
past three years

None None

Inter-se relationship with 
other Directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel of the 
Company

None None

No. of shares held:

a) Own 6,51,342 7,71,620

b) For other persons
on a beneficial
basis

Nil Nil

*As per shareholding pattern submitted to Stock exchange for the period ended on March 31, 2025.



ATTENDANCE SLIP

Only Shareholders or Proxies will be allowed to attend the meeting

Registered Folio / DP ID & Client ID :

Name and Address of the Shareholder :

Joint Holder(s) :

No. of Shares :

I / We hereby record my / our presence at the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company being held on Tuesday, the 26th 
August, 2025 at 12:30 p.m. at the registered office of the Company at plot no. 7, sector - 9, Integrated Industrial Estates, SIDCUL, 
Pant Nagar, dist. Udam Singh Nagar, Rudrapur, Uttarakhand, 263153.

Signature of Shareholder(s) 1.  

2.  

 Signature of Proxy holder(s) 

Note:

1. Shareholders attending the meeting in person or by Proxy are requested to complete the attendance slip and hand it over at 
the entrance of the meeting venue.

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

EVSN Sequence Number

Note:

Please read the note no. 24 to the Notice of the 30th Annual General Meeting dated Tuesday, the 26th August, 2025 at 12:30 p.m., 
being sent herewith, in respect of the instructions for voting through electronic means. The voting period starts from 10:00 a.m. on 
23rd August, 2025 and ends at 5:00 p.m. on 25th August, 2025. 



Form No. MGT-11 PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN L85110UR1995PLC008627
Name of Company ARCHIDPLY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Registered Office PLOT NO. 7, SECTOR - 9, INTEGRATED INDUSTRIAL ESTATES, SIDCUL, PANT NAGAR, DIST. 
UDAM SINGH NAGAR, RUDRAPUR , UTTARAKHAND, 263153

Name of the Member(s):

Registered Address:

E-mail Id:
Folio No./ Client Id: 
DP ID:

I / We, being the member(s) of   shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:

1) Name: 

Address: 

Email Id:  Signature:  , or failing him/her

1) Name: 

Address: 

Email Id:  Signature:  , or failing him/her

2) Name: 

Address: 

Email Id:  Signature:  

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company, 
to be held on Tuesday, the 26th August, 2025 at 12:30 p.m. at Plot no. 7, Sector - 9, Integrated Industrial Estates, SIDCUL, Pant Nagar, 
dist. Udam Singh Nagar, Rudrapur, Uttarakhand, 263153 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are 
indicated below:

Signed this   day of  2025.

Signature of Shareholder:  

Signature of proxy holder(s):  

Note:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, 
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp



AGM VENUE ROUTE MAP



Regd. Office
Archidply Industries Ltd
Plot No. 7. Sector - 9, Integrated Industrial Estate, SIDCUL. Pantnagar. Rudrapur, 
Udham Singh Nagar - 263153 (Uttarakhand)
Ph : 05944 - 250270, Fax : 05944 - 250269

Corporate Office
Archidply Industries Ltd
1st Floor, Plot No.2, Block No.1, W.H.S Kirti Nagar, New Delhi – 110015, 
Ph: 011 – 45642555, 45530828
Email : info@archidply.com
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